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Office Of Purchasing Pitney Bowes, Incorporated
Department Head Name Contract Number
@ | Eric Naughton A-1-2017
] . i ' Contract Manager Name
Linda A. Mills, Food Inspector II

Proposed Legfslative Action Internal Approvals
To Date | Approv | Info Other Date & Approval | Date & Approval
al Init. Init. j:g? &
Assgn Dept. Head Counstl to
Comum C@% C.E,
Rules Budget ,;/ County Atty.
Comm s
Full Leg y/ % / ﬂ Deputy County Exec.
11t C.E.
L . S

Narrative

Purpose: To authorize and aweard a Blanket Purchase Order for a five (5) year lease for one (1) Pitney
Bowes Relay 8000 Inserter System complete with all accessories, training and maintenance for the lease
term of March 1, 2017 through February 28, 2022 for the Department of Assessment. This inserter
system will replace their current Pitney Bowes Inserter which lease term will expire February 28, 2017,
No competitive bidding was initiated as the authority for this procurement is New York State Comptrollers
Opinion 79-150 which does not mandate competitive bidding for rental/leasing.

Discussion: Pitney Bowes Inc. provides Nassau County with various Office Machines, Mailing Systems,
Tolders, Inserters and historically has supplied Nassauw County with excepuonal service and the
technology’ they provide is proprietary to Pitney Bowes.
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Impact on Funding: The cost of the system lease is One Hundred Thirty-Six Thousand One Hundred
Five Dollars and Twenty Cents ($136,105.20) during the lease term from general funds.

Recommendation: Office of Purchasing recommends awarchng a blanket purchase order to Pltney
Bowes, Incorporated.
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RULES RESOLUTION 201%

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF NASSAU COUNTY OFFICE OF
PURCHASING TO AWARD AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
NASSAU ACTING ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF

ASSESSMENT AND PITNEY BOWES, INCORPORATED.

WHEREAS, the Director is representing to the Rules Comumittee that the firm, PITNEY BOWES,

INCORPORATED meets all specifications for the product described in the said contract as determined by

the Director of the Office of Purchasing.

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the Director,

Office of Purchasing to award and execute the said Blanket Purchase Order with PITNEY BOWES,

INCORPORATED.




COUNTY OF NASSAU

INTER — DEPARTMENTAIL MEMO

TO: CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE A-01-2017

FROM:  ERIC NAUGHTON, DEPUTY COUNTY EXECUTIVE-FINANCE
DATE: DECEMBER 02, 2016

SUBJECT: RESOLUTTON-NASSAU COUNTY PITNEY BOWES INSERTER LEASE

THIS RESOLUTION IS RECOMMENDED BY THE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF PURCHASING TO
AUTHORIZE AN AWARD AND TO EXECUTE A BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER IN THE
AMOUNT OF ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-SIX THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED FIVE DOLLARS AND
TWENTY CENTS ($136,105.20) ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF
ASSESSMENT TO PITNEY BOWES, INCORPORATED FOR A FIVE (5) YEAR LEASE ON A
PITNEY BOWES RELAY 8000 INSERTER SYSTEM COMPLETE WITH ALL ACCESSORIES,
TRAINING AND MAINTENANCE FOR NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF ASSESSMENT.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED DOCUMENT ATTACHED HERETO IS FORWARDED FOR YOUR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL AND SUBSEQUENT TRANSMITTAL TO THE RULES COMMITTEE

FOR INCLUSION IN ITS AGENDA. ///%

ERIC NAUGHTON
DEPUTY COUNTY EXECUTIVE-FINANCE

MS: br
ENCL: (1) STAFF SUMMARY
{2) RESOLUTION
(3) FORM 10K
{(4) CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR’S & VENDOR’S DISCLOSURE FORM
(5) BUSINESS HISTORY FORM

(6) PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM
(7) CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
(8) POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION FORM




>

COUNTY OF NASSAU
POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions
pursuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and
ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two
years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, to the
campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County
Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?
If ves, to what campaign committee?

None

Pitney Bowes HAS NOT retained a lobbyist in this matter, NOR has Pitney Bowes (or its senior level executives)
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2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultunt, contractor or
Vendor authorized as a signatory of the [irm for the purpose of executing Coniracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate,

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees
identified above were made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmentat

benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remuneration,

Pitney Bowes Inc.
Vendor: . Y

Dated: / Z/l//// 26/( SiW % {//a_/——

Len Vuiiaggio

Print Name:

Title: Major Account Manager

Rev, 3-2016
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

Al questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%} ar greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or
printed in ink. If you need more space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page(s} as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL
WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR
AWARD

Michael Monahan
1860

1. Principal Name
Date of birth _ 96 ;23 4
Home address 94 County Club Road
City/state/zip Stamford, CT 06903

Business address 3001 Summer Street
City/state/zip __Stamford, CT 06926
203 351-6253

Telephone

Other present address{es)
City/statefzip
Telephona
List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check ali applicable)
President { / Treasurer / /
Chairman of Board ! / Shareholder / !
Chief Exec. Officer _92 /99 /2015 Secretary / {
Chief Financial Officer / / Partner / /
Vice President f / / /
{Other)

3. Do you have an eguity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES ___ NO _¥ If Yes, provide details.

;1. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO If Yes, provide details,

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-

for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO ;
If Yes, provide details.

Rev. 3-2016



6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organizationgisted in
Section 5 in the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? YES NO ___.
If Yes, provide details. T

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by

operation of law, or as a result of any action taken by a government agency.

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy

the appropriate page and attach lt tO the questionnaire. "Mr. Monahan Is an Officer and } Or directar of alitllates of PEGFS which liko PBGFS are

subsidiares of PBI. In that capacity, some of thoso alfiiiatas hava bean awarded government
contriacts”,

7. Inthe past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section 5 in which you have been a principal owner or officer:

a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency?
YES NO \/ If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

b. Been declared in defauit andfor terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any
contracts cancelled for cause? YES NO If Yes, provide details for each
such instance.

¢. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
includipg, but not fimited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards? YES
NO If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it;
and/or Is any action pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such
business's ability to bid or propose on contract? YES NOW_ If Yes, provide
details for each such instance.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a
bankruptey petition and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during
the past 7 years, and/or for any portlon of the last 7 year period, beenin a state of
bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 years ago and/or is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever
initiated? If ‘'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to all
questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it to the questionnaire.)

a) Is there any felony charge pending against you? YES __ NO L/ If Yes, provide
details for each such charge.

b} Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you? YES NO ‘_/ If
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

¢) Is there any administrative charge pending against you? YES NO \_/_ If
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

d) Inthe past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulnesg, or the underlying facts
of which related to the conduct of business? YES ____ N If Yes, provide
details for each such conviction.

Rev, 3-2016
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1.

12,

e) Inthe past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a
misdemeanor?

YES __ NO J If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

f) Inthe past § years, have you been foynd in violation of any administrative or

statutory charges? YES NO If Yes, provide details for each such
occurrence.

In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5
years, have you been the subject of 2 criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the
subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to adivities performed at,
for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in

response to Question 67 YES NO 5/ If Yes, provide details for each such
investigation.

In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization
listed in response to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil
anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while you were a
principat owner or officer? YES____ NO l If Yes; provide details for each such
investigation.

In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in
response to Question 5 had any sanction imposed as a resuit of judicial or administrative
proceedings with respect to any professional license held? YES NO i If Yes;
provide detalls for each such instance,

For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited
to water and sewer charges? YES NO If Yes, provide defails for each such
year.

Rev. 3-2016



CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

|, _Len Vubta &5l , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belisf, that | will nofify the County in writing of any change in
ciroumstances ocowsting after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me Is frue to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief, | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
guestionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

Sworn to before me this /tjdlay aﬁb@//zzﬁﬂ m/., &

Natary Pybfic 4 /
AR TRAYLEY
Hotary Public, State of New York
No, G1BABUTTTH0
Quaiified In Suffolk

Pitney Bowes Global Financial Semission Expires May 12,2018

Name of submitiing business

l.en Vultﬁggia
// / =
Signatlre
Major Account Manager
Title
12, 1 20/
Data

Rev. 3-2016



Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County,
taking into consideration the reliablity of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to
perform the services required by the County, offers the best value to the County and who will
best promote the public interest,

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this
questionnaire. The questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by
an authorized representative of the firm, corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is “none” or “not-applicable.”
No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING
QUESTIONS).

Date: 1112912018

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC

2) Address of Place of Business: 27 Waterview Drive Shelton, CT 06484

List all other business addresses used within last five years:

3) Mailing Address (if different);

Phone: 203-356-5000

Does the business own or rent its facilities? owN

4) Dun and Bradstreet number.__ 78-56-9240

5) Federal I.D. Number: 20-1344287

6) The proposer (check one): Sole Proprietorship _____ Partnership
Corporafion _¥_ Other (Describe) 1S A SINGLE MEMBER LLC WITH PITNEY BOWES INC. A PUBLIC CORPORATION
BEING THE SINGLE MEMBER.
7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other
business?
Yes___ No ‘/ If Yes, please provide details:

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses? Yes _ No _\_/ if Yes, please
provide details;

Rev. 3-2016



9} Does thig business have o?or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlied by,
any other business? Yes No ___  [If Yes, provide details. PBGFS IS A SUBSIDIARY OF PBI

10) Has the proposer ever had a band or surety cancelled or forfeited, opa contract with Nassau
County or any other government entity terminated? Yes _ No ¥V If Yes, state the
name of bonding agency, {if a bond), date, amount of bond and reason for such cancellation
or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes ___ No i
If Yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12}in the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers andfor any
affiliated business, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or focal prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in
the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated business been the subject of
a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local
prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities
performed at, fog, or on behalf of an afflliated business.
Yes ___ No ¥_ If Yes, provide details for each such investigation.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any
affiliated business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including
but not jimited to federal, state and local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years,
has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business been the subject of an investigation by
any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local regulatory
agencies, for matters pertgining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated
business. Yes ___ No W __ If Yes, provide detals for each such investigation.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business
had, either before or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the
charges pertained to events that allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the
submitting business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

a)} Any felony charge pending? Yes ___ No ,‘L If Yes, provide details for
each such charge.

Ta the best of our knowledge

b) Any misdemeanocr charge pending? Yes____ No _‘_{ If Yes, provide details
for each such charge. 1o the best of s knowledge

) Inthe past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony
and/or any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the
underlying facts cf which related to the conduct of business? Yes __ No ¥V _

Rev, 3-2016



If Yes, provide details for each such conviction

d) inthe pa Jears, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
Yes ___ If Yes, provide detalls for each such conviction,

e) In the past 5 vears, been found in viojation of any administrative, statutory, or
regulatory provisions? Yes ___ No If Yes, provide details for each such
occurrence.

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated
business had any sanction imposed as a result of Judlcaal gyidmmlstratlve proceedings with
respect to any professional license held? Yes W If Yes, provide details for
each such instance.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to
pay any applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, inciuding but not
limited to water and sewer charges? Yes____ No J If Yes, provide details for each
such year. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked 'YES'. If you need more
space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

Provide a detailed response to all guestions checked "YES". If you need more space,
photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

17) Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any confiicis of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no
conflicts exist, please expressiy state “No conflict exists.”
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has
that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance ¢f a conflict of interest in
acting an behalf of Nassau County.

™ None Exists

(it} Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County
public servant that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict
of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

Nane Exist

{iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or
the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
Neone Exists

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the
County that a conflict of interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
PB General Auditar group sends out an annual conflict of interest policy statement to a target audience.
Those whao receive it are required to read it then indicate if they think or know they have a conflict of
interest and what it is otherwise they are asked to certify that they do not have conflict of interest.

PB General Auditor Rev. 3-2016



A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications,
demonstrating extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and
the results of these experiences, must be identified. This iz based on the member

Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:
[} Date of formation; PBGFS LLC - 12/11/2016

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the
company, including shareholders, members, general or limited partner; pg) a public Corporation being

iy Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company;the single member
iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);, =~ PBGFSLLC
V)  The number of employees in the firm; This information is based on single member -PBI

vi)  Annual revenue of firm; based on single member -PBI < ax M@_/
vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments business unil to respond /o (afle
¢ =

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.
B. Indicate number of years in business. PBGFS LLC

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the
Proposer's capacity and reliability to perform these services.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer
has provided similar services or who are gualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to
perform this work.

Company Pitney Bowes Inc.

Contact Person__Len Vultaggio

Address 3001 Summer Street

City/State __Stamford, CT 06926

631-796-0712

Telephone
Fax # 230-460-3154
E-Mail Address len.vultaggo@pb.com

Rev. 3-2016



Broadridge Financial
Company

Contact Person  Mark Streeter

Address 51 Mercedes Way

City/State Edgewood, NY 11717
631-254-1631

Telephone

Fax#
E-Mail Address mark.streeter@broadridge.com

[T T e
Company Northwell Health
Aidan Keil -

Contact Person
Address 270-05 76th Ave

New Hyde Park
516-396-6362

City/State

Telephone

Fax #
E-Mail Address akeil@northwell.edu

Rev. 3-2016



CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

l Cal VU Ltsseio , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that 1 supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in
circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true fa the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
questionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

Sworn to before me this /.5 7{day otkCCﬂ")W 201(9

T A gﬂﬂwr
No&y Pa%ﬁ"mdmm
Notesy

No. 01 BAsomso

Quafified In
Gommigsion Expires Mmf 12,2019 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services
Name of submitting business:

By: Lan Vuitaggic

__/)PW///AA

Signaturé” (J

Major Account Manager

Title
/2, 1 1Al

Date

Rev. 3-2016



pitney bowes {(@3

Michael Monahan is Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Financial Officer. in this role, he has glebal responsibilities for sales operations, client
operations, information technology. procurement, supply chain and real estate. In
addition, he leads the financial cperations of the company on a global basis, which
includes freasury, audit, investor relations, tax functions. and, has oversight of the

corporate development and corporate strategy functions,

Previously, Mike was President of the Mailstream Solutions and Services — Americas, the
portfolio of which included North and South American operations and Presort Mail

Services. He has overseen Pithey Bowes’ entry and expansion in the U.S. domestic and
international mail services markets. He led the formation of the company’s Presort Mail

Services division through a series of acquisitions and partnerships.

Mike joined Pithey Bowses in 1988 and held positions in Corporate Accounting, Investor
Relations, Corporaie Development, and as a business unit CFO. Prior to joining the

company. he was a senicr auditor with Price Waterhouse.

Mike is Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the Executive Committee of
the National Board of the Armed Services YMCA. He is also a member of the board of
the Pitney Bowes Foundation. Mike is a Certified Public Accountant and holds B.S, and

M.S. degrees from the State University of New York at Albany.
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR’S AND VENDOR’S DISCLOSURE FORM

. Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC
1. Name of the Entity:

Address: 27 Waterview Drive

City, State and Zip Code: Shelton CT 06484

2, Entity’s Vendor Identification Number:

3' Type OfBUSII’lCSSI _J_PUb]lC COI’p ___Partnershlp _W‘I("nt Venturg a gingle member LLC wilh Fitney Bowss Inc. kelng the signte

member

‘/ Ltd. Liability Co Closely Held Corp Other (specify)

4, List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of
Directors or comparable body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all pattics
of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers of limited liability companies (attach additional
sheets if necessary):

PBI is the sole single member of the LL.C. The Address 3001 Summer Street, Stamford, CT 06926

see attachment for PBGFS Officers.

5. List names and addresses of all sharcholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the
shareholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly
held Corporation, include a copy of the 10K in lieu of completing this section.

Attached is the Pitney Bowes inc. 2015-SEC 10K filing
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6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line

1. above (if none, enter “None™). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or
subsidiary company that may take part in the performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall
be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not previously disclosed that participate
in the performance of the contract.

Attached is the Pitney Bowes inc. 2015-SEC 10K filing

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid,

bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter “None.” The term “lobbyist” means any and every person or
organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter
before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or
committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and
Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, procurements. The
term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):

None

Pitney Bowes HAS NOT retained a lobbyist in this matter, NOR has Pitney Bowes (or its senior level executives)
provided any political campaign contributions to the Nassau County elected officials listed on the disclosure form
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(b) Describe lobbying aclivity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete
deseription of lobbying activities,

Pitney Bowes HAS NOT retained a lobbyist in this matter, NOR has Pitney Bowes (or its senior level executives)

provided. any_political campaign contributions to the Nassau County elactad offictalz listert on the discinsure form

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g.,

Nassau County, New York State);
Pitney Bowes HAS NOT retained a (obbyist in this matter, NOR has Pitney Bowes (or its senior level executives)

provided any pofiical campalgn contributions lo the Nassau County elected officials lisled on the disclosure form

8. VERIFICATION: This scction must be signed by a principal of the consultant,
contractor or Vendor authorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts,

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statemenis and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Dated; ' 1/29/2016 Signed: (%%/W%/

l.en Vultaggio

Print Name;
Major Account Manager

Title:
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassau County Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to suppott, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
clected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant,
loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the agenda ot any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any
determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such
rule or regulation has been formally proposed.
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Exaoutive Vice President
aeid Chief Innovation Qfficer

Dabbie b. Salce
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Stockholders may visit the

Pitney Bowes corporate governance
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under Our Company — Meet Otr
Leaders — Leadership & Governance
for information concerning the
Company's governance practices,
including the Governance Principies
of the Board of Directors, charters
of the committeas of the haard,

the Company’s Business Practices
Guldelines and the Directors’ Code
of Bustness Conduct and Ethics,
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ACOR (2 CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE vbraaiiii

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NQ RIGHTS UPON THE GERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY QR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the tarms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate dees not confer rights to the
cartificate holder In lieu of sush endorsement(s).

501 MERRITT 7 T TR, Noy:
NORWALK, CT 06856-6010C ni;grilﬁ'ss-
Atin: PilneyBowes.cerlrequest@marsh.com Fax:203-229.6685 .
INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
303700-ALL-GAW-16-17 PITNEY . INSURER a ; ACE American Insurance Company 22667
INSURED . -
BITNEY BOWES INC. INSURER B - Indemnlly Ins Co Of North America 43575
WORLD HEADQUARTERS: InsuREs ¢ ; ACE Fire Underriters Insurance Company 20702
3001 SUMMER STREET! INSURER D ¢
STAMFORD, CT (6926
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-00B685853-03 REVISION NUMBER:6

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DQCUMENT WITH RESFECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED QR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID GLAIMS.
[ADGLTBUBR]

i TYPE OF INSURANCE A A FOUCYEFF 1 POLCYEXD p—
A | X | GCOMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X HDO G27655681 0706 [O701/2017 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
' CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES {En occurrence) | $ 250,000
| MED EXP (Any ane parson) | & 5,000
[ PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 2,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 4,000,000
[ % ] rover [ 1588 [ ]voe PRODUCTS - COMBIOP AGS | $ 4,000,000
OTHER, ]
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Y ISA HOS043114 07012016 |OTI04/2017 C[E gbggggh;gnsmfsw LTy 200,000
"X | any auTO BODILY INJURY (Per parson) | 8
[ | ALLOWNED EDULE|
A | e PROPERrY CAMAGE 15
| X} iren auTos AUTOS o BGe ety §
X s
|| UMBRELLA LIAR OGEUR \,( EAGH OGCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB 3¢ cLamsmane AGGREGATE 5
oep | X rerenions 2
B IWORKERS COMPENSATION WLR CABE0SE3T {ACS) obiRot6  jormti2oly  {x JEER T T
¢ |AND EMPLOYERS LABLITY Yin 8606055 O7INROIE  |O7RI2017 A
R EXRCUTIVE nia| PO o) E.L. EACH AGCIDENT s 2,000,000
Al {Mandatory In HH) WLR CABGO9B43 (CA, MA) 07012018 (OTOV2NT | gy pisease - EA EMPLOYER 3 2,000,000
SN %nggPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLIGY LIMIT | § 2,000,000
DESCRIPTION GF OPERATIONS { LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additfonal Remarks Schedule, may bo attached i more space Is requlred}
Caounty of Nassau Assessment PNCEF e included as addttional insured {except warkars compensziion) as required by weitten contract,
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
Nassau Gounty Gfice of Purchasingd SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
1 West Strest) THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED [N
Mineola, NY 11501 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATVE
of Marsh USA Inc,
| Nancy Kaibfell ROy, oot

©1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




DIVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES
110 State Street — |4 Floor
Albany, NY 12236

Tel: (518) 474-3444
STATE OF NEW YORK Fax: (5]8) 4130104
OFFICE OF TAE STATE COMPTROLLER

THOMAS P. DINAPOLS
STATE COMPTROLLER

January 28, 2016

Anthony Galvin
240 Old Country Road
Mineola, NY 11501

Dear Mr. Galvin:

In response to your request and pursuant fo the Freedom of Information Law, we are
enclosing the following opinion .

Opn No. 79-150

This opinion represents the views of the Office of the State Comptroller at the time 1t was
rendered. The opinion may no longer represent those views if, among other things, thers have
been subsequent court cases or statutory amendments that bear on the issues discussed in the
opinion,

Very truly yowrs,

“?/”ﬁ/xfé‘/ﬁ/;( Wrdes

Mitchell S. Morris
Associate Coungel
ME&EM:lah
Ene,
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TAWS OF 1973, CHAPTER 346, AS AMENDED (MCKINNEY 'S UNCONSOLIDATED LAWS,
§8118): The leasing of burglar, hold-up and Fire alerm systems by &

regional OTB eorporation to protect its betting offlices and executlve
ofPice is not subject to compebitive bidding requirements.

[T

This opinion represents the views of the Office of the State Comptroller at the time it was
cendered. The opinion may no longer represent those views if, among other things, there
have been subsequent court cases or statutory amendments that bear on the issues
discussed in the opinion. :

June 12, 1979 79150

Mark L. Lleberman, Bsg.

Jounsel

Wassau Reglonal Off-Track Betbing
Corporetion

220 Pulbon Avenue
Hempstead, New York 11550

Re: Nassau County
Deay Mr. Lisbermsn: '
This is in reply Lo your recent letter in which you stated

" that the Nessau Regional OTB Corporation has 23 branch offices

and an execubive office, all of which are presently equipped
with various burglar, hold-up and fire alarm systems. These.
syshems were installed and are saryiced puvstuant to five-yéay
1lease agreements covering each of the offices and entered into
after sdvertisement for bids in 1975, when the corporation firat
went into business. The leass sgreements will begin to expire
commencing in Jamaary, 1580 and, with respect to entering into
new conbracts, you ask the following:

(1) Must the corporation advertlse for bids for new con-
tracts or may 1t renew the leases with the present conbractor
without seeking rew bids?

(2) It the corporatlon must advertise Tor new bids, should
the specificabions reguira that the cont of installing the equipw
ment be included in the bid price?

Tn & recent opinion addressed Lo you, this Deparbment Con-
cluded bhat, pursuant to section 8118 of MeKinney's Unconsolidatad
Lawe (L 1973, Ch 346, as amended), reglonal OTB corporations are
required to let public work and purchase contracte Involving an
expenditurs of more than $10,000 to the lowest responsible bidder




- | 7G=150

after advertisement for bilds, anless thers is an exceptlon 1n law
which operates Go guspend the operation of the bidding statutes

’ (Opns 8t Comp, 1979, No. To9-183, not yet reﬁqrted). However, we
' Rave also consistently meinbained bthat the hiring or leasing of
per&on&l.prcparty 18 not subject to competitive bidding reguire- ,
mente provided the agresmant ls & Gtrue laage and nob an agreewent '
to leafe where bhe gfrect is a purchase (see, &.Z., UpNS 8% Comp, '
1978, No. 78-519, also addressed to you).

In this sibuation, we have baen advised bhat the corporabion i
advertised for bids for the cost of ingtalling snd maintaining
the varlous items of equipment necessaly for the alaym syshems.
Title bo Lthe equipment remalns in the contractor and it is never
intended to paas to the OTB corporation.,

The guestlon ag to the possible need to sdvertise for blds
for installiation and meintenance of Hhe verious alarm systems
apparently ariscs &s 2 result of the declsicn in Signacon Controly
Inc. v Muivoy, 32 NY2d HiO, 345 Nys2d 527, 298 N :
Th thet case, the Jourt of Appeals hald that an agreement under
which & county was to acqulrs title to a sentral control console
which would recalve fire alarms from Lransultters sold to private
entitles (1., restaurants, stores, hospitals) was subject to the
“ecompetitive Piading requirements of sechtion 103 of the GQoneral

ﬂ" Municipal Law. In our View, however, the holding in that csse is
not applicable hers bhecause there is ne intention to convay title
to any of the alarm equipment Go the OTB corporation and, hence,
no purchase contract within the meaning of sectlon 103.

Tnasmuch as the propesed agresments involve the leasing
yvather Hhen the purchase of alnrym aguipment, it is ouy opinilon
shat such agreements ave nob subjest to coupetitive bldding
requlrements. The fact thet the inibial lease agrespents wore
anﬁaiadiinto after adverbisements foxr blds does nob alter our
concluslon. . -

We trust that the above will be of assigtance to you.

Very truly Jours,

EDWARD V., REGAN
atate Comptrollier

By

¥ermeth ¥. Hartman
Assoceiate Counsel

‘ Bandel/gl

i
)i
)

i




Cleary, Robert

From: McDermott, Dennis

Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2016 3:07 PM
To: Grippo, Daniel P; Cleary, Robert

Cc Delle, Jaclyn

Subject: RE: copy of 79150

Dan

My research (Jackie concurs) shows one NY Court of Appeals case (Exley v. Village of Endicott 51 N.Y. 2d 426 ~ 1980)
wherein the Court stated that a municipality may lease equipment without complying with the competitive bidding
requirement of GML Section 103. | have shepardized the case and have found no cases contradicting or overturning
HExleyH

Dennis F. McDermott

Deputy Bureau Chief

Municipal Transactions Bureau

Counsel, Department of Parks, Recreation and Museums
Nassau County Attorney’s Office

516-571-1957

NOTICE: The information contained in {(and attached to) this e-mail is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the
designated recipient(s) named above. This message may be an attorney/client communication and, if so, is privileged and
confidential. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this document
in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you received this
communication in error, please notify us immediately by reply e-mail, and delete the original message (including any aitachments).

From: Grippo, Daniel P

Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2016 1:.07 PM

To: Cleary, Robert <RCleary@nassaucountyny.gov>

Cc: McDermott, Dennis <dmcdermott@nassaucountyny.gov>; Delle, Jaclyn <JDeIle@nassaucountyny gov>
Subject: Re: copy of 79150

Dennis and Jackie will check for any updates. Distinction being made between a lease and a purchase, the opinion
based on logic that GML 103 pertains to purchases. Lease must be a "true lease" so there can't be a de minimis (ex. One
dollar} purchase price at end of lease term.
Sent from my iPhone

Hi Dan,

This issue may have been raised recently, but in case it hasn’t, is the attached opinion current and

applicable, and if so are there any limitations or caveats that you can find? | was not aware that lack of

transfer of ownership is sufficient cause to dispense with competitive bidding.

Thank you,



Robert

Robert Cleary

Director of Procurement Compliance
Nassau County

1550 Franklin Avenue, Room 225
Mineola, NY 11501

(516) 571-1939
rcleary@nassaucountyny.gov

From: Mills, Linda A

Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2016 12:42 PM
To: Cleary, Robert

Cc: Colasurdo, Claudia

Subject: FW: copy of 79150

| just received this. Sending it your way.

From: Galvin, Anthony

Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2016 12:39 PM

To: Colasurdo, Claudia <ccolasurdo @nassaucountyny.gov>
Cc: Mills, Linda A <Imills@nassaticountyny.gov>

Subject: RE:; copy of 79150

See attached.

Anthony Galvin
Nassau County Comptroller's Office
Vendor Claims

“This transmisslon {Including any attachments) may contain confidential information, privileged material {including material protected by the attorney-
client or ather applicable privileges), or constliute non-public informatien, Any use of this Information by anyone other than the Intended reclpient is
prohibited. If you have received this transmisston in error, please immediately reply to the sender and delete this infarmation from your system. Use,
dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this transmission by unintended recipients Is not authorized and may be unlawiful.”

From: Colasurdo, Claudia

Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2016 12:01 PM
To: Galvin, Anthony

Subject: copy of 79150

Anthony ,
Do you have a copy of resolution 79-1507

Thanks,
Claudia

Claudia Colusurdo.

Techinical Coordinator

Nassau County Office of Purchasing
T West Street

Mineolo, NY 11507

(516} 571-6433



<NYS 79-150.pdf>



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TC SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal yearended December 31,2015  Commission file number; 13579

PITNEY BOWES INC.
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PART 1

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K {Annual Report} contains statements that are forward-looking. We want to caution readers that any forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 may change based on
various factors. These forward-locking statements are based on current expectations and assumptions that are subject to tisks and uncertainties and actual
results could differ materially. Words such as "estimate,” "target," "project,” "plan," "believe,” "expect," "anticipate,” “intend" and similar expressions may
identify such forward-looking statements. We undertake ne obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. Factors which could cause future financial performance to differ materially from the expectations as expressed in any
forward-looking statement made by or on our behalfinclude, without limitation:

+ declining physical mail volomes

+  competitive factors, including pricing pressures, technological developments and introduction of new products and services by competitors

+  our success in developing new preducts and services, including digital-based products and services, obtaining regulatory approval if required, and
the market’s acceptance of these new products and services

+  opur ability to successfully implement and transition to a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system in the United States without significant
disruption to existing operations

+  the success of our investment in rebranding the company to build market awareness and create new demand for our businesses
+ changes in postal or banking regulations

«  macroeconomic factors, including global and regional business conditions that adversely impact customer demand, access to capital markets at
reasonable costs, changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and fuel prices

« the continued availability and security of key information systems and the cost to comply with infortnation security requirements and privacy laws
+  third-party suppliers' ability to provide product components, assemblies or inventories

«  oursuccess at managing the relationships with our cutsource providers, including the costs of cutsourcing functions and operations not central to
ourbusiness '

+  the loss of some of ourlarger clients in the Global Ecommerce segment

+  integrating newly acquired businesses including operations and product and service offerings

+  intellectual property infiilngement claims

+  gursuceess at managing customer credit risk

»  significant changes in pension, health care and retiree medical costs

«  ingcome fax adjustments or other regulatory levies for prior audit years and changes in tax laws, rulings or regulations

»  adistuption of our businesses due to changes in intemational or national political conditions, including the use of the mail for transmitting harmful
biological agents or other tetrorist attacks

+  acts of nature
Other risks that may also adversely impact s are more fully described under Item 1A, "Risk Factors” in this Annual Repert.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

Pitney Bowes Inc. {we, us, our, or the company), was incorporated in the state of Delaware in 1920. We are a global technelogy company offering innovative
products and selutions that help our clients navigate the complex world of commerce, We offer customer information management, location intelligence and
customer engagement products and solutions to help our clients market te their customers, and shipping and mailing, and cross boxder ccommerce products
and solutions that enable the sending of parcels and packages acress the globe. More than 1.5 million clients around the world rely on our products, selutions
and services. For more infommation about us, our products, services and solutions, visit www.pb.com.




Our Strategy and Business Segments

Our business is organized around three distinet sets of solutions -~ Small and Medium Business Solutions (SMB), Enterprise Business Selutiens and Digital
Commerce Solutions (DCS).

Small and Medinm Business Solutions

We are a global leader in providing a full range of equipment, sofiware, supplies and services that enable our clients to efficiently create physical and digital
mail and e¢vidence postage for the sending of mail, flats and parcels. We segment the SMB Solutions group between our North America operations,
comprising the U.S. and Canadian businesses, and our International operaticns, comprising all other SMB businesses globally. We are a leading provider of
mailing systems globally with about 900,000 meters installed in our North America cperations and over 300,000 meters installed elsewhere, This business is
characterized by a high level of recurring revenue driven by rental, lease and loan arrangements, contract support services and supplies sales,

Enterprise Business Solutions

Our Enterprise Business Solutions group includes equipment and services that enable large enterprises to process inbound and outbound mail. The Enterprise
Business Solutions group includes our Production Mail operations and Presort Services operations,

Production Mail

Our product and service offerings enable clients to integrate all areas of print and mail into an end-to-end production environment from message creation to
dispatch while realizing cost savings on postage. The core products within this segment include high-speed, high-volume inserting equipment, customized
sortation products for mail and parcels and high-speed digital color printing systems that create high-value, relevant and timely communications targeted to
our clients' customers, Beginning in 2016, we will offer new services and technical innovations including cloud connectivity for machines,

Presort Services

We are a national outsource provider of mail presort services for first-class, standard-class and flat mail in the U.S. and a workshare partner of the United States
Postal Service (USPS). Our Presort Services network and fully-customized proprietary technology provides our clients with end-to-end solutions from pick up
at their location to delivery into the postal system network, We process appreximately 15 billion pieces of mail annually and are able to expedite mail
delivery and optimize postage savings for our clients.

Digital Comnerce Solutions

Within the Digital Commerce Solutiens group, we provide a broad range of solutions, including customer information management, location intelligence
and customer engagement software and shipping management and cross border ecommerce solutions for businesses of all sizes, These solutions are primarily
delivered as traditional software licenses, enterprise platfonms, software-as-a-service (SaaS) and on-demand applications. Our Digital Commerce Solutions
group includes Software Solutions and Global Ecommerce.

Software Solutions

Custonter information management selutions help businesses hamess and deliver a deep and broad understanding of their customers and their context, such
as location, relationships, propensity, senfiment and influence. The trusted data and associated insights allow our clients to deliver a personalized customer
experience across multiple channels, manage risk and cempliance, and improve sales, marketing and service effectiveness. We are one of the market leaders
in the data quality segment. Large corporations and govemment agencies rely on our products in complex, high-velume, transactional environments to
support their business processes.

Location intelligence solutions enable our clients to erganize and understand the complex relationships between location, geographic and other forms of
data to drive business decisions and customer experiences. Our location intelligence solutions use predictive analytics, location, geographic and socio-
demographic characteristics, which enable our clients to hamess the power of location to better serve their customers, solve business problems, deliver
location-based services and nitimately drive business growth,

Customcr cngagement solutions provide clients with insight and understanding into customer behavior and interactions across the entire customer lifecycle,
enabling them to orchestrate impactful, relevant and timely physical and digital interactions. When coupled with our inserting, sortation and digital print
products, we are able to provide clients an all-inclusive solution that enables them to create, print and distributc wide-spread targeted customer
communications. Our customer engagernent solutions enable our clients to create connected experiences that positively influence future consumer behavior
and generate business growth.




Global Ecommerce

Global Ecommerce includes our cross-border ecommerce solutions and shipping management selutions. Qur cross-border ecommerce technology and
services platforms enable retailers to transact with consumers globally, With our proprietary technology, we are able to manage all aspects of the international
shopping and shipping expetience, including multi-currency pricing, payment processing, frand management, caleulation of fully landed costs by quoting
duty, taxes and shipping at checkout, compliance with procluct restrictions, expoit complexities and documentation requirements for customs clearance and
brokerage and global logistics services. Our cross-border ecommerce software platforms are currently utilized by over 250 direct merchants as well as a major
online martketplace enabling millions of parcels te be shipped te over 200 countries and territeries worldwide, In 2015, we expanded cur cross-border
ecommerce capabilities through the acquisition of Borderfiee, Inc. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Shipping management solutions enable clients to reduce transportation and logistics costs, select the best carrier based on need and cost, improve delivery
times and track packages in real-time. We also offer scalable global logistics management systems that can be integrated into mail centers for the office and
retail markets, as well as desktop and production shipping environments,

See Item 7, "Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for additional segment and geographic information.

Client Service

We have a client care service organization that provides telephone, online and on-site support to diagnose and repair our increasingly complex mailing
equipment, production printers and sophisticated software solutions. Most of our support services are provided underannual contracts.

Sales and Marketing

We market our products and services through a direct and inside sales force, direct mailings, telemarketing, independent dealers and distributors and web
channels, We sell to a variety of business, govermmental, institutional and other organizations, and in our Ecommerce business only, we also sell to
consumers as well as a variety of businesses. We have a broad base of clients and are not dependent upon any one client or type of client for a significant part
of our total revenue, )

In 2014, we began a phased roll-out in our SMB Soluticns operations of a strategy designed to provide clients broader access to products and services,
improve the sales process and reduce costs by shifiing more of our client coverage fiom field sales to inside sales, During 20135, we successfully rolled out this
strategy wortdwide and in 2016, we will begin shifiing more client coverage activity ta web channels.

We have made, and are continuing to make, significant investments in the rebranding of the company. These investments include marketing and advertising
spending designed to build market awareness and client demand for our products and services, and enhance our operational and go-to-market changes,
including how we sell to and service clients.

Competition

All of our businesses face competition from a number of companies. Our competitors range from large, multinational companies that compete against many of
our businesses to smaller, more narrowly focused regional and local firms. We compete on the basis of technology and innovation; breadth of product
offerings; our ability to design and tailor solutions to specific client needs; performance; client service and support; price; quality and brand.

We musi continue to invest in our cutrent technelogies, products and selutions, and in the development of new technologies, products and solutiens in order
to maintain and improve our competitive position. We will encounter new competitors as we transition to higher value markets and offerings and enter new
markets.

A summary of the competitive environment for each of our business segments is as follows:

North America Mailing and Intemational Mailing

We face significant competition from other mail equipment and software companies, companies that offer products and services as altemative means of
message communications and non-traditional competitors that offer shipping and mailing products and services through online solutions. The principal
competitive factors include the composition of offerings between software and hardware solutions, pricing, available financing and payment offerings,
product reliability, support services, industry knowledge and expertise and attractiveness of altemative communication methods, Our competitive advantage
includes our breadth of physical and web-based digital offerings, customer service and our extensive knowledge of the shipping and mailing industry.




Through our wholly owned subsidiary, The Pitney Bowes Bank (the Bank), we offer a revolving credit solution to our SMB clients in the United States that
ehables them to pay for postage, the rental of certain mailing equipment and purchase products, supplies and services. The Bank also provides an interest-
bearing deposit solution to those clients in the United States who prefer to prepay postage. We also provide similar revolving credit solutions to our clients in
Canada and the UK but do not offer these through the Bank in overseas markets. Our financing operations face competition, in varyving degrees, from large,
diversified financial institutions, including leasing companies, commercial finance companies and commercial banks, as well as small, specialized firms. Not
all our competitors are able to offer these financing and payment solutions te their customers and we believe these solutions differentiate us from our
competitors and are a source of competitive advantage. The Bank is chartered as an Industrial Bank under the laws of the State of Utah, and regulated by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the Utah Department of Finaneial Institutions.

Production Mail

We face comopetition from other companies that offer large production printers, inserters or sorters. We alse face competition from the fact that some
companies choose to outsource although those cutsource providers can also be our customers, Our competitive advantage lies in our ability to offer all of
these products and services and integrate them inte an end-te-end solution, The principal competitive factors include functionality, reliability, productivity,
price and support.

Presort Services

We face competition from regional and local prosort providers, service bureaus that offor presort solutions as part of a larger bundle of cutsoureing setrvices
and large entitics that have the capability to presort their own mailings in-house. The principal competitive factors include innovative service, delivery
speed, industry expertise and ecenomies of scale. Our competitive advantage includes our extensive netwoik of presort facilities capable of processing
significant volumes of mail and our innovative and proprietary technology that enables us to provide our clients with reliable and accurate services at
maximuin digcounts,

Software Solutions

We operate in several highly competitive and rapidly evolving markets and face competition ranging from large global companies that offer a bread suite of
solutions to smaller, more narrowly-focused companies that can design very targeted solutions. The principal competitive factors include reliability,
functionality and ease of integration and use, scalability, innovation, support services and price. We compete based on the accuracy and processing speed of
our solutions, particulatly those used in cur location intelligence selutions, the breadth and scalability of our products and selutions, our geocoding and
revetse peocoding capabilities, and cur ability to identify rapidly changing customer needs and develop technologies and solutions to meet these changing
needs,

Global Ecommgreg

The market for international ecommerce software and fulfillment services is highly fragmented, and includes competitors of various sizes, including
companies with greater financial resources than us, some that specialize in point solutions or fieight forwarding services, full-service ecommerce business
process outsourcers and online marketplaces with international logistic support. In addition, major global delivery services companies are acquiring the
technology to improve their cross border ecommerce shipping capabilities, The principal competitive factors include reliability, fiunctionality and ease of
integration and use, scalability, innovation, suppert services and price. We compete based on the accuracy, reliability and scalability of our platform, and our
ability to provide our clients and their customers a one-siop full-service cross border ecommerce experience.

Financing Solutions

We offer a varicty of finance and payment solutions to clients to finance their equipment and product purchases, rental and lease payments, postage
replenishment and supplies purchases. We establish credit approval limits and procedures based on the credit quality of the client and the type of product or
service provided to control risk in extending credit to clients. In addition, we utilize a systematic decision program for certain leases. This program is
designed to facilitate fow dollar transactions by utilizing historical payment pattems and losses realized for ¢lients with common credit characteristics. The
program defines the criteria under which we will accept a client without performing a more detailed credit investigation, such as maximum cquipment cost, a
clicnt's time in business and payment experience,

We closely monitor the portfolio by analyzing industry sectors and delinquency trends by product line, industry and client to ensure reserve levels and credit
policies reflect current trends. Management continues to closely monitor credit lines and collection resources and revise credit policies as necessary to be
more selective in managing the portfolio.




Research, Development and Intellectual Property

We invest in research and development programs to develop new products and solutions, enhance the effeciiveness and functionality of existing products
and solutions and deliver high value technology, innovative software and differentiated services in high value segments of the market. As & result of cur
research and development efforts, we have been awarded a number of patents with respect to several of our existing and planned products. However, cur
businesses are not materially dependent on any one patent or license or group of related patents or licenses. Research and development expenditures were
$110 million, in each of 2015, 2014 and 2013,

Material Suppliers

We depend on third-patty suppliers for a variety of services, components, supplies and a large portion of our product manufacturing. In certain instances, we
rely on single-sourced or limited-sourced suppliers around the world because the relationship is advantageous due to quality, price, or there are no altemative
sources. We have not historically experienced shortages in services, components or products and believe that our available sources for materials, components,
services and supplies are adequate.

Regulatory Matters

We are subject to the regulations of postal authorities worldwide related to product specifications and business practices involving our postage meters. We
are further subject to the regulations of the State of Utah Department of Financial Institutions and the FDIC with respect to the operations of the Bank and
certain company affiliates that provide services to the Bank. We are also subject to the regulations of transportation, customs and other trade authorities
worldwide related to the cross-border shipment of equipment, materials and parcels. In addition, we are subject to regulations worldwide concerning data
privacy and security for our businesses that use, process and store certain personal, confidential or proprietary data.

Employees and Employee Relations

AtDecember 31, 2015, we have approximately 10,500 employees in North America and 4,300 employees intemationally, We believe that our current
relations with employees are good. Management keeps employees informed of decisions and enceurages and implements employee suggestions whenever
practicable.

Available Information

Qur Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments thereto filed with, ot furnished to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC), are available, free of charge, through the Investor Relations section of our website at
www.pb.com/investorrelations or from the SEC's website at www.sec.gov, as soen as reasonably practicable afier these reports are electronically filed with, or
furnished to, the SEC. The other information found on our website is not pait of this or any other report we file with or firnish to the SEC,

You may also read and copy any document we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Sireet, NE, Washington, DC 20549 or request
copies of these documents by writing to the Office of Public Reference. Call the SEC at (800) 7320330 for further information on the operations of the Public
Reference Room and copying charges.




Executive Officers of the Registrant

Qur executive officers are as follows:

Executive

Name Age Title Qfficer Singe
Marc B. Lautenbach 54  President and Chief Executive Cfficer 2012
Daniel J. Goldstein 54 Executive Vice President and Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary 2010
Robett Guidotti 58 Executive Vice President and President, Software Solutions 2016
Abby F. Kohnstamm 62 Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer 2013
Michael Monahan 55 Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer 2005
RogerJ. Pilc 48 Executive Vice President and Chief Innovation Officer 2013
Mark L. Shearer 59 Executive Vice President and President, Pitney Bowes SMB Mailing Solutions 2013
Lila Snyder 43 Executive Vice President and President, Global Ecommerce 2016
Christoph Stehinann 53 Executive Vice President and President, Bnterprise Solutions Group 2016
Johnna G. Torsone 05 Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer 1993
Maik F. Wright 58 Executive Vice President, Strategic Growth Initiatives 2013

There are no family relationships among the above officers. All of the officers have served in various executive positions with the company for at least the
past five years except as described below:

M. Lantenbach was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of the company in December 2012. Befote joining Pitney Bowes, Mr. Lautenbach held
numerous positions during his career at IBM, which he joined in 1985. His leadership roles at IBM included serving as Vice President Small and Medium
Business in Asia Pacific from 1998-2000, General Manager of IBM Global Small and Medium Business from 2000-2005, General Manager of IBM North
America from 2005-2010, and Managing Partner, North Ametica, for IBM Global Business Services.

Mz Guidotti was appointed Executive Vice President and President, Software Solutions in January 2016, Before joining Pitney Bowes, Mr. Guidotti has been
in the sofiware industry for over 20 years and held a series of executive positions at IBM including General Manager, Software Sales where he was
responsible for sales, technical sales, and channels for the $23 billion Sofiware portfolio worldwide.

Ms. Kohnstamm joined the company as Executive Viee President and Chief Marketing Officer in June 2013. Before joining Pitney Bowcs, Ms. Kohnstamm
served as President of Abby F. Kohnstamm & Associates, Inc., a marketing and consulting firm.

M. Pilc joined the company as Executive Vice President and Chief Innovation Officer in June 2013. Before joining Pitncy Bowes, Mr. Pilc served as General
Manager at CA Technologies, where he was responsible for the company’s Industries, Solutions and Alliances unit.

Mr. Sheater joincd the company as Exccutive Vice President and President, Pitney Bowes SMB Mailing Solutions in April 2013. Before joining Pitney
Bowes, Mr, Shearer held numerous positions during his 30 year career at IBM, including general management, business and product strategy, and markefing,
Before his retivement from [BM in 2010, he served as Vice President, Marketing and Strategy for IBM’s hard ware business.

Ms. Snyder was elected to the oftice of Executive Vice President by the board of dircctors in January 2016. She joined the company in Nevember 2013 as
President, Document Messaging Technologies (DMT) and became President, Global Ecommerce in June 2015, Prior to joining Pitney Bowes, Ms. Snyder was
a Partner at McKinsey & Company, Inc. In her 15 years at McKinsoy, she focused on serving clients in the technology, media and communications sectors
and was the leader of McKinsey's Stamford cffice.




Mr Wright joined the company as Executive Vice President and President, Pitney Bowes Software Solutions in April 2013, He was elected Executive Vice
President and President, Pitney Bowes Digital Commerce Solutions in February 2014. In January 2016 he was ¢lected Executive Vice President, Strategic
Growth Initiatives. Before joining Pitney Bowes, Mr. Wright served as Executive Vice President, Enterprise Solutions Group for Infor Global Selutions.

ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

Cur operations face certain risks that should be considered in evaluating our business. We manage and mitigate these risks on a proactive basis, including
through the use of an enterprise risk management program, Nevertheless, the following risk factors, some of which may be beyond our control, could
materially impaci out business, financial condition, results of operations, brand and reputation, and may cause future results to be materiglly different than
our current expectations. These risk factors are not intended te be all inclustve.

We are subject to postal regulations and processes, which could adversely affect our vevenue and profitability.

A significant portion of our revenue and profitability is directly or indirectly subject to regulation and oversight by postal authorities worldwide. We depend
on a healthy postal sector in the geographic markets where we do business, which could be influenced positively or negatively by legislative or regulatory
changes in those countries. Our revenue and profitability in a particular couniry could be affected by adverse changes in postal regulations, the business
processes and practices of individual posts, the decision of a post to enter into particular markets in direct competition with us and the impact of any of these
changes on postal competitors that do not use our products or services. These changes could affect product specifications, service offerings, client behavior
and the overall mailing industry.

If we are not able to respond to the continuing decline {n the volume of physical mail delivered via traditional postal services, our vesults of operations and
profitability could be adversely impacied.

Declining mail volomes has had an adverse impact on our revenues and profitability and is expected to continue to influence our revenue and profitability in
the fiture. We continue to employ strategies for stabilizing the mailing business which include new product and service offerings, transitioning our eurrent
products and services to more digital offerings and providing our clients broader access to products and services through online and direct sales channels.
There is no guarantee that these offerings will be widely accepted in the marketplace, and they will likely face competition fiom oxisting and emerging
alternative products and services.

Further, an accelerated or sudden decline in physical mail volumes could have an adverse effect on our mailing business, An accelerated or sudden decline
could result from, among other things, changes in our clients' communication behavior, changes in communication technologies or legislation or regulations
that mandate electronic substitution, prohibit certain types of mailings, increase the difficulty of using information or materials in the mail, or impose higher
taxes or fees on mailing or postal services.

If we are not successful at meeting the continuing challenges faced in our mailing business, or if physical mail volumes were to experience an accelerated or
sudden decline, our financial results could be negatively impacted.

We may not realize the anticipated benefits from our implementation of a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) svstem, and the transition fc the new
ERP system may nof be uninterrupted ov ervorree.

We have made, and will continue to make, significant investments in the development and implementation of a new ERP system that is expected to provide
operating cost savings through the elimination of redundant systems and strategic efficiencies through the use of a standardized, integrated system. In the
fourth quarter of 2015, we completed the implementation of the ERP system for cur Canadian operations and will begin implementing this system in the U.S.
in 2016, If the implemeniation of the ERP system in the U.S. is not successful, or is delayed, the expected operating cost savings and strategic efficiencies
may be delayed or may not be obtained or sustainable and may prevent us from introducing new products or services.

Further, the transition to the new ERP system will affect numerous systems necessary for the company's operation. If we fail to correctly implement one or
more components of the ERP system, we could experience significant distuption to our operations. Such disruptions could include, ameng other things,
tempozary loss of data, inability to process certain orders, failure of systems to communicate with each other and the inability to track or reconcile key data.




If we are unable to protect our information technolugy systems against service interruptions, misappropriation of date, or breaches of security resulting
from cyber-attacks or other events, or we encounter other unforgseen difficulties in the operation of our information technology systems, our operations
could be disrupted, our reputation may be harmed and we could be subject io legal liability or regulatory enforcement action.

We rely on the continuous and wninterrupted performance of our information technology systems to support numerous business processes and activities, to
support and service our clients, te support consumer transacticns and to support postal setvices. Several of our businesses use, process and stere proprietary
information and sensitive or confidential data relating to cur businesses, our clients, consumers and our employees. Privacy laws and similar regulations in
many jurisdictions where we do business require that we take significant steps to safeguard such information, and such legal requirements continue to evolve,
In today's environment there are numerous risks to eybersecurity and privacy, including individual and groups of criminal hackers, industrial espionage,
employee errors and/or malfeasance and technological errors. These cyber threats are constantly evolving, thereby increasing the difficulty of detecting and
successfully defonding against them, We have security systems and procedures in place designed to ensure the continuous and uninterrpted performance of
our information technology systems and protect against unauthorized access to such information. However, there is no guarantee that these security measures
will prevent or detect the unautherized access by expetienced computer programmers, hackers or others. Successful breaches could, ameng other things,
tesult in the unauthorized disclosure, theft and misuse of company, client, consumer and employee sensitive and confidential information, disrapt the
performance of our information technolegy systems and deny services fo our clients. Additionally, we could be exposed to potential liability, litigation,
govemnmental inquiries, investigations of regulatory enforcement actions, our brand and reputation damaged, and we could be subject to the payment of fines
or other penalties, legal ¢laims by our clients and significant remediation costs.

QOur systems are also subject to adverse acts of nature, computer viruses, vandalism, power loss, computer or communications failures and other unexpected
events. We have business continuity and disaster recovery plans in place to protect our business opetations in case of such events; however, there can be no
guaranice that these plans will function as designed. If our information technology systems are damaged or cease to function properly, we could be prevented
from fulfilling orders and servicing clients and postal services, Also, we may have to make a significant investment to repair or replace these systems, and
could suffer loss of eritical data and interruptions or delays in our operations.

We depend on third-party suppliers and oulsource providers and our business could be adversely affected if we fail to manage these vendors effectively.

We depend on third-party suppliers and outsource providers for a variety of services, components and supplies, including a large portion of our product
manufacturing, the hosting of our sofiware-as-a-service offerings, as well as the logistics portion of our cross-berder ecommerce business, and some non-core
functions and operations. In certain instances, we rely on single-sourced or limited-sourced suppliers and outsourcing vendors around the world because
doing so is advantageous due to quality, price or lack of altemative sources, If production or services were interrupted and we were not ablg to find altemate
third-party suppliers, we could experience disruptions in manufacturing and operations including product shortages, higher freight costs and re-engineering
costs. If outsourcing services were interrupted, not performed, or the performance was poot, our ability to process, record and report transactions with our
clients, consumers and other constituents could be impacted. Such interruptions in the provision of supplies and/or services could impact our ability to meet
client demand, damage our reputation and client relationships and adversely affect cur revenue and profitability.

Capital market disruptions and credit rating downgrades could adversely affect our ability lo provide competitive financing services to our clients and to
fund various discretionary priorities.

Our financing activities include, among other things, providing competitive financing offerings to our clients and funding various discretionary priorities,
such as business investments, strategic acquisitions, share repurchases and dividend payments. We fund these activities through a combination of cash
generated fiom operations, deposits held in the Bank, commercial paper borrowings and long-term bonowings.

Our ability to fund these activities is dependent, in part, upon cur ability to borrow and the cost of borrowing in U.S. capital markets. This ability and the
cost, in tun, is dependent upon our eredit ratings and is subject to capital market volatility. A credit ratings downgrade, an increase in the company's credit
default swap spread, material capital market disrupticns, significani withdrawals by depositors at the Bank, adverse changes to our industrial loan charter ora
significant decline in cash flow could impact our ability to provide competitive finance offerings to our clicnts and fund other financing activities, which in
twin, could adversely affect our revenue, profitability and financial conditien,




The international nature of our Global Ecommerce segment subjects us to increased customs and rvegulatory risks from cross-border transactions, and
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Further, the loss of any of our largest clients in our Global Ecommerce segment could have a material
adverse effect on the segment.

International sales generated by our clients precessing transactions through our platform are the primary scurce of both revenue and profit for the Global
Beommerce segment. Our Global Ecommerce segment is subject to significant trade regulations, taxes, and duties throughout the world. Any changes to these
regulations could potentially impose increased documentation and delivery requirements, increase costs, delay delivery times, and subjeet us to additional
liabilities, which could negatively impact cur ability to compete in international markets and adversely impact our revenues and profitability,

The operating results of, and sales generated from, many of our clients’ intemationally focused websites running on our platform are exposed to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations, Currently, our platforms are located in the United States and United Kingdom and a majority of consumers meking purchases
through these platforms are in a limited number of foreign countries. A strengthening of the U.S. Dollar or British Pound relative to currencies in the countries
where we do the most business impacts our ability to compete intemationally as the cost of similar international products improves relative to the cost of U.S.
and UK. retailers' products. A strong U.S. Dollar or British Pound would likely result in a decrease in international sales volumes, which would adversely
affect the segment’s revenue and profitability,

The Global Ecommerce segment is dependent on a relatively small number of significant clients and business partners for a large portion of its revenue. The
loss of any of these larger clients or business partners, or a substantial reduction in their use of our products or services, could have a material adverse effect
on the revenue and profitability of the segment. There can be no assurance that our larger clients and business partners will continue to utilize our products or
services at current levels, or that we would be able to replace any of these clients or business partners with others who can generaie revenue at current levels.

Our inability to obtain and protect our intellectual property and defend against claims of infringement by others may negatively impaci our operating
restults,

Our business success depends in part upon protecting our intellectual property rights, including proprietary technology developed or obtained through
acquisitions. We rely on copyrights, patents, trademarks and trade secrets and other intellectual property laws to establish and protect our proprietary rights. If
we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights, our competitive position may suffer which could adversely affect our revenue and profitability.

From time to time, third-parties may claim that we, our clients, or cur suppliers, have inflinged their intellectual property rights. These claims, if successful,
may require us to redesign affected products, enter into costly settlement or license apreements, pay damage awards, or face a temporary or permanent
injunction prohibiting us from marketing or selling certain products.

FFwe faif to comply with government contraciing regulations, our operating vesults, brand name and reputation could suffer.

We have a significant number of contracts with governmenta! entities. Government confracts are subject to extensive and complex procurement laws and
regulations, along with regular audits and investigations by govemment agencies. If one or more government agencies discovors instances of contraciual
non-compliance in the course of an audit or investigation, we may be subject to various civil or eriminal penalties and administrative sanctiens, which could
include the termination of the contract, reimbursement of payments received, fines and debarment from doing business with one or more governments. Any of
these events could not only affect us financially, but also adversely affect our brand and repuiation.

We may not realize the anticipated benefiis of strategic acquisitions and divestitures, which may havm our financial results.

As we increase our focus towards providing mote digital technology and software solutions while maintaining a leadership role in the mailing industry, we
may make strategic acquisitions or divest certain businesses, These acquisitions and divestitures may involve significant risks and uncertainties, which could
bave an adverse effect on our operating results, including:

+  difficulties in achieving anticipated benefits or synergies from acquisitions and divestitures,

+  difficulties in integrating newly acquired businesses and operations, including combining product and service offerings and entering new markets,
or reducing fixed costs previously associated with divested busincsscs;

= the loss of key employees or clients of businesses acquired or divested; and

+  sipnificant charges to eanings for employee severance and other restructuring costs, goodwill and asset impairments and legal, accounting and
financial advisory fees.
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Our tnvestment in rebranding the company and enhancing marketing programs to build the market awareness necessary to create demand for our
businesses may not result in increased revenue and could adversely affect our profitability.

Our new brand strategy and identity are important to the next phase of our global business transformation. Our phased roll-out of the new branding through
an advertising campaign, which is now entering a new phase in its progress, is integrated into the way we sell and service clients, and acguire new clients,
including sales collateral and the digital experience of getiing informaticn, service performance and transacting on our website. These factors are important
to maintaining acceptance of our products and services by our existing clients and achieving increased acceptance with new clients, We expect increased
spending in brand develepment and marketing promotion activities and if this increased spending does not result in increased revenue sufficient to offset
these expenses, our profitability could be adversely affected.

Our operational costs could increase from changes in environmental regulations, or it could be subject to significant liabilities.

We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign environmental protection laws and regulations around the world, including without limitation,
those related to the manufacture, distribution, use, packaging, labeling, recyeling or disposal of our preducts or the products of our clients for whom we
perform services. Environmental rules concerning products and packaging can have a significant impact on the cost of operations or affect cur ability to do
business in certain countries. We are also subject to laws concerning use, discharge or disposal of materials, All of these laws are complex, change frequently
and have tended to become more stringent over time. If we are found {o have violated these laws, we could be fined, criminally charged, otherwise sanctioned
by regulators, or we could be subject to liability and clean-up costs. These risk can apply to both current and legacy operations and sites. From time to time,
we may be involved in litigation over these issues, The amount and timing of costs under environmental laws are difficult to prediet and there can be no
assurance that these costs will not have an adverse effect our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own or lease numerous facilities worldwide, which honse general offices, including our corporate headguarters located in Stamford, Connecticut, sales
offices, service locations, data centers and call centers. We conduct research and development, manufacturing and assembly, product management,
information technology and many other activities at our Global Technology Center located in Danbury, Connecticut. Qur other primary research and
development facility is located in Noida, India, Management believes that our facilities are well maintained, are in good operating condition and are suitable
and adequate for our current business needs.

ITEM 3, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of business, we are routinely defendants in, or party to, a number of pending and threatened legal actions, These may involve litigation
by or against us relating to, among other things, contractual rights under vender, insurance or other contracts; intellectual property or patent rights;
equipment, service, payment or other disputes with clients; or disputes with employees. Some of these actions may be brought as a purported class action on
behalf of a purported class of employees, clients or others.

In December 2013, we received a Civil Investigative Demand (CID) fiom the Department of Justice (DOJ) pursuant to the False Claims Act requesting
documents and information relating to eompliance with certain postal regulatery requirements in our Presort Services business, We provided information to
the DOJ in response to letter requests and the CID, On Qctober 9, 2015, we reached a settlement with the DOJ without any admission of liability, for $7
million, net ofrecoveries.

ITEM 4, MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

PART II

ITEM 5, MARKET FOR THE COMPANY'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded under the symbol "PBI" and is principally traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). At January 21,2016, we had 17,989
common stockhokders of record. The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices, as reported on the NYSE, and the cash dividends paid per share
of cornmon stock, for the periods indicated.

Stocl Price

High Low Dividend Per Share

Third Quarter
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Share Repurchases

We may periodically repurchase shares of our common stock to manage the dilution created by shares issued under employee stock plans and for other
purposes, For the full year 20135, we repurchased 6,655,196 shares of our commen stock at an average share price of $20.35. The following table provides
information about our purchases of cur common stock during the three menths ended December 3§, 2015:

Approximate
Number of dollar valus of
shares purchased shares that may
as part of a be purchased
Number of Average price publicly under the plan (in

paid per share

inning balance

shares purchased announced plan

$100,000
uo00¢

October 2015

HA 2015
December 2015

(1) In September 2015, we received autherization from our Board of Directors to repurchase $100 million of our common stock. The plan does not have an
expiration date.

In February 2016, we received authorization from our Beard of Directors to repurchase an additional $150 million of outstanding stock.

Stock Performance Graph

Qur peer group is comprised of: Alliance Data Systems Corporation, Diebold, Incorporated, DST Systems Inc., EchoStar Coip,, Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc., Fisetv, Inc., Harrig Corporation, Iron Mountain Inc., Lexmark International Inc., NCR Corp., Pitney Bowes Inc.,, R.R. Donnelley & Sons
Company, Rockwell Automation Inc., Unisys Corperation, The Western Union Company and Xerox Corporation.

The accompanying graph shows the annual changes for the five-year period based on the assumption that $100 was invested in Pitney Bowes, the Standard
and Poor's (S&P) 500 Composite Index and our peer group, and that all dividends were reinvested. On a total return basis, $100 invested in Pitney Bowes, the
S&P 500 Composite Index and our peer group on December 31, 2010 would have been worth $115, $181, $173, respectively, on December 31,2015.

All information is based upon data independently provided to us by Standard & Poor's Corporation and is derived fiom their official total return calculation,
Total return for the $&P 500 Composite Index and each peer group is based on market capitalization, weighted for each year. The stock price performance is
not necessarily indicative of fiture stock price performance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table of selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the more detailed consolidated financial statements and related notes
thereto included in Item 8 of this Form 10-1.

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 20113
i v s ,'S,Zaf'y? :

) Net income from continuing operations 3 402,672 § 300,006 3 287612 % 379,107 % 418,967
407,943

333,755 445,163 617,480

$

heet data:

pecember 31,2

2013 2012 2011

2015

; : 99,702 6 TIEASE S esAg 162,622
Long-term debt N $ 2507912  § 2927127 3 3346295 §  3,642375 3,683,909

: N()nctr)rntrcrvlling interests (Preferred stockholders' squity in
subsidiaries) 3 296,370 § 296370 % 296,370 % 296,370 % 296,370

{1) Thesum of earnings per share may not equat the totals due to rounding,
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes, This discussion and
analysis contains forward-looking statements based on management's current expectations, estimates and projections and involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results may differ significantly from those curreatly expressed in our forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those facters
described under "Forward-Looking Statements" and "Risk Factors” contained elsewhere in this Annual Report. All table amounts are presented in thousands
of dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Overview

During 2015, we continued to execute on our strategic priorities to stabilize our mail business, drive operational excellence and grow our business through
digital commerce. We expanded our marketing efforts to build awareness of our unique capabilities and refreshed our brand identity, completed our transition
to a larger inside sales organization (part of our changes in our go-te-market strategy) in major matkets, launched several new products and repositioned our
portfolio through acquisitions and divestitures, We acquired a provider of cross-border ecommerce solutions through a proprietary technology and services
platform that enables retailers to transact with consumers around the world, a provider of technology that enables clients to provide personalized interactive
video communications to their customers, and expanded our presort sites. We also sold our marketing services business, Imagitas, and exited certain
geographic markets as part of our initiative to simplify our geographic footprint. We also continued to reduce costs through our restructuring initiatives and
worked te implement cur new global enterprise resource planning (ERP) system, which was launched in Canada in the fourth quarter of2015.

The U.S. dellar remained strong against other currencies throughout the year, which adversely affected our reported revenues and profitability, both from a
translation perspective as well as a competitive perspective, as the cost of our international competitors’ products and solutions improved relative to products
and solutions manufactured or sold from the U.S. The current strength of the dollar relative to other currencies also affected demand for U.S. goods sold to
consumers in other countries through our global ecommerce eperations,

In the second quarter, we acquired Borderfree and sold Imagitas. As a result we realigned our segment reporting. Our business continues to be organized
around three distinct sets of solutions - Small and Medium Business (SMB) Solutions, Enterprise Business Solutions and Digital Commerce Solutions (DCS).
There were no changes to SMB Solutions or Enterprise Business Solutions. Within DCS, we now report Software Solutions and Global Ecommerce as
reporiable segments. Imagitas, previcusly included in DCS, is now reported in Other.

Revenue for 2015 decreased 6% to $3,578 million compared to $3,822 million in 2014. Revenue was negatively impacted by 3% due io foreign curmrency
translation, 2% from the sale of Imagitas and 1% fiom the exit ofnon-core product lines in Norway and the transition in certain European countries to a dealer
network in the third quarter of 2014 (Divested Businesses). Revenue beunefited by 2% from the acquisition of Bordetfiee.

On a reported basis, equipment sales declined 10%, support services desclined 11%, software declined 10%, rentals revenue declined 9%, financing declined
5% and supplies declined 4%. Partially offsetting these declines, was revenue growth in business services of 3%.

Excluding the impacts of foreign currency, equipment sales declined 3%, primarily due to continued weakness in our intemational markets reflecting
difficult economic circumstances ang productivity distruptions caused by the implementation of our go-to-market strategy primarily in France. Support
services revenue declined 7% and rentals revenue declined 6% due to fewer mailing machines in service and a shift by customers to lower cost, less featured
mailing machines. Support services revenus was also impacted by lower maintenance contracts on produetion mail equipment as some in-house mailers
moved their mail processing to third-party service bureaus who service some of their own equipment. Software revenue declined 5% primarily due to the
inclusion of significant North America licensing deals in 2014, These declines were partially offset by revenuc growth in business services of 3% primarily
due to the acquisition of Borderfree and higher velumes of mail processed in presort services.

Looking at our opetating segments, SMB Solutions revenue declined 9% primarily due to the unfavorable impact from foreign currency translation of 4%,
the continuing decline in installed meters and shift by clients to lower cost, less fully featured machines and declines in our international mailing operations
due to difficult econommic circumstances and preductivity disruptions. Enterprise Business Solutions revenue decreased 3%, primarily due to the unfavorable
impact from currency translation of 3% and lower service revenue in Production Mail, partially offset by increased volumes in Presort Services. DCS revenue
increased 5% primarily due to the acquisition of Borderfree and higher volume of packages shipped from our UK. outbound cross-border service facility,
which began in the fourth quarter of 2014, partially offset by lower sofiware licensing revenue due to the inclusion of significant large licensing deals in
2014, :
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Net income fiom continning operations and carnings per diluted share for the year were $403 million and $2.00, respectively, compared to $300 million and
$1.47, respectively, in 2014, The increase was primarily due to improving gross margins and lower selling, general and administrative expenses due in part to
the benefits of our restructuring actions, changes in our go-to-market strategy and other produetivity initiatives. A 5% increase in the effective tax rate
partially offset these benefits.

We generated cash flow from operations of $515 million, received proceeds of $292 million from the sale of Imagitas and $52 million from the sale of our
former corporate headquarters building and other assets, and issued $90 million of commercial paper. We used cash of $394 million to acquire businesses,
$365 million to reduce debt, $166 million to fund capital investments, $168 million to pay dividends to our stockholders and noncontrelling interests and
$132 million to repurchase our common stock, At December 31,2013, cash and cash equivalents was $651 million.

Outlook

Our growth initiatives continue to focus on leveraging our expertise in physical and digital communications, hybrid communications and the develepment
of produects, software, services and solutions that help our ¢lients connect with customers to power commerce and grow their businesses,

In 2016, we will continue to invest in the implementation of our ERP system in the United States and launch a new advertising campaign. We anticipate the
continued benefits from our restructuring actions, synergies from acquisitions, the benefits of the go-to-market strategy in major markets and expected
benefits from the implementation of the new ERP system should mostly offset these incremental costs.

In Febmary 2016, we received additional authorization to repurchase an additional $150 million of our common stock and expect to repurchase up to $215
million of our comman stock during 2016,

During 2015, we experienced a considerable strengthening of the U.S, dollar, A continuing strong U.S. dollar could adversely affect our reportted revenues
and profitability, both from a translation perspective and as a competitive perspective, as the cost of intemational competitors” products and solutions
improves relative to products and selutions sold from the U.S. A strengthening dollar could also continue to affect demand for U.S. goods seld to consumers
in other countries through our global ecommerce operations.

Within SMB Solutions, the introducticn of new selutions and services is being well-received in the martketplace and we anticipate further stabilization in
revenue through further product upgrades and launches in 2016, Internationally, the implementation of our go~to-market strategy is now complete in our
major markets and as a result we expect stabilizing trends in those markets. We will also focus on the transition and training of a new sales arganization,
which is expected to improve productivity.

Within Enterprise Business Solutions, we expect continued revenue and profitability growth in Presort Services due to client expansion and higher processed
mail volumes; however, we anticipate that Production Mail revenue growth will continue to be challenged by the uncertain macroeconomic environment in
Furope and declining services revenue.

Within DCS, we anticipate increased demand in Software Solutions due to new industry-specific solutions, expansion of our partner channel and improved
sales efficiencies, and revenue growth in Global Ecommerce from our retail business and continued demand for our shipping solutions driven by new client
acquisitions and expanded services provided to existing clients should further enhance our performanee, In January 2016, we acqouired a cloud-based,
software-as-a-service enterprise retail and fulfillment solutions company.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue by source and the related cost of revenue are shown in the following tables:

Revenne

Years Lnded December 31, % change

2018 2014 2013

6 anv
g 02 ccesine s g 631 smndYennaastenn. :
Total revenue $ 3578 % 3822 % 3,791 (6)% 1%

Cost of Revenue
Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

§ % of revenue $ % of revenue § % of revenue
423

‘Costofequipment sales

-:Esi

Cost ofsupplic;s
Lostofsoftware

Cost of rentals
o e

19.1% 97 20.1% 100
hEYs: i

nterestoxpense

Cost of support services 323 58.2%
[Eostotbusiness services - s 0d:t % ' = i
Total cost of revenue 5 1,559 43.6% $ 1,681 44.0% § 1,651

Equipment sales

Equipment sales decreased 10% in 2015 compared te 2014, Foreign currency translation adversely affected equipment sales by 5%. Excluding the impact of
foreign cutrency, equipment sales declined 3% in international markets primarily due to difficult economic circumstances and productivity dismuptions
caused by the implementation of our go-to-market strategy in Europe and lower sales of production mail equipment worldwide, Sales in North America
declined 1% due to the continuing trend of clients to extend existing leases rather than purchase new equipment. Cost of equipment sales as a percentage of
equipment sales revenue of 47.6% was comparable to the prior year.

Equipment sales decrcased 11% in 2014 compared to 2013, Approximately half of this decrease came from lower sales of production mail inserters and high-
speed printers due to significant installations of this equipment in 2013 and half came from lower sales in our SMB group due to a temporary distraction from
the transition to an inside sales organization and reassignment cf accounts and resources in North America, the impact of Divested Businesses and lower sales
in France. Cost of equipment sales as a percentage of equipment sales revenue decreased to 47.5% compared to 48.7% in the prior year primarily due to the
decline in sales of production printers, which have a lower margin relative to other products.

Supplies

Supplies rovenue decreased 4% in 2015 compared to 2014, Foreign currency translation adversely impacted supplies revenue by 6%. Excluding the impact
of foreign currency, supplies revenus increased 2% due to productivity improvements and pricing actions in our North America mailing business and higher
sales of supplies for production printers. Cost of supplies as a porcentage of supplies revenue improved to 30.8% in 2015 compared to 31.2% in 2014
primarily due to a greater mix ofhigher margin core supplies.

Supplies revenue increased 5% in 2014 compared to 2013, Targeted outrcach o customers and pricing actions contributed to a 3% increase and the
remaining 2% was due to the growing base of production print equipment. Cost of supplies as a percentage of supplies revenue was virtually unchanged at
31.2% in 2014 compared to 31.3% in 2013,
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Sofiware

Software reveniue decreased 10% in 2015 compared to 2014, Foreign currency translation adversely impacted software revenue by 5%. Sofiware revenue in
2015 compared to 2014 wag also impacted by 4% due to more significant licensing deals in 2014 compared to 2015, Excluding the impact of foreign
currency and the significant licensing deals in 2014, software revenue declined 1%, primarily due to declines in maintenance, data and sgrvices revenue, Cost
of software as a percentage of software revenue increased to 22.4% in 2015 compared to 28.8% in 2014 primarily due to the decline in high-margin licensing
tevenue.

Software revenue increased 8% in 2014 compared fo 2013, primarily due to a 33% increase in worldwide licensing revenue from our software selutions
products, particularly enterprise location intelligence, Cost of software as a percentage of software revenue increased to 28.8% compared to 27.8% in the
priot year primarily due to investments in the specialization of the software sales channel and higher production costs.

Rentals

Renlals revenue decreased 9% in 2015 compared to 2014, Foreign cumrency franslation adversely impacted rentals revenue by 3%. Excluding the impact of
foreign curtency, rentals revenue declined 6% primarily dus te the continuing decline in the number of installed meters and shift by clients to less-featured,
lower cost machines, Cost of rentals as a percentage of rentals revenne impreved to 19.1% in 2015 compared to 20.1% in 2014 primarily due to lower
depreciation.

Rentals revenue decreased 5% in 2014 compared te 2013, Rentals revenue declined 4% due to a reduction in the number of installed meters and clients
downgrading to lower cost, less functional machines and 1% due to lower rentals revenue in France. Cost of rentals as a percentage of rentals revenue
increased to 20.1% compared to 19.6% in the prior year primarily due to a higher proportion of fixed costs as a percentage of revenue.

Financing

Financing revenue decreased 5% in 2015 compared to 20314, Foreign cumency translation accounted for 3% of the decrease and lower equipment sales in
prior periods and a declining lease portfolio accounted for the remaining decrease. Financing revenue decreased 4% in 2014 compared to 2013 as a result of
declining equipment sales in prior years,

We allocate a portion of our total cost of borrowing to financing interest expense. In computing financing interest expense, we assume a 10:1 debt to squity
leverage ratio and apply our overall effective interest rate to the average outstanding finance receivables. Due to declining equipment sales in prior periods,
average outstanding finance receivables declined. As a result, financing interest exponse declined 9% in 2015 compared to 2014. Financing interest expense
as a percentage of financing revenue improved to 17.5% in 2015 compared to 18.1% in 2014. Financing interest expense as a percentage of financing
revenue increased in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to an increase in our overall effective interest rate.

Support Services

Support services revenue decreased 11% in 2015 compared to 2014, primarily due to 5% from foreign currency translation and 2% from Divested Businesses.
Support services revenue was also impacted by lower maintenance contracts on production mail equipment as some in-house mailers moved their mail
processing to third-party service bureaus who setvice some of their own equipment. Cost of support services as a percentage of support services revenue
decreased to 58.2% in 2015 compared to 60.3% in 2014 primarily due to expense reductions and productivity initiatives.

Supportt services revenue decreased 3% in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to declines in our mailing business due to fewer installed mailing machines
in North America and the impact of Divested Businesses, Cost of support services as a percentage of support scrvices revenue improved to 60.3% in 2014
compared to 61.9% in 2013 primarily due to continued focus on expense reductions and produciivity initiatives,

Business Services,

Business services revenue increased 3% in 2015 compared to 2014, Business services revenue for 2015 was impacted by the sale of

Imagitas in May 2015 and the acquisition of Borderfrec in June 2015. Excluding the impacts of these transactions, business services

revenue increased 5% in 2015 compared to 2014, Higher volumes of mail processed in Presort Services increased business services

revenue 2% and additional volumes of packages shipped from our UK. cutbound cross-border service facility increased business services revenue 4%. Cost
of business services as a percentage of business services revenue improved to 68.1% in 2015 and compared to 70.0% in 2014, primarily due to operational
cificiencies in Presort Services and higher revenue.

Business services revenue increased 23% in 2014 compared to 2013, Higher volumes in our global ecommerce solutions contributed to
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a 17% increase, higher volumes ef first-class mail processed and improved operational efficiencies in our Presort Services business contributed to a 4%
increase and higher marketing services fees due to new clients contributed to a 2% increase. Cost of business services as a percentage of business services
revenue improved to 70.0% in 2014 compared to 71.3% in 2013 as margin improvement in our presort operations and marketing services more than offset
our continuing investment in our global ecommerce solutions,

Selling, peneral and adminisirative (SG&A)

SG&A expense decreased 7% in 2015 compared fo 2014 despite expenses of $13 million associated with implementation of our ERP system, a one-time
compensation charge of $10 million for the accelerated vesting and setflement of Bordetfiee stock-based compensation awards, additional amertization
expense of $9 million related to the acquisition of Borderfiee and costs of $5 million related to the exit of certain geographic markets duting the fourth
quarter of 2015. The overall decrease in SG&A expense is primarily due to our focus on operational excellence and the benefits of productivity and cost-
cutting initiatives. Foreign currency translation also reduced SG&A expenses by 4% in 2015.

SG&A expense deereased 3% in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to the benefits of our restructuring actions and productivity initiatives and lower
depreciation expense, These benefits were partially offset by expenses of $36 million incwrred in connection with expanded branding and marketing
programs and the planned implementation of an ERP system.

Restructuring churges and asset impairments, net

Restructuring charges and asset impairments of $26 million in 2015 consists of a restructuring charge of $21 million and a loss of $5 millicn on the sale of
the corporate headquarters building. See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for funther details.
Other (income) expense, net

Other income, net for 2015 includes the gain on the sale of Imagitas of $112 million, transaction costs of $10 million incurred in connection with the
acquisitions of Borderfree and RTC (see Note 3 to the Censolidated Financial Statements) and a charge of $7 million associated with the settlement of a legal
matter {see Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Cther expense, net for 2014 includes costs of $62 million incurred in connection with the early redemption of debt offset by $16 million recognized in
connection with the divestiture of a partnership investment.

Other expense, net for 2013 includes costs associated with the early redemption of debt.

Income taxes
See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Discontinued operations
See Note 4 to the Consclidated Financial Statements.

Preferved stock dividends of subsidiaries attributable to roncontrolling interests
See Note 16 to the Conseolidated Financial Statements.
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Business Segments
The principal products and services of each of our reportable segments are as follows:

Small & Medium Business Solutions:
North America Mailing: Includes the revenue and related expenses from the sale, rental, financing and servicing of mailing equipment, software and
supplies for small and medium businesses to efficiently create physical and digital mail and evidence postage for the sending of mail, flats and parcels in
the U.S. and Canada.
Tuternational Mailing: Includes the revenue and related expenses from the sale, rental, financing and servicing of mailing equipment, software and
supplies for small and medium businesses ic efficiently create physical and digital mail and evidence postage for the sending of mail, flats and parcels in
areas outside the U8, and Canada,

Enterprise Business Solutions:

Production Mail: Includes the worldwide revenue and related expenses from the sale of production mail inserting and sortation equipment, high-speed
production print systems, supplies and related support services to large enterprise clients to process inbound and outbound mail,

Presort Services: Includes revenue and related expenses from presort mail servioes for our large onterprise clients to qualify large mail volumes for postal
worksharing discounts.

Digital Commerce Solutions:

Software Solutions: Includes the worldwide revenue and related expenses fiom the sale of non-equipmeni-based mailing, customer information
engagement, location intelligence and customer engagement solutions and related support services.

Global Ecommerce: Includes the worldwide revenue and related expenses from cross-border ecommerce and shipping solutions,

We determine segment EBIT by deducting the related costs and expenses attributable to the segment from segment revenue, Segment EBIT excludes interest,
taxes, general corporate expenses, restmcturing charges and other items, which are not allocated to a particular business segment. Management uses segment
EBIT to measure profitability and performance af the segment level. Management believes segment EBIT provides a usefil measure of ocur operating
performance and underlying trends of the businesses. Segment EBIT may not be indicative of our overall consolidated performance and therefore, should be
read in conjunction with our consolidated results of operations. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a reconciliation of segment EBIT to
incoine from continuing operations before income taxes.

Revenue and EBIT by business segment are presented in the tables below.

Revenue

Years Ended December 31, % change
20135 2014 2003

22)%
) Vs
N%

ut1ons::

Global Ecommerce

igital Commrerce Solutior

GT%
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EBIT

Years Ended December 31, % change

2015 2014 2013 2015 2014

Small & Medinm Business Solutions

North dmerica Mailing

North America Mailing revenue decreased 4% in 2015 compared to 2014, Foreign cunency translation had a 1% unfavorable impact on revenue. Excluding
the impact of foreign cumrency, rentals revenue and support services revenue decreased 5% and 7%, respectively, due to the continuing decline in installed
meters and shift by clients to lower cost, less fully featured machines, Equipment sales decreased 3% primarily due to the decline it the first half of the year
caused by declining mail volumes and the continuing frend of clients to extend existing leases rather than purchasing new equipment, Partially offsetting
these declines was a 3% increase in supplies sales due to productivity improvements and pricing actions. Despite the decline in revenue, EBIT increased 1%
primarily due to the benefits of produetivity improvements and cost reduction initiatives and a favorable product mix.

No1th America Mailing revenue decreased 4% in 2014 compared to 2013, This decrease was due to lower rentals revenue and support services revenue due to
a decline in the number of installed meters in service and lower equipment sales primatily due to a temporary distraction due to the transition te an inside
sales organization and reassignment of accounts and resources. Financing revenue also declined due to lower equipment sales in cwirent and prior years, but
was offset by higher supply sales due to sales efficiencies and favorable pricing. Despite the decline in revenue, EBIT remained relatively flat due to cost
savings fiom the transition to an inside sales organization and other ongoing productivity initiatives and cost reductions.

International Mailing

Intemational Mailing revenue decreased 22% in 2015 as compared to 2014, Revenue was unfavorably impacted by 12% from foreign currency translation
and 3% fiom Divested Businesses. Excluding the impacts of forcign currency and Divested Businesses, revenue decreased 7%. Intemational Mailing results
have been adversely impacted throughout the year by difficult economic circumstances in many of our intemational markets and preductivity disrupticns
caused by the implementation of our go-to-market strategy in certain European markets, particularly in France, EBIT decreased 42% in 2015 as compared to
2014, primarily due to the decline in revenue and reduced marging due to productivity disreptions and incremental costs of transitioning the sales
organization in France. Foreign currency translation vnfavorably impacted EBIT by 10% in 2015.

International Mailing revenue decreased 5% in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to the impact of Divested Businesses and lower equipment sales and
rentals in France. EBIT increased 24% in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to productivity and cost reduction initiatives and savings from the transition
to an inside sales organization in certain European markets.
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Enterprise Business Solutions

Production Mail

Production Mail revenue decreased 9% in 2015 compared to 2014, Revenue was unfavorably impacted by 5% from foreign currency translation and by less
than 1% from Divested Businesses. Excluding the impacts of foreign currency and Divested Businesses, production mail revenue decreased 3% primarily due
to declines in sappori services revenue of $% as some in-house mailers moved their mail processing to third-party service bureaus who service some of their
own equipment. Equipment sales decreased 1% compared to the prior year as lower sales in Europe and Asia-Pacific were mostly offset by higher sales in the
United States, Despite the decline in revenue, EBIT increased 1% in 2015 compared to 2014 primarily dus to a higher margin product mix and ongoing cost
reduction initiatives.

Production Mail revenue decreased 10% in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to a 19% decline in equipment sales due to significant installations of
production mail inserters and high-speed printers to certain enterprise customers in 2013, Support services revenue also declined but was more than offset by
higher supplies revenue due to the growing base of production printers. EBIT decreased 14% in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to the decline in
tevenue.

Presort Services

Presort Services revenue increased 4% in 2015 compared to 2014 primarily due to a 6% increase in the volume of mail processed, EBIT increased 7% in 2015
compared to 2014 primarily due to the increase in revenue and lower transportation costs.

Presort Services revenue increased 6% in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to a 2% increase in the volume of first-class mail processed and improved
operational efficiencies. EBIT increased 18% in 2014 compared to 2013 primatily due to the inctease in revenue and improved operational efficiencies.

Digital Commerce Solutions
Software

Software Solutions revenue decreased 10% in 2015 compared to 2014, Foreign currency translation unfavorably impacted revenue by 5%. Software revenue
in 2015 compared to 2014 was also impacted by 4% due to more significant licensing deals in 2014 as compared to 2015. Exeluding the impact of foreign
currency and significant licensing deals in 2014, software revenue declined 1%, primarily due to declines in maintenance, data and services revenue, EBIT
decreased 5% primarily as a result of lower high-margin licensing revenue.

Software Solutions revenue increased 9% in 2014 compared to 2013, primarily due to a higher worldwide licensing revenue from our software solutions
products, particularly enterprise location intelligence. Licensing revenue increased 36% in North America and 29% internationally, primarily due to product
enhancements and investments in the specialization of the software sales channel, EBIT increased 7% primarily due to the increase in revenue.

Global Ecommerce

Global Ecommeres revenue increased 28% in 2015 compared to 2014 primarily due to the acquisition of Borderfree and higher volumes

of packages shipped from our UK. cutbound cross-border service facility, which began in the fourth quarter of 2014, Volumes of packages shipped fiom cur
U.S. outbound cross-bordet service facility were lower than the prior year and continue to be pressured by a strong U.S. dollar, EBIT increased 16% in 2015
compared to 2014 as synergy savings from the Borderfiee acquisition and recognition of $6 million of deferred cross-border delivery fees were mere than
offset by the incremental costs related to the Borderfree acquisition including $9 million of additional amortization expense.

Global Ecommerce revenue increased 6% in 2014 compared to 2013 due to an increase in the number of orders processed and parcels shipped. Late in the
third quarter 02014, we began outbound ecommerce services from the UX., which had a small benefit to the full-year revenue. EBIT increased significantly
in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily due to the increase in revenus and improved operating leverage which offset fixed costs and continued investments in
global ecommerce technology and infrastructure.

Ofther

Other includes our Marketing Services business which was sold in May 2015,
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We believe that existing cash and investments, cash generated from operations and bormowing capacity under our commercial paper program will be
sufficient to support our current cash needs, including discretionary uses such as capital investments, dividends, share repurchases and acquisitions, Cash and
cash equivalents and short-term investments were $768 million at December 31,2015 and $1,103 million at December 31, 2014. We continuously review our
credit profile through published credit ratings and the credit default swap market. We also monitor the creditworthiness of those banks acting as derivative
countetparties, depository banks or credit providers.

Cash and cash equivalents held by cur foreign subsidiaries were $470 million at both December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, Cash and cash equivalents
held by our foreign subsidiaries are generally used to support the liquidity needs of these subsidiaries. Most of these amounts could be repatriated tc the U.S.
but would be subject to additional taxes. Repatriation of some foreign balances is restricted by local laws.

Cash Flow Summary

The change in cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Years Ended December 31, Change

2018 2014 2013 2015 2014

. 159
. (259)
(15)

Cash flows from operations decreased $141 million in 2015 compared to 2014, primarily due to the timing of payments of accounts payable and accrued
liabilities including, higher employee-related payments, and higher inventery purchases, primarily for parts and supplies in the U.S. and UK., lower
collections of accounts receivable due to timing and ameunts received in the prior year for transition services in conmection with the sale of bur Management
Services business. These decreases were partially offset by lower interest and tax payments,

Cash flows from operations increased $30 million in 2014 compared to 2613, primarily due to higher income and lower tax and interest payments partially
offset by higher cash payments related te the early repayment of debt and changes in working capital accounts, primarily due to lower cash flows from
changes in inventory and accounts receivable. Cash management initiatives implemented in 2013 sigaificantly improved working capital and cash flows
from operations. In 2014, we continued to see benefils from changes in accounts receivable and inventory; however, the benefits were not as dramatic as in
2013, The timing of payments for accounts payables and accrued liabilitics partially offset these reductions in cash flow from working capital.

Cash flows used by investing activities were $156 million higher in 2015 compared to 2014. In 20135, we paid $394 million for acquisitions, purchased short
term investments of $69 million, received proceeds of $292 million frem the sale of Imagitas and $52 million fiom the sale of our former corporate
headquarters building and other assets, During 2014, we received proceeds of $102 million from the sale of businesses.

Cash flows from investing activities were $388 million lower in 2014 compared to 2013. In 2014, we received 3102 million from the sale of businesses
compared to $390 million in 2013. Higher cash outflows of $48 million for the purchase of available for sale invesiments and $43 million of higher capital
expenditures primarily due to spending on vur glebal ERP systcm also contributed to the decrease in cash flows from investing activities in 2014.

Cash flows usged in financing activities increased $259 million in 2015 due (o higher net payments to reduce debt and higher stock repurchases in 2015,
During 2015, we reduced total debt by $275 million and repurchased $132 million of our common shares compared to a net reduction in total debt of $51
million and share repurchases of $50 million in 2014, Cash flows from financing activities increased $556 million in 2014 due to the timing of debt activity.
See Financing and Capitalizalion section below for a detailed discussion of our debt activity for 2015,2014 and 2013.
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Financings and Capitalization

We are a Well-Known Seasoned Issuer with the SEC, which allows us to issue debt securities, preferred stock, preference stock, common stock, purchase
contracts, depositary shares, warrants and units in an expedited fashion. We have a commercial paper program that is an important source of liquidity for us
and a committed credit facility of $1.0 billion to support our commercial paper issuances. At December 31, 2013, there was $90 million of outstanding
commercial paper botrowings with an effective interest rate of 1.1%. In 2015, commercial paper borrowings averaged $66 million at a weighted-average
interest rate 0f0.6% and the maximum amount of commercial paper outstanding at any point in time was $291 million. During 2014, we did not borow
under our comumercial paper program. The credit facility was renewed in January 2015 and expires in January 2020. We have not drawn upon the credit
facility.

2015 Activity

We redeemed the $110 million 5.25% notes due November 2022 at par plus acerued but unpaid interest and repaid the $275 million 5% notes. We also
tepaid $130 million of outstanding term Joans and berrowed $150 million under a new term loan. The new term loan bears interest at the applicable
Eurodollar Rate plus .90%. The Eurodollar Rate on the date of funding was .59%. The term loan matures in Deceimber 2016 but can be extended te June 2017
at our option.

In January 2016, we borrowed $300 million under a new term loan and used the proceeds to repay a portion of the $371 million, 4.75% notes due January 15,
2016. The remaining portion was repaid through cash from operations. The new term loan bears interest at the applicable Eurodollar Rate plus 1.25% and
matures in December 2020. The Eurodollar Rate on the date of funding was .62%.

2014 Activity

We issued $500 million of 4,625% fixed rate 10-year notes, The notes mafure in March 2024, but may be redeemed, at any time, in whole or in part, at cur
option. If the notes are redeemed prior to December 15, 2023, the redemption price will be equal to the sum of 100% of the principal amount, accrued and
unpaid interest and a make-whole payment. Net proceeds of $493 million received after fees and discounts were used to fund the 2014 Tender Offer (see
below).

We redeemed an aggregate $500 million ofthe 5.75% Notes due 2017 and the 5.25% Notes due 2037 through a cash tender offer (the 2014 Tender Offer).
Holders who validly tendered their notes received the principal amount, all accrued and wnpaid interest and a premium payment. We incurred expenses of
$62 million, consisting of the call premium, the write-off of unamortized costs and bank transaction fees,

We also repaid $100 million of outstanding term loans and received a loan of $16 million from the State of Connecticut in connection with the relocation of
owr corporate headquarters, The loan consisted of a $15 million development loan and $1 million jobs-training grant that is subject to refund if certain
conditions are not met. The loan requires monthly interest payments through November 2020 and principal and interest payments from December 2020
through maturity in November 2024, In 20135, we satisfied the conditions under the jobs-training grant.

2013 dctivity

We issued $425 million of 6.7% fixed-rate 30-year nctes. The notes mature in March 2043, but may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at our option any lime
on or after March 2018 at a redemption price equal (o 100% of the principal amount, plus acerued and unpaid interest. Net proceeds of $412 million received
after fees and discounts were used to fund the 2013 Tender Offer (see below).

We redeemed an aggregate $405 millicn of the 4.875% notes due 2014, the 5.0% notes due 2015, and the 4.75% notes due 2016 through a cash tender offer
(the 2013 Tender Offer). Holders who validly tendered their notes received the principal amount, all accrued and unpaid interest and a premium payment, We
received $35 million from the unwinding of certain interest rate swap agreements and recognized a net loss of $25 million, consisting primarily of the premium
payment,

We redeemed $375 million of maturing 3.875% notes and an additional $300 million of 4.875% notcs that werc scheduled to matuore in August 2014, In
connection with the early redemption of the notes, we received $3 million from the unwinding of an interest rate swap and incurred expenses of $8 million,
consisting primarily of a premium payment.

Debt Muturities

‘We have $2 billion of debt maturing within the next five years. While we fully expect to be able to find these maturities with cash or by refinancing through
the TLS. capital markets, these obligations could increase our vulnerability to adverse market conditions and impact our ability to refinance existing
matwities. In addition, in Oclober 2016, the $300 million of outstanding Preferred Stock of one of our subsidiaries is redeemable at our option. If we do not
redeem, the dividend rate increases 50% and will increase 50% every six months thereafter. We are currently evaluating various alteratives to redeem or
refinance the Preferred Stock. See Note 16° to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Dividends and Share Repurchases

We paid dividends to our common stockholders of $150 million {($0.75 per share), $152 million ($0.75 pershare) and $189 million ($0.94 per share) in 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Each quarter, our Board of Directers considers cur recent and projected eamings and other capital needs and priorities in
deciding whether to approve the payment, as well as the amount of a dividend. There are no material restrictions on owr ability to declare dividends.

We repurchased $132 million of our common shares during 2015 and $50 million of our common shares during 2014. At December 31, 2015, we had
authotization to repurchase up to $65 million of our commen shares, In February 2016, we received authorization to repurchase an additional $150 million of
outstanding stocl. We expect to repurchase up to 3215 million of our common stock during 2016,

Contractunl Obligations

The following table summarizes cur known contractual obligations at December 31, 2015 and the effect that such obligations are expected to have on our
lignidity and cash flow in future periods:

Payments due in
Total 2016 2017-18 2019-20 After 2020

niercial paper bo

Debt maturities
B
Preferred stock (2) o
ancelable operating leasabigations =

Purchase obligations (3)
Pension plan confribui

The amount and period of future payments related te our income tax uncertainties cannot be reliably estimated and are not included in the above table. See
Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

(1) Assumes all debt is held to maturity. Certain notes are redeemable, either at our option or the bondholders, at par plus accrued interest before the
scheduled maturity date.

(2) Represents outstanding Preferred Stock of one of our subsidiaries that is redeemable at our option. If we do not redeem by October 30, 2016, the dividend
ate increases 50% and will increase 50% every six months thereafter.

(3) Includes unrecorded agrcements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding upon us and that specify all significant terms,
including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction.
Purchase obligations exclude agreements that are cancelable without penalty.

{4} Represents the amount of contributions we anficipate making tc our pension plans during 2016; however, we will assess our funding alternatives as the
year progressos,

(5) Our retiree health benefit plans are non-funded plans and cash centributions are made each year to cover medical claims costs incured. The amounts
repotted in the above table represent our estimate of future bencfits payments.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangemenis

At December 31, 2015, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a material current or future effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. See Note 17 {o the Consolidated Financial Statements for detailed information about our commitinents
and contingencies.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions about certain items that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and accompanying disclosures, ineluding the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The
accounting policies below have been identified by management as those accounting policies that are most critical to our financial statements due to the
estimates and assumptions required. Management believes that the estimates and assumptions used are reasonable and appropriate based on the information
available at the time the financial statements were prepared; however, actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions. See Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a summary of our accounting pelicies,

Revenue recognition - Multiple element arrangements

We derive revenue from multiple scurces including sales, rentals, financing and services. Certain transactions are consummated at the same time and can
therefore generate revenue from multiple sources. The most common form of these transactions involves a sale or non-cancelable lease of equipment, a meter
rental and an equipment maintenaince agreoment. As a result, we are required to determine whether the deliverables in a multiple element arrangement should
be treated as separate units of accounting for revenue recognition purposes, and if so, how the price should be allocated among the delivered elements and
when to recognize revenue for each element. We recognize revenue for delivered elements only when the fair values of undelivered clements are known,
customer acceptance has occuned and payment is probalble.

In these multiple element arrangements, revenue is allocated to each of the elements based on relative "selling prices” and the selling price for each of the
elements is determined based on vendor specific objective evidence (VSOE). We establish VSOE of selling prices for our products and services based on the
prices charged for each element when sold separately in standalone transactions. The allocation of relative selling price to the various elements impacts the
timing of revenue recognition, but does not change the total revenue recognized. Revenue is allocated to the meter rental and equipment maintenance
agreement slements using their respective selling prices charged in standalone and renewal transactions. For a sale transaction, revenue is allecated to the
equipment based on a range of selling prices in standalene transactions, For a lease transaction, revenue is allocated to the equipment based on the present
value of the remaining minimum lease payments. The amount allocated to equipment is compared to the range of selling prices in standalone fransactions
during the period to ensure the allecated equipment amount approximates average selling prices.

We also have multiple element arrangements containing only seftware and soflware related elements, Under these anangements, revenue is allocated based
on VSOE, which is based on company specific stand-alone sales data or renewal rates. If we cannot obtain VSOE for any undelivered software element,
revenue is deferred until all deliverables have been delivered or until VSOE can be determined for any remaining undelivered software elements, When the
fair value of a delivered element cannot be established, but fair value evidence exists for the undelivered software elements, we use the residual method te
recognize revenue. Under the residual method, the fair value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining portion of the arrangement
consideration is allocated to the delivered elements and recognized as revenue,

Pension benefits

The valuation of our pension assets and obligations and the calculation efnet periodic pension expense are dependent on assumptions and estimates relating
to, among other things, the interest rate used to discount the future estimated liability {discount rate} and the expected rate of return on plan assets. These
assumptions are evaluated and updated annually and arc described in further detail in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The discount rate for our largest plan, the U.S. Qualified Pension Plan (the U.S. Plan) is determined by matching the expected cash flows associated with our
benefit obligations to a pool of corporate long-term, high-quality fixed income debt instrurnents available as of the measurement date. The discount rate for
our largest foreign plan, the UK. Qualified Pension Plan (the UK. Plan), is determined by using a model that discounts each year's estimated benefit
payments by an applicable spot rate derived from a yield curve created ffom a large number of high quality comporate bonds, The discount rate used in the
determination of net periodic pension expense for 2015 was 4.15% for the U.S, Plan and 3.7% for the UK. Plan. For 2016, the discount rate used in the
determination of net periodic pension expense for the U8, Plan and the UK. Plan will be 4.55% and 3.75%, respectivefy. A 0.25% change In the discount
rate would impact annual pension expense by iess than $1 million for beth the U.S. Plan and the UK. Plan, and the projected benefit obligation of the U.S.
Plan and UK. Plan by $43 million and $21 million, respectively.

Pension assets are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. We invest our pension plan assets in a variety of investment securities
in accordance with our strategic asset allocation policy. The expected return on plan assets is based on historical and expected future retwmns for current and
targeted asset allocations for each asset class in the investment portfolio, adjusted for historical and expected experience of active portfelio management
results, as compared to the benchmark returns. The expected rate of retum on ’
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plan assets used in the determination of net periodic pension expense for 2015 was 7.0% for both the U.S. Plan and the UK, Plan. For 2016, the expected rate
of refurn on plan assets used in the determination of net periodic pension expense for the U.S. Plan will be 7.0% and the UK. Plan will be 6.5%. A0.25%
change in the expected rate of return on plan assets would impact annual pension expense for the 1.8, Plan by $4 million and the UK. Plan by $1 million,
See Note 14 to the Conselidated Financial Statements for information about the allocation of pension assets.

Actual pension plan results that differ from our assumptions and estimates are accumulated and amortized over the life expectancy of inactive plan
participants and affect future pension expense. Net pension expense is alse based on a market-related valuation of plan assets where differences between the
actual and expected return on plan assets are recognized in the caleulation of the market-refated value of assets over a five-year period. Effective December
31,2014, plan benefits for participants in a majority ofour U.S. and foreign pension plans were frozen.

Residual value of leased assets

We provide financing for our equipment sales primarily through sales-type leases. Equipment residual values are determined at inception of the lease using
estimates of fair value at the end of the lease term, Residual value estimates impact the determination of whether a lease is classified as an operating lease ora
sales-type lease. Bstimates of equipment fair value at end of lease term are based primarily on our historical experience. We also consider forecasted supply
and demand for our various products, product retirement and future product launch plans, end of lease client behavior, regulatory changes, remanufacturing
strategies, used equipment markets, if any, competitien and technological changes.

‘We evaluate residual values on an annual basis or soener if circumstances warrant. Declines in estimated residual values considered "other-than-temporary"
are recognized immediately. Estimated increases in future residual values are not recognized until the equipment is remarketed. If the actual residual value of
leased assets were 10% lower than management's current estimates, pre-tax income would be lower by $11 million.

Allowances for doubtful accounts and credit losses

We estimate our credit risk for accounts receivables and finance receivables and provide allowances for estimated losses. We believe that our credit risk is low
because of the geographic and industry diversification of our clients and small account balances for most of our clients, We continuously monitoer collections
and payments from our clients and evaluate the adequacy of the applicable allowance based on historical loss experience, past due status, adverse situations
that may affect a client's ability to pay and prevailing econemic conditions and make adjustments to the reserves as deemed necessary. This evaluation is
inherently subjective and actual rosults may differ significantly from estimated reserves,

The allowance for doubtfiil accounts as a percentage of trade receivables was 2,0% at December 31, 2015 and 2.4% at December 31, 2014, Holding all other
assumptions constant, a 0.25% change in the allowance rate at December 31, 2015 would have changed the 2015 provision by §1 million.

Total allowance for credit losses as a percentage of finance receivables was 1.3% at December 31, 2015 and 1.5% at December 31, 2014, Holding all other
assumptions constant, a 0.25% change in the allowance rate at December 31, 2015 would have changed the 2015 provision by $4 million,

Income taxes and valuation allowance

We are subject (o income taxes in the U.S, and numercus foreign jurisdictions. Qur annual tax rate is based on ingome, statutory tax rates, tax reserve changes
and tax planning opportunities available to us in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant judgment is required in determining the annual
tax rate and in evaluating our tax positions.

We regularly assess the likelihood of tax adjustments in each of the tax jurisdictions in which we have operations and account for the related finaneial
statement implications. Tax reserves have been established that we believe to be appropriate given the possibility of tax adjustments, Determining the
appropriate level of tax reserves requires us to exercise judgment regarding the uncertain application of tax laws. The amount of reserves is adjusted when
information becomes available or when an event cccurs indicating a change in the reserve is appropriate. Future changes in tax reserve requirements could
have a material impact on our financial cendition or results of operations.

Significant judgment is also required in determining the amount of valuation allowance to be recorded against deferred tax assets, In assessing whether a
valuation allowance is necessary, and the amount of such allowance, we consider all available evidence for each jurisdiction including historical operating

tesults, estimates of future taxable income and the feasibility of engoing tax planning strategies.
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If new information becomes available that would alter our estimate of the amount of deferred tax assets that will ultimately be realized, we adjust the
valuation allowance with a coresponding impact to income tax expense in the pericd in which such determination is made.

Impairment review

Long-lived and finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be fully recoverable. The estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected fo result from the use and eventnal disposition of the assets is compared
to the carrying value. We derive the cash flow estimates from our long-term business plans and historical experience. If the sum of the undiscounted cash
flows is less than the asset's carrying value, an impairment charge is recorded for an amount by which the canrying value exceeds its fair value. The fair value
of the impaired asset is determined using probability weighted expected cash flow estimates, quoted market prices when available and appraisals, as
appropriate. Changes in the estimates and assumptions incorporated in cur impairmeni assessment could materially affect the determination of fair value and
the associated impairment charge.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment at the reporting unit level during the fourth quarter or sooner when circumstances indicate an impairment may
exist. The impairment test for goodwill is a two-step appreach. In the first step, the fuir value of each reporting unit is determined and compared to the
reporting unit's canying value, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its camying value, the second step of the goodwill
impairment test is performed to measure the amount of impairment, if any. In the second step, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to the assets and
liabilities of the reporting unit as if it had been acquired in a business combination and the purchase price was equivalent to the fair value of the reporting
unit. The excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is referred to as the implied fair value of goodwill.
The implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill is then compared to the actual carrying value of goodwill. If the implied fair value of goodwill is less
than the carrying value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference.

Significant estimates and assumptions are used in our goodwill impairment review and include the identification of reporting units, assigning assets and
liabilities to reporting units, assigning goodwill te reporting units and determining the fair value of each reporting unit. The fair value of each reporting unit
is determined based on a combination of techniques, including the present valug of future cash flows, muitiples of competitors and multiples from sales of
like businesses. The assumptions used to estimate fair value are based on prejections incorporated in our current operating plans as well as other available
information. Qur operating plans include significant assumptions and estimates associated with sales growth, profitability and related cash flows, along with
cash flows associated with taxes and capital spending, The determination of fair value also incorporates a risk-adjusted discount rate based on current interest
rates and the economic conditions of the reporting unit. We also consider other assumptions that market participants may use. Changes in any of these
estimates or assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value and the associated goodwill impairment charge for each reporting unit,
Potential events and circumstances, such as the inability to acquire new clients, downward pressures on pricing and rising interest rates could have an adverse
impact on our assumptions and result in non-cash impairment charges in future periods.

Based on the results of the annual impairment test performed during the fourth quarter of 2015, we determined that the estimated fair value of each of the
reporting units exceeded their carrying value by more than 20%,

Stock-based compensation expense

We recognize compensation cost for stock-based awards based on the estimated fair value of the award, net of estimated forfeitures. Compensation costs for
those shares expected to vest are recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period.

The fair value of stock awards is estimated using a Black-Scholes valuation model or Monte Carlo simulation model. These models require assumptions to be
made regarding the expected stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate, life of the award and dividend yield. The expected stock price volatility is based on
historical price changes of our stock, The risk-fiee interest rate is based on U.S. Treasuries with a term equal to the expected life of the stock award. The
expected life of the award and dividend yield are based on historical experience.

We believe that the valuation techniques and the underlying assumptions are appropriate in estimating the fair value of our stock-based awards. If factors
change causing our assumptions to changs, our stock-based compensation expense could be different in the future. Estimates of fair value are not intended to
predict actual future events or the value ultimately realized by employees who receive equity awards, and subsequent events are not indicative of the
reasonableness of the original estimates of fair value, In addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and recognize expense enly for those
shares expected to vest. If our actual forfetlure rate is materially different from our estimate, stock-based compensation expense could be significantly
different from what we have recorded in tho current period.
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Restructuring

We have undertaken restructuring actions which require management to utilize certain estimates related to the amount and timing of expenses, If the actual
amounts differ from our estimates, the amount of the restructuring charges could be impacted, On a quarterly basis, we update our estimates of future
remaining obligations and costs associated with all restreturing actions and compare these updated estimates to our current restructuring reserves, and make
adjustments if necessary.

Loss contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we are routinely defendanis in, or patty to, a number of pending and threatened legal actions, On a quarterly basis, we
review the status of each significant matter and assess the potential financial exposure. If the potential loss from any claim or legal action is considered
probable and can be reasonably estimated, we establish a liability for the estimated loss. The assessment of the ultimate outcome of each claim or legal action
and the determination of the potential financial exposure requires significant judgment. Estimates of potential linbilities for claims or legal actions are based
only on information that is available at that time. As additional information becomes available, we may revise our estimates, and these revisions could have a
material impact on our results of operations and financial pesition,

Legal and Regulatory Matters

See Legal Proceedings in Item 3 for information regarding our legal proceedings and Other Tax Matters in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for regulatory matters regarding our tax returns.

Foreign Carrency Exchange

During 2015, we derived 25% of our conseclidated revenue fiom operations outside the United States, The functional currency for most of cur foreign
operations is the local currency. Our largest foreign currency exposures are to the British pound, Euro, Canadian dollar, Aunstralian doflar and Japanese Yen

{see Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information regarding our foreign exchange derivative instrutnents), Changes in the value of the
U.S. dollar relative to the currencies of countries in which we oporate impact our reported assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Exchange rate fluctuations
can also impaet the settlement of intercompany receivables and payables between our subsidiaries in different countries. For the years ended December 31,
2015,2014 and 2013, the translation of foreign currencies to U.S. dollar decreased revenues by 4.0%, 0.4% and 0.4%, respectively. A continuing strong U.S,

dollar could adversely affect our reported revenues and profitability, both from a translation perspective as well as a competitive perspective, as the cost of
international competitors' products and solutions improve relative to preducts and solutions sold from the ULS. A strengthening dollar could also continue to
affect the demand for U.S. goods scld to consumers in other countries through our global ecommerce solutions.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes and foreign currency fluctuations due to our investing and funding activities and our operations
denominated in different foreign cumencies. Cur objective in managing exposure to foreign cumrency fluctuations is to reduce the volatility in eamnings and
cash flows associated with the effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies. Accordingly, we
enfer into various contracts, which change in value as foreign currency exchange rates change, to protect the value of external and intercompany transactions.
The principal cunencies actively hedged are the British pound and Euro.

At December 31, 2015, 92% of our debt was fixed rate obligations at a weighted average interest rate of 5.2%. Our variable rate debt, which consists of
commercial paper and term loans, had a welghted average interest rate at December 31, 2015 of 1.35%. A one-percentage point change in the effective
interest rate of our variable rate debt would not have had a material impact on our 2015 pre-tax income. To limit the volatility and impact of changing
interest rates on earnings and cash flows, we may from time to time enfer into interest rate swap agreements that convert fixed rate interest payments to
variable rates and vice versa, During 20135 and 2014, we did not enter into any Interest rate swap agreements.

We employ established policies and procedures governing the use of financial instruments to manage our exposure to such risks, We do not enter info foreign
currency or interest rate transactions for speculative purposes. The gains and losses on these contracts are intended to offset changes in the value of the
related exposures.

We utilize a "Value-at-Risk" (VaR} model to determine the potential loss in fair value from changes in market conditions. The VaR model utilizes a

"varianee/co-variance” approach and assumes normal market conditions, a 95% confidence level and a one-day holding period. The model includes all of our
debt, interest rate derivative contracts and foreign exchange derivative contracts associated with forecasted transactions. The model excludes all anticipated
transactions, firm commitments and accounts recsivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies, which certain of these instruments are intendsd to
hedge. The VaR model is a risk analysis tool and does not purport to represent actual losses in fair value that will be incurred, nor doces it consider the
potential effect of favorable changes in market factors.

During 2015 and 2014, our maximum potential one-day loss in fair value of our exposure to foreign exchange rates and interest rates, using the vatiance/co-
variance technique described above, was not material.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See "Index to Consolidated Financial Statements an< Supplemental Data" in this Form [0-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND ISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A, CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evalunation of Diselosure Controls and Procedares

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defingd in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the Exchange Act)), that are designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and to
reasonably assure that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Bxecutive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure,

Any system of controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable {and not absolute} assurance of achieving the
desired control objectives, Management, under the direction of our CEO and CFO, evaluated the effectivencss of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures as required by Rule 13a-15 or Rule 15d-15 under the Exchange Act. Notwithstanding this caution, the CEQO and CFO have
reasonable assurance that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2015.

We acquired Borderfres in a purchase business combination on in Juns 2015 as described in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this
Form 10-K. We are in the process of reviewing and evaluating the business and internal controls and processes of Borderfree and are implementing our
internal control structure over this acquired business, Our evaluation and integration efforts will continue into 2016.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and mainfaining adecuate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15{f)
under the Exchange Act. Management assessed the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, In making this
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Cemmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in fufernal Control -
Integrated Framework (2013). Based on its assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 20135, the intemal control over financial reporting
was effective based on the criteria issued by COSO in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (201 3).

Pursnant to SEC guidance, a recently acquired business may be emitted from the scope of assessment of the effectiveness of intemnal control over financial
reporting in the year of acquisition. Accerdingly, the recently acquired Borderfiee business was excluded from our evaluation of the effectiveness of intemal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, The Borderfree business represents 8% of total assets and less than 2% of total revenue,

The effectiveness of our internal centrol over financial reporting as of Decetmber 31, 2015 has been audited by PricewatethouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their repert which appears in this Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Conirol over Financial Reporting

There werc no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended December 31, 2015, that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, such intemal control over financial repoiting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Mone.
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PART I

ITEM 10. MRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOYERNANCE

Other than information regarding our executive officers disclosed in Part Tof this Annual Report, the information required by this Item is incorporated by
reference to our Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with the 2016 Annuval Meeting of Stockholders.

Code of Ethics

We have a Business Practices Guidelines (BPG) that applies to all our officers and other employees, Our Board of Directors also has a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics {the Code} that applies to our directors. The BPG and the Code are posied on our corporate govemance website located at

www.pb.com/us/omr-company/leadership-and-govermance/corporate-govemance.html. Amendments to either the BPG or the Code and any waiver fiom a
provision ofthe BPG or the Code requiring disclosure will be disclosed on our corporate govemnance website.

Audit Committee: Audit Committee Financial Expert

The information regarding the Audit committee, its members and the Audit Committee financial experts is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement
to filed in connection with the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholdears.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with the 2016 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIFP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION TABLE

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2015 regarding the number of shares of common stock that may be issued under our equity
compensation plans.

{©
Number of securitics
{a) refnaining available for future
Number of securities to be ()] issuance under equity
issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercise compensation plans
outstanding options, warrants price of outstanding options, excluding securities refiected
Plan Category and rights warrants and rights in columm {a)

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders ‘ - — — —

""""" 1606329 0093604

Lot

Other than information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, the information required by this Item is incorporated by
reference to our Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with the 2016 Anauval Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND IRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Tiem is incorporated by reterence to our Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with the 2016 Annuval Meecting of
Stockholders.

ITEM 14, PRINCIFAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with the 2016 Annual Megting of
Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULLES

{a) 1. Financial stalements - see "Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Data" on page 37 of this Form 10-K.

2. Financial statement schedules - see "Index tc Consclidated Financial Statements and Supplemental Data" on page 37 of this Form 10-K.
3. Index to Exhibits
Reg. 8-K
exhibits Deseription Status or incorporstion by reference
3(a) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Pitney Bowes Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(c) to Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on May 12, 2011 (Corunission file number 1-3579)
3(b) Pitney Bowes Inc. Amended and Restated By-laws (effective May 10, 2013) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(d) to Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on May 13, 2013 (Commission file number 1-3579)
4(a) Form of Indenture between the Company and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee Incorperated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registration Statement cn Form S-
3 (No. 333-72304) filed with the Commission on October 26, 2001
4(b) Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated April 18, 2003 between the Company Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form B8-[C filed with the
and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee Commission on August 18, 2004
4(c) Form of Indenture between the Company and Citibank, N.A., as Trustes, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a} to Registration Statement on Form
dated as of February 14, 2005 S-3A8R (No. 333-151753) filed with the Commission on June 18, 2008
4d) First Supplemental Indenture, by and among Pithey Bowes Inc,, The Bank of Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed with the
New York, and Citibank, N.A., to the Indenture, dated as of February 14, Commission on Oclober 24, 2007 (Commission file number 1-3575)
2005, by and between the Company and Citibank
10(a) * Retirement Plan for Directors of Pitney Bowes Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a} to Form 10-K filed with the
Commission on March 30, 1993 {(Commission file number 1-3579)
1b) * Pitney Bowes Inc. Directors' Stock Plan {as amended and restated 19%9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit {i) to Form 10-K filed with the
Commission on March 36, 2000 (Commission file number 1-3579)
10(b.1) *  Pitmey Bowes Inc. Directors' Stock Plan {Amendment No. 1, effective as of Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to Form 10-Q filed with the
May 12, 2003) Commission on August 11, 2003 (Commission file number 1-3579)
10(b.2) *  Pimey Bowes Inc. Directors' Stock Plan (Amendment No. 2, effective as of Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b.2) to Form 10-K filed with the
May 1, 2007) Commission on March 1, 2007 {Commission file number 1-3579}
10(b.3} *  Pitney Bowes Inc. Divectors' Stock Plan (Amended and Restated effective Exhibit 10(b.3)
May 12, 2014)
10(c) * Pitney Bowes Stock Plan (as amended and restated as of January 1, 2002) Incorporated by reference to Annex | to the Definitive Proxy Statement for
the 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed with the Commission on
March 26, 2002 (Commission file number 1-3579)
10(d) * Pitney Bowes Inc. 2007 Stock Plan {as amended November 7, 2009) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (v) to Form 10-K filed with the
Comnission on February 26, 2010 {(Commission file number 1-3579)
10{e) * Pilncy Bowes Tnc. Key Bmployees' Incentive Plan (as amended and restated Incorporated by reference to Bxhibit (v to Form 10-X filed with the
October 1, 2007) (as amended November 7, 2009) Cominission on February 26, 2010 {Commission file number 1-3579)
10(fH * Pitney Bowes Severance Plan (as amended and restated as of Janvary 1, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{e) to Form 10-K filed with the
2008) Comimission on February 29, 2008 (Commission file nember 1-3579}
10(g) * Pitney Bowes Senior Excoutive Severance Policy (as amended and restated as Incorporated by refereace to Exhibit 10() to Form 10X filed with the
of Tanuary 1, 2008) Commission on Febraary 29, 2008 {Commission file nunber 1-3579)
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Reg. S-K

exhibits Description Status or incorporation by reference

10(h) * Pitney Bowes Inc. Deferred Incentive Savings Plan for the Board of Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{g) to Form 10-K filed with the
Directors, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2009 Commission on February 26, 2009 (Commission file number 1-3579)

16(D) * Pitney Bowes Inc. Deferred Incentive Savings Plan as amended and restated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(h) to Form 10-K filed with the
effective Janvary 1, 2009 Commission on February 26, 2009 (Commission file number 1-3579)

163 * Pitney Bowes Inc. 1998 UK. 8.A.Y.E. Stock Opticn Plan Incorporated by reference to Annex II to the Definitive Proxy Statement for

the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed with the Commission on
March 23, 2006 (Commission file number 1-3579)

10¢k) * Form of Long Term Incentive Award Agreement Incorporated by reference to BExhibit 10{k) to Formn 10-K filed with the
Comimission on February 21, 2014 {Commission file mmmber 1-3579)

Loy Stock purchase agreement dated May 11, 2015 between Pitney Bowes Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed May 11, 2015

and Red Ventures HeldCo, LP. {Commission file number 1-3579)

10(my* Agreement and plan of mergers dated May 5, 2015, by and among Pitney Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed May 7, 2015
Bowes Inc., BrickBreaker Acquisition Corp and Borderfree Inc. (Commission file number 1-3579)

10(0)* Pitney Bowes Director Equity Deferral plan dated November 8, 2013
(effective May 12,2014} Exhibit 10(o0)

10(p)* Pitnhey Bowes Executive Equity Deferral Plan dated November 7, 2014 Exhibit 10(p)

10{q)* Pitney Bowes Inc. 2013 Stock Plan Incorporated by reference to Annex A to the Definitive Proxy Statement for

the 2013 Annuwal Meeting of Stockholders filed with the Commission on
March 25, 2013 (Commission file number 1-3579}

12 Computation of ratio of eamnings to fixed charges Exhibit 12
21 Subsidiaries of the registrant Exhibit 21
23 Consent of experts and counsel Exhibit 23
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d- Exhibit 31.1
14{a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
32 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursusant to Rules 13a~14(a) and 15d- Exhibit 31.2
14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, s amended.
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350  Exhibit 32.1
32.2 Certification of Chiof Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S,C, Section 1350  Exhibit 32,2

101.INS XBRL Report Instance Document

101.CH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Caleulation Linkbase Document
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbuase Document
101.LAE  XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document
101PRE  XBRIL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

* The Exhibits identified above with an asterisk (*} are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

The Company has outstanding certain other long-term indebtedness. Such long-term indebtedness does not exceed 10% of the iotal assets of the Company; therefore, copies of
instruments defining the rights of holders of such indebtedness are not included as exhibits. The Company agrees fo furnish copies of such instruments to the SEC upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 22,2016  PITNEY BOWES INC.
Registrant

By: /¢/ Marc B, Lautenbach
Mare B. Lautenbach
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
s/ Marc B. Lautenbach President and Chief Executive Officer - Director February 22,2016
Marc B. Lautenbach
fs/ Michael Monahan Executive Vice President, Chief Qperating Officer and Chief Financial Officer February 22,2016
Michael Monahan {Principal Financial Officer)
[s/ Steven J. Green Vice President-Finance and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting February 22,2016
Steven J. Green Officer)
s/ Michael [ Rath Nen-Executive Chairman - Director February 22,2016
Michael L Roth
/s/ Linda G. Alvagado Director February 22,2016
Linda G. Alvarado
{3/ Anne M. Busquet Director February 22,2016
Anne M. Busquet
/8/ Roger Fradin, Director Febmuary 22,2016
Roger Fradin
/sf Anne Sutherland Fuchs Director February 22,2016
Anne Sutherland Fuchs
/s/ 8. Douglas Flutcheson Director February 22,2016
8. Douglas Hutcheson
{3/ Eduardo R. Menascé Director Febrary 22,2016
Eduardo R. Menascé
/s/ Linda 8. Sanford Director February 22,2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes Inc.

In owr opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consclidated statements of income, of comprehensive income, of stockholders’
equity (deficit) and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Pitney Bowes Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,2015
and 2014, and the results of their eperations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2015 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the
accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal contrel over financial reporting as of December 31,2015,
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013} issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COS0). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the
financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s intemal centrol over financial reporting based on our integrated audits, We conducted our andits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective intemal contrel over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Ovr audit of intemal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal contrel
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonablc basis for our epinions.

As discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it classifies deferred tax assets and liabilities as
of December 31,2015,

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for discontinued operations in 2014,

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for extemal puiposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company’s intemal centrol
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositicns of the assets cfthe company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary te permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable agsurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispesition ofthe company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projeciions of any evaluation of
cffectiveness to fiture periods are subject to the risk that contrels may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

As described in the Report of Management on Internal Centrot over Financial Reporting, management has excluded Borderfree from its assessment of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2015.
We have also excluded Borderfiee from our audit of internal control over financial reporting. Borderfiee is a wholly-owned subsidiary whose total
consalidated assets and total consolidated net revenues represent approximately 8% and approximately 2%, respectively, of the related consolidated
financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 20135,

{s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Stamfoxd, CT
February 22,2016
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PITNEY BOWESINC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share amounnts)

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
: Hippcit s £ “m\ 22 .._....m__,;‘gsil_qn'r:::t-m--:::':: TS
Supplies 288,103 300,040
e 386,5(!6 el

484,620
3238
625,135

554,764

3,821,50 3,791,335

365,724
VRN
123,760

110,653

449,932

110,412

244
109,268
jther (incomie) expense, i 048 1630
Total costs and expenses 2,967,235 3,407,381

610,825
189,778

Income (loss) from discontinved operations, nct o
B i g

33,749 (144,777)
ST e

Cinconie

nencontrolling interests

ncome - Pitney: Bowes ng

Amounts atiributable to commen stockholders:

(1} The sum of the earnings per share ameunts may not equal the totals due to reunding,

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PITNEY BOWES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

Net unrealized gain on cash. ﬂow hedges, net of tax of $484, $1,080 and $894, respectively
. P Ty 55

dlized (loss)-pain-o

Adjustmeﬂts to pension and postretirement plans, net of tax of §13,844, $(106,336) and $64,316,

respectively 19,146 (212,818} 122,023
S8l 5160
(42,479) (271,600) 106,657

Other comprehensive (loss) ir

mprehensive income = Pilg

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateiments
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PITNEY BOWESINC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share amounts)

December 31, 2015

ber 31, 2014

Current assets:

Short-term investment

577,123

ONTROLLING INTERES

Total Liabikities ] ] 5,066,370 6,126,073

Noncuntrollmgmterests (Preferred stockhoiders &g tymsub51d1arles) - . 296,370 296,370 7

16571 See Note: 1 7):

Hipckholder

323,338

5,155,537
888,635)
(4,573 305) (4,477,032)

Total liabilities, noncentreliing interests and stockheolders” equity $ 6,141,461 § 6,499,702

See Notes te Consclidated Financial Statements
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PITNEY BOWES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

s (20,602)

101,415

(13,844)
96,611

{Increase) decrease in inventories (7,621 9,104 67,188

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued Labilities

& 15?@,{380):,':?:
(18,695)

Tngreass (decrease) in advance billings

514,639 655,526 624,824

(205,256) (680,582)
S207.063 S ')2872
{69,329) _

apIl
Prucccds fwm salc ol assets

389,680

(1,079,207)

395
(50,003)

(131,719)

(311,844}
Py
167,330

(570,725)
4387
(403,561)

(15,055)

1,054,118

650,557

§ 880,788

Cash and cash equivalents al end of

Cash income tax payments, net of refunds % 138,877 & 203,193 & 224,432
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PITNEY BOWESINC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands)
Aceummlated
Additional other
Preferred Preference Common Paid-in Retained comprehensive Treasury
stock stoek Stock Capital earnings loss stock Tota)l equity

Halance at Déceraber 1. 20125 PR e TR TD

Net income « Pitney Bowes Inc. — — s — 142,835 — —_— i

2,835

Lo S

SRR
46

iy
205,176

271,600}

Commen

(151,567}
Preke

(27,081

17,446
50,0030

(7.520)
2385
407,943

30

Net income - Pitney Bowes Inc

SErRO7 708

S Lo SRR

omnprehensive loss -
Cash dividends

Common

iy

Preference

“Jsslidtivees oE contimon stock (7105

Conversions to common steck 43) — (916)

Sed:cotipe

Repurchase of commeon stock — _— —_ — — — {131,719) (131,719)
; ' ' ' ' ‘ 3 - SlaATRIS

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Pitney Bowes Inc, (we, us, our, or the company) and its wholly owned subsidiaries have been
prepared in conformity with accounting ptinciples generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), Intercompany transactions and balances have
been eliminated. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform te the curent year presentation.

As a result of the acquisition of Borderfree, Inc. (Borderfree} in June 2015 and the sale of our Marketing Services business, Imagitas, in May 2015 (see Note
3}, we realigned our segment reporting to conform to the way we now manage our segments and recast prior period amounts to conform to the current year
presentation (see Note 2). Our business continues to be organized arcund three distinct sets of solutions — Small and Medium Business (SMB) Solutions,
Enterprise Business Solutions and Digital Commerce Solutions (DCS). Under the new segment reporting, there were ne changes to SMB Solutions or
Enterprise Business Solutions; however, within DCS, our Software Solutions operations and Global Ecommerce operations are reported as reportable
segiments, The Other segment is comprised of Imagitas, Imagitas was previcusly reported in DCS,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses and accompanying disclosures, including the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, These estimates and assumptions
are based on management's best knowledge of current events, historical experience and other information available when the financial statements are
ptepared. These estimates include, but are not limited to, revenue recognition for multiple element arrangements, the allocation of purchase price to tangible
and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations, goodwill and intangible asset impairment review, allowance for doubtful
accounts and credit losses, residual values of leased assets, useful lives of long-lived and intangible assets, restructuring costs, pensions and other
postretirement costs, income tax reserves, deferred tax asset valuation allowance, stock-based compensation expense and loss contingencies. Actual results
could differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Cash Equivalents and Shoxrt-Term Invesiments

Cash equivalents include liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. Shori-term investments include investments with
a maturity of greater than three months but less than one year from the reporting date.

Investment Sccurities

Investment securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are carried at amortized
cost, Investment securities not classified as held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value, with unrcalized gains and losses
reported in other comprehensive income, net of tax. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the effective interest method
over the term of the security. Gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale securitics are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific
identification method, Investment securities are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as cash and cash cquivalents, short-term investments and other
assets depending on the investment's maturity.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the probable losses on accounts receivable and provide an allowance for doubtful accounts. The estimate of probable losses is based on
historical loss cxperience, aging of receivables, adverse situations that may affect a client's ability to pay and prevailing economic conditions, We
continually evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts and make adjustments as necessary. The assumptions used in determining an
estimate of probable losses are inherently subjective and actual results may differ significantly from estimated reserves.

Accounis receivable are generally due within 30 days after the invoice date. Accounts deemed uncollectible are written off against the allowance after all

collection cfforts have been exhausted and management deems the account to be uncollectible. We believe that our accounts receivable credit risk is low
because of the geographic and industry diversification of our clients and small account balances for most of our clients.
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Finance Receivables and Allowance for Credit Losses

Finance receivables are composed of sales-type lease receivables and unsecured revolving loan receivables. We estimate the probable losses and provide an
allowance for credit losses. The estimate of probable losses is based cn historical loss experience, the nature and volume of our portfolios, adverse situations
that may affect a client's ability to pay, prevailing economic conditicns and our ability to manage the collateral, We continually evaluate the adequacy of the
allowance for credit losses and make adjustments as necessary. The assumptions used in determining an estimate of credit losses are inherently subjective and
actual results may differ significantly from estimated reserves.

We establish credit approval limits based on the credit quality of the client and the type of equipment financed. Our policy is to discontinue revenus
recognition for lease receivables that are more than 120 days past due and for unsecured loan receivables that are more than 90 days past due. We resume
revenue recognition when the client's payments reduce the account aging to less than 60 days past due. Finance receivables deemed uncollectible are written
off against the allowance after all collection efforts have been exhausted and management deems the account to be uncollectible, We believe that our finance
receivable credit risk is low because of the geographic and industry diversification of our clients and small account balances for most of our clients.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined on the last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis for most U.S. inventories and on the first-in, first-
out {FIFO) basis for most non-U.S. inventories.

Fixed Assets

Property, plant and equipment and rental equipment are stated at cost and depreciated pringipally using the straight-ling method over their estimated useful
lives, which are up to 50 years for buildings, three to 15 years for machinery and equipment, four to six years for rental equipment and three to five years for
computer equipment. Major improvements which add to productive capacity or extend the life of an asset are capitalized while repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as incurred. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the remaining lease term, Fully
depreciated assets are retained in fixed assets and acoumulated depreciation until they are removed from service.

We capitalize certain costs of software developed for interal use. Capitalized costs include purchased materials and services, payroll and personnel-related
costs and interest. The cost of internally developed software is amortized on a straight-line basis over ifs estimated useful life, prineipally three to 10 years

Intangibie assets

Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, principally three to 15 vears, usiﬂg either the straight-line method or an
accelerated attrition method.

Research and Development Costs

Rescarch and product development costs include engineering costs related to research and product development activities and are expensed as incured.

Impairment Review for Long-lived and Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

Long-tived assets and finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying
amount may not be fully recoverable. The estimated undiscounted future cash flows cxpected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset is
compared to the asset’s camrying value. If the sum of the undiscounted cash flows is less than the asset’s carrying value, an impairment charge is recorded for
an amount by which the asset's carrying value exceeds its fair value. The fair value of the impaired asset is determined using probability weighted expectod
cash tlow cstimates, quoted market prices when available and appraisals, as appropriate. We derive cash flow estimates from our long-term business plans and
historical experience.

Impairment Review for Goodwill

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment at the reporting unit lovel during the fourth quarter or sooner when circumstances indicate an impairment may
exist. A reporting unit is the operating segment, or a business that is one level below that operating segment. Reporting units are aggregated as a single
reporting unit if they have similar economic characteristics, Goodwill is tested for impairment using a two-step approach. In the first step, the fair value of
each reporting unit is determined and compared to the reporting unit's carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
canmying value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount of impairment, if any. In the second step, the fair value of
the reporting unit is allocated to the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit as if it had been acquired in a business combination and the purchase price was
equivalent to the fair
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value of the reporting unit. The excess of'the fair value of the reporting unit ever the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is referred to as the implied
fair value of goodwill, The implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill is then compared to the actual carrying value of goodwill. If the implied fair
value of goodwill is less than the carrying value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference. The fair value of a reporting unit is
determined based on a combination of various techniques, including the present value of future cash flows, multiples of competitors and multiples from sales
oflike businesses.

Retirement Plans

Net periodic benefit cost includes current service cost, interest cost, expected return on plan assets and the amortization of actuarial gains and losses.
Actuarial gaing and losses arise from actual experiences that differ from previous assumptions as well as changes in assumptions including expected retum on
plan assets, discouni rates used to measure pension and other postretirement cbligations and life expectancy. The expected return on assets is measured using
the market-related value of assets, which is a calculated value that recognizes changes in the fair value of plan assets over five years, Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of tax, and amortized to benefit cost over the life expectancy of inactive plan participants, The
funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit plans is recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Stoeck-based Compensation

We measure compensation expense for stock-based awards based on the estimated fair value of the awards expected to vest {net of estimated forfeitures) and
recognize the expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, The fair value of stock awards is estimated using a Black-Scholes valuation
model or a Monte Carlo simulation model. These models require assumptions be made regarding the expected stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate, life
of the award and dividend yield. The expected stock price volatility is based on historical price changes of our stock. The risk-free interest rate is based on
U.8. Treasuties with a term equal to the expectsd life of the stock award, The expected life of the award and expected dividend yicld are based on histerical
experience. We beligve that the valuation techniques and underlying assumptions are appropriate in estimating the fair value of stock awards.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenue from multiple sources including sales, rentals, financing and services. Certain transactions are consummated at the same time and can
therefore generate revenue from multiple sources, The most common form of these transactions involves a sale or non-cancelable lease of equipment, a meter
rental and an equipment maintenance agreement. In these multiple element arrangements, revenue is allocated to each of the elements based on relative
"selling prices" and the selling price for each of the elements is determined based on vendor specific objective evidence (VSOE). We establish VSOE of
selling pricos for our products and services based on the prices charged for each element when sold separately in standalone transactions. Tho allocation of
relative selling price to the vatious clements impacts the timing of revenue recognition, but does not change the total revenue recognized, Revenue is
allocated to the meter rental and equipment maintenance agreement elements using their respective selling prices charged in standalene and renswal
transactions. For a sale transaction, revenue is allocated to the equipment based on a range of selling prices in standalone transactions. For a lease transaction,
revenue is allocated to the equipment bascd on the present value of the remaining mininmm lease payments, The amount allocated to equipment is compared
to the range of selling prices in standalone transactions during the period to ensure the allocated equipment amount approximates average selling prices.
More specifically, revenue related to our offerings is recognized as follows:

Sales Revenue

Sales of Equipment

We sell equipment directly to our customers and to distributors (re-sellers) throughout the world, We recognize revenue from these sales when the risks and
rewards of ownership transfer to the client, which is generally upon shipment or acceptance by the customer We recognize revenue from the sale of
equipment under sales-type leases as equipment sales revenue at the inception of the lease. We do not typically offer any rights of return o1 stock balancing
rights. Sales reverue from customized cquipment, mail creation equipment and shipping products is generally recognized when installed.

Sales of Supplies
Revenue related to supplies is generally recognized upon dclivery.

Standalone Software Sales and Integration Services

We also have multiple element arrangements containing only software and sofiware related elements. Software related elements may include maintenance
and suppoit services, data subscriptions, training and integration services. Under these multiple element arrangements, we allocate revenue based on VSOE
for software related elements and use the residual method te determine the amount of softwate licenses revenue, Under the residual method, the fair-value of
the undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining porticn of the amangement consideration is allocated to the delivered elements and recognized as
revenue. The majority of our software license
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arrangements arg bundled with maintenance and support services and we establish VSOE of fair value using a bell-shaped curve analysis for maintenance and
suppoit services renewal rates. If we cannot obtain VSOE for any undelivered sofiware element, revenue is deferred until all deliverables have been delivered
oruntil VSOE can be determined for any remaining undelivered seftware elements.

We recogiize revenue fiom standalone software licenses upon delivery of the product when persuasive evidence of an amangement exists, delivery has
accurred, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectability is probable. For sofiware licensges that are included in a lease contract, we recognize revenue
upon shipmetit of the software unless the lease contract specifies that the license expires at the end of the Iease or the price of the software is deemed not fixed
or determinable based on historical evidence of similar software leases, In these instances, revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease contract, We recognize revenue fiom software requiring integration services at the point of customer acceptance. We recoghize revenue related to off-
the-shelf perpetual software licenses generally upon shipment,

Rentals Revenue

We rent equipment, primarily postage meters and mailing equipment, under short-term rental agreements. Rentals revenue includes revenue from the
subscription for digital meter services. We may invoice in advance for postage meter rentals according to the terms of the agreement. We initially defer these
advanced billings and recognize rentals revenue on a straight-line basis over the invoice period, Revenues gencrated from financing clients for the continued
use of equipment subsequent to the expiration of the original lease are recognized as rentals revenue.

We capitalize certain initial direct costs incurred in consummating a rental transaction and recognize these costs over the expected term of the agreement.
Amortization of initial direct costs was $8 millien, $10 million and $11 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Initial direct costs included in rental
property and equipment, net in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $20 million and $22 million, respectively.

Financing Revenue

We provide lease financing for our products primarily through sales-type leases. We also provide revolving lines of credit to our clienis for the purchase of
postage and supplies. We believe that our sales-type lease portfolic contains only normal collection risk. Accordingly, we record the fair value of equipment
as sales revenue, the cost of equipment as cost of sales and the minimum lease payments plus the estimated residual value as finance receivables, The
differcnce between the finance receivable and the equipment fair value is recorded as uncamed income and is amoertized as income over the lease term using
the interest method.

Equipment residual values ate determined at inception of the lease using estimates of equipment fair value at the end of the lease term. Estimates of future
equipment fair value are based primarily on historical experience. We also consider forecasted supply and demand for various products, product retirement
and launch plans, regulatory changes, remanufacturing strategies, used equipment markets, if any, competition and technological changes, We evaluate
residual valueg on an annual basis or sooner if circumstances warrant, Declines in estimated residual values considered "other-than-temporary” are recegnized
immediately, Estimated increases in future residual values are not recognized until the equipment is remarketed.

Support Services Revernue
We provide support services for our equipment primarily through maintenance contracts, Revenue related to these agreements is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the agreement,

Business Services Revenue

Business services revenue includes revenue fom presort mail services, global ccommerce solutions and shipping solutions. Prior to ocur divestitute of
Tmagitas in May 20135, busincss services revenue also included revenues from direct marketing services. Revenue for these services were recognized as the
sotvices were provided.

We also evaluate whether it is apprepriate to record revenue on a gross basis when we are acting as a principal in the transaction or net of costs when we are
acling as an agent between the client and the vendor We consider several factors In detormining whether we are acting as principal or agent such as whether
we are the primary obligorto the client, have control over the pricing and have credit risk.

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and handling costs are recognized as incurred and recorded in cost of revenues.
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Deferred Marketing Costs

We capitalize certain costs associated with the acquisition of new customers and recognize these costs over the expected revenue stream of eight years.
Amortization of deferred marketing costs was $18 million, $23 million and $27 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Deferred marketing costs
included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $43 million and $49 million, respectively. We review
individual marketing programs for impainment on a quarterly basis or as circumstances warrant,

Restructuring Charges

Costs associated with restructuring actions and other exit or disposal activities include employee severance and other employee separation costs and lease
termination costs. These costs are recognized when a liability has been incumed, which is generally upon communication to the affected employees or exit
fiom a leased facility, and the amount to be paid is both probable and reasonably estimable. The rates used in determining severance accruals are based on
company policy, historical experience and negotiated settlements,

Derivative Instruments

In the normal course of business, we ate exposed te the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and inferest rates. We limit these risks by
following established risk management policies and procedures, including the use of derivatives. We use detivative instruments to limit the effects of
currency exchange rate fluctuations on financial results and manage the related cost of debt. We do not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

We record our derivative instruments at fair value and the accounting for changes in foir value depends on the intended use of the detivative, the resulting
designation and the effectiveness cf the instrument in offsetting the risk exposure it is designed to hedge. To qualify as a hedge, a derivative must be highly
effective in offsetting the risk designated for hedging purposes. The hedge relationship must be formally documented at inception, detailing the paiticular
risk management objective and strategy for the hedge. The effectiveness of the hedge relationship is evaluated on a retrospective and prospective basis.

The use of derivative instruments exposes us to counteiparty credit risk. To mitigate such risks, we enter into contracts with only those financial instituticns
that meet stringent credit requirements. We regula:ly review our credit exposure balances as well as the creditworthiness of our counterparties. We have not
seen a material change in the creditworthiness of those banks acting as derivative counterparties.

Income Taxes

We recognize deforred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date of such change. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that a
deferred tax asset will not be realized. In assessing whether a valuation allowance is necessary, and the amount of such allowance, we consider all available
evidence for cach jurisdiction including past operating rosults, estimates of future taxable income and the feasibility of ongoing tax planning strategies. As
new information becomes available that would alter our determination as to the amount of deferred tax assets that will ultimately bo realized, we adjust the
valuation allowance with a corresponding impact to income tax expense in the period in which such determination is made.

Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per shate is based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per share also includes the
dilutive efiect of stock awards, preference stock, preferred stock and stock purchase plans.

Translation of Nen-U.S. Currency Amounts

In general, the functional currency of our foreign operations is the local currency. Assets and liabilitics of subsidiarics operating outside the US, are
translated at rates in effect at the end of the period and revenue and expenses are franslated at average monthly rates during the period. Net deferred
translation gains and losses are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Loss Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we are routinely defendants in, or parfy to, a number of pending and threatened logal actions. On a quarterly basis, we
review the status of cach significant matter and assess the potential financial exposure. If the potential loss from any claim or legal action is considercd
probable and can be reasonably estimated, we establish a liability for the estimated loss. The assessment of the ultimate outcome of cach claim or legal action
and the determination of the potential financial exposure requires significant
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judgment. Estimatos of potential liabilities for claims or legal actions are based only on information that is available at that time. As additional information
becomes available, we may revise our estimates, and these revisiens could have a material impact on our results of operations and financial position. Legal
fees are expensed as incuned.

Reclassification

In 2015, we determined that certain investments were classified as cash and cash squivalents. Accordingly, the Conselidated Balance Sheet at December
2014 has been revised to reduce cash and cash equivalents by §25 millicn, and increase short-term investments by $17 million and other assets by §8
million. Additionally, the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 have also been revised to reduce cash
and cash equivalents and increase short-term investments and other assets for certain investment accounts.

During 20135, we determined that certain customer deposits at December 31, 2014 within cumrent liabilities should have been classified as either a current
asset or a non-cumrent liability. Accordingly, the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2014 has been revised by increasing accounts receivable by
$23 million, accounts payable and acerued liabilities by $14 millien and other non-current liabilities by $9 million.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In November 20135, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standard Update {ASU) 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of
Deferrved Taxes, which requires all defemed tax assets and liabilities to be presented as noncuirent in the balance sheet. The ASU is effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and can be applied either prospectively or retrospectively, Barly adoption is permitted. We have elected
to retrospectively adopt this ASU effective December 31, 20135, Accordingly, the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2014 has been revised by
reducing current income tax assets by $12 million and cwrent income tax liabilities by $60 million and increasing noncurrent income taxes by $2 million
and deferred taxes on income by $50 million.

In September 2015, the FASE issued ASU 2015-16, Business Combinations - Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Peviod Adjustiments, which
eliminates the requirement to restate prior peried financial statements for measurement period adjustments. The new guidance requires that the cumulative
impact of 2 measurement period adjustment {(including the impact on prior periods) be recognized in the reporting period in which the adjustment is
identified. Consistent with existing guidance, the new guidance requires an acquirer to disclose the nature and amount of measurement period adjustments.
The ASU is eftective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015 and requires that measurement period adjustments be applied
prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. We will adopt this standard in the first quarter of 2016 and cusrently do not expect the adoption of tlm. standard
will have a significant impaet on our consolidated financial statements or disclosures.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Inventory - Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which requires inventory to be measured at the lower of
cost and net realizable value (estimated selling price less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation). Prior to this guidance,
inventory was measurcd at the lower of cost or market (wherc market was defined as replacement cost, with a ceiling of net realizable value and a floor of net
realizable value of inventory, less a normal prefit margin). Inventory measured using LIFO is not impacted by the new guidance. The ASU is effective for
fiscal years beginning afier December 15, 2016 and interim periods therein. Eatly adoption is permitted. We do not believe this standard will have a
significant impact on our consolidated financial statcments or disclosures.

In April 20153, the FASB issued ASU 2015-05, fntangibles - Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software, Customer's Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud
Computing Arrangement, which provides guidance on fees paid by an entity in a cloud eomputing arrangement and whether an aangement includes a
license to the underlying sofiware, This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2015, We will adopt this standard in the first
quarter £ 2016 and the adoption of this standard will not have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements or disclosures.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Simplifving the Presentation of Debi Issuance Costs, which requires debt issuance costs te be presented in the
balance sheet as a direct deduction from the associated debt liability. This standard is effective for fiscal petiods beginning after December 15, 2015, We will
adopt this standard in the first quarter of 2016. Upon adoption, debt issuance costs currently recorded as other assets in the Conselidated Balance Sheets will
be reclassified as a reduction in long-term debi. At December 31, 2013, debt issnance costs included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet was
$18 million.

In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-01, Income Statement - Extracrdinary and Unisieal Jrems, which removes the concept of extraordinary items,
thereby eliminating the need for companies to assess transactions for extraordinary treatment. The standard retained the presentation and disclosure

requirements for items that are unusual in nature and/or infrequent in occunmence. The standard is effective
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for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2015, We will adopt this standard in the first quarter of 2016 and the adoption of this standard will not have
an impact on our conselidated financial statements or disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard requires companies to recognize revenue for the transfer
of goods and services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration the company expects to receive in exchange for those goods and services. The
standard will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, In July 2015, the FASB approved a one-year deferral of the effective date, This standard is
now effective for fiscal periods beginning after Decembet 15, 2017, The standard can be adopted either retrospectively or as a cumulative-effect adjusiment.
Companies are permitted to adopt the standard as early as the original public entity effective date (fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2016). Barly
adoption prior to that date is prohibited. We are currently assessing the impact this standard will have on our congolidated financial statements and
disclosures.

2. Segment Information

The principal products and services of each of our reportable segments are as follows:

Small & Medium Business Solutions:

North America Mailing: Includes the revenue and related expenses fiom the sale, rental, financing and servicing of mailing equipment, software and
supplies for small and medium businesses to efficiently create physical and digital mail and evidence postage for the sending of mail, flats and parcels in
the U.S. and Canada,

International Mailing: Includes the revenus and related expenses fiom the sale, rental, financing and servicing of mailing equipment, software and
supplies for small and medium businesses to efiiciently create physical and digital mail and evidence postage for the sending of mail, flats and parcels in
areas outside the U.S. and Canada.

Enterprise Business Solutions:

FProduction Mail: Tncludes the worldwide revenue and related expenses from the sale of production mail inserting and sortation equipment, high-speed
production print systems, supplies and related suppert services to large enterprise clients to process inbound and outbound mail.

Presort Services: Includes revenue and related expenses from presort mail services for our large enterprise clients to qualify large mail volumes for postal
worksharing discounts.

Digital Commerce Solutions:

Software Solutions: Includes the worldwide revenue and related expenses from the sale of non-equipment-based mailing, customer information
management, location intelligence and customer engagement selutions and related support services.

Global Ecommerce: Includes the worldwide revenue and related expenses from cross-border ecommerce and shipping solutions.

We determine segment earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) by deducting from segment revenue the related costs and cxpenses atiributable to the
segment. Segment EBIT excludes interest, taxes, general corperate expenses, restrucluring charges and asset impairment charges, which are not allocated to a
particular business segment. Management uses segment EBIT to measure profitability and performance at the segment level. Management believes segment
EBIT provides a useful measure of our operating performance and underlying trends of the businesses. Segment EBIT may not be indicative of our overnll
consolidated performance and therefore, should be read in conjunction with cur consolidated results of operations.
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The following tables provide information about our reportable segments,

Revenues
Years Ended December 31,
_ 2015 2014
North‘Ameérica:Mailin ABI S 1491027 5,983
International Mailing . 445328 572,440 602,582
-~ Small & Medium Business & - - ' i arrare
Production Mail 462,199 511,544

It Sery

918,755

‘Seftware Solition

Global Ecommerce“

] lgnta](.ommerce Sa

United States 2,743,957 2,654,301
Gtside United St = = = = : 017547
Total $ 3,578,060 § 3,821,504 § 3,791,333
EBIT
Years Ended December 31,

2014
Bt
88,710

rprisc Business Solutions

Software Solutions. - =52 s

Global Ecommerce

Reconciling itetns:

“interestznet:

Unall ca_t;:d corporate (233,126}
_ Acquisition/disposition related expenses (14,983) — —

): 048

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 3 610,825 3§

32,0397
$ 383,954
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Depreciation and amortization
Years Ended December 31,

N e il
International Mzﬁimg
& A& Medi
,Production Mail

Inallodated:amonnt:

Discontinued operations

Capital expenditures
Years Ended December 31,

North America Mailing -
International Mailing

Production Mail

‘Presort SeTvides:ii:

Enterprise Buosiness Solutions

Solutions:s

Glmobﬂl Ec_(_)mmerce

lidsited eapital expendi tite
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Assets

December 31,
1015 2014 2013

4;
‘ 594,540 687,233
- Smail & Medium Business Solution 3015635 0356
l?n__)_(:l_lyp_t%_on Mail 244,156 266,831

PresortServices::

618,803 613,681

(858308
580,662

Enterprise Business Solutions

Jigi
Other

four:fér‘;c;ﬁauﬁ I e

Reconciliation to consolidated amount:

Short-term investments 117,021
Other corporafc assets -+ i~ 300476
Discontinued operations

divalents

@

o

# S
iConsolidated asset

Identifiable long-lived assets:

United State == Sy :
QOutside United States 119,545

3. Business Combinations and Divestiture

Business Combinatiens

Borderfree

In June 2015, we acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of Borderfree, Borderfree provides cross-border ecommerce solutions through a proprietary
technology and servicos platform that enables retailers to transact with consumers around the world. Borderfree is reported within our Global Ecommerce
segment (see Note 2). The purchase price was $381 million, net of$92 million of cash acquired. In addition, we also paid $10 million for the accelerated
vesting and settlement of Borderfree stock-based compensation awards and $8 million of transaction costs. The expense related to Borderfiee stock-based

compensation awards was recognized as selling, general and administrative oxpenses and the transaction costs were recognized within other (income)
expense, net in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The allocation of the purchase price to the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed was as follows:

(40,798)

8 381,449
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Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill is primarily attributable to
expected growth opportunities, synergies and other benefits that we believe will result from combining the operations of Borderfiee with our operations.
Goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

Intangible assets acquired consisted of the follewing:

Value Amortization period

Developed technology o 5 years
T 5 :

s 137500

The results of operations of Borderfree are included in our conselidated results from the date of acquisition. Our consolidated operating results for the year
ended December 31, 2015 includes revenue of $63 million from Borderfree operations. On a supplemental pro forma basis, had we acquired Borderfree on
January 1,2014, revenue would have been $47 million and $125 million higher for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The impact
on earnings would not have been material.

Other Acquisitions

In October 2015, we acquired the net assets of Zip Mail Services, Inc. (Zip Mail) for $6 millien in cash plus additional payments totaling $1 millien during
the period 2016-2017. Zip Mail acts as an intermediary between customers and the US. Postal Service. Zip Mail offers mailing services that include
presorting of first class, standard class and flat mail. Zip Mail is reported within our Presort Services segment.

In May 2015, we acquired Real Time Content, Inc. (RTC} for $6 million, net of cash acquired. RTC provides technology that enables clients to provide
personalized interactive video communications to their customers, RTC is reported within our Software Solutions segment.

In January 2016, we acquired Enroute Systems Cotporation (Enroute) for $14 million in cash plus potential additional payments duting the periods 2017-
2019 based on the achievement of revenue targets during the periods 2016-2018. Enroute i3 a cloud-based, software-as-a-service enterprise retail and
fulfillment solutions company. Enrcute will be reported within our Global Ecommerce segment.

Divestiture

In May 2015, we sold Imagitas for net proceeds of $292 million. We recognized a pre-tax gain of $111 million, which was reported within other (income}
expense, net in the Consolidated Statements of Incomae,
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4. Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations include the results of cur Document Imaging Solutiens (DIS) business sold in 2014 and our Management Services business (PBMS),
Nordic furniture business and International Mailing business (IMS) sold in 2013. Discontinued operations also include certain tax benefits related to our
Capital Services business that was sold in 2006.

Income from discontinued operations in 2015 of$5.3 million primarily includes a favorable tax adjustment related to the sale of DIS, Incotne {loss) fom
discontinued operations for 20i4 and 2013 are shown in the following tables,

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Nordie furniture
FBMS VS business DIS Total

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Nordic furnityre
business

2,717)
=

{1,064)

@iy
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5. Earnings per Share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December31,2015, 2014 and 2013 are presented below, The sum of eamings per
share amounts may not equal the totals due to rounding.

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

: 950
203,961 202,957

149

Continuing operations
EDiscontinned:ope

Net income attributable to Pitney Bowes Inc.

Allti-dilthive options excluded fiom diluted earnings per share (inrthousands):

0. Inventories

Inventories at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of'the following:

December 31,

33605
26,992
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7. Finance Assets
Finance Receivables

Finance receivables are comprised of sales-type lease receivables and unsecured revelving loan receivables. Sales-type lease receivables are generally due in
monthly, quarterly or semi-annual installments over periods ranging from three to five years. Loan receivables arise primarily from financing services offered
to our clients for postage and supplies. Loan receivables are generally due each month; however, customers may rollover outstanding balances. Interest is
recognized on loan receivables using the effective interest method and related annual fees are initially deferred and recognized ratably over the annual period
covered. Customer acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

Finance receivables at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

North America International Total North America International Total

$ 1520489 § 1,286,624

Gross finance receivables 5 1212350 %
- - 100,000 ) - IIE709 05508
Unearned income o (252,522} (68,_965) (321,48N (270,190)

1cé for credit losses: (3:6143

0, “(10281)
1,304,362 1,111,352

Net investment in sales-type lease receivables

iLoan receivables:=

363,672
:;(9;;9'95? ;
353,776

Loan receivables

91

owance for creticloss (11,41 52
40,086 393,862 366,073

Loans receivables are due within ene year. Maturities of gross sales-type lease finance receivables at December 31, 2015 were as follows:

Sales-type Lease Receivables

North Ameriea International Total

Thereafter
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Allowance for Credit Losses

Activity in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended Deoceniber 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 was as follows:

Sales-type Lease Receivalles Loan Receivables
Neorth North

Atnericn Internationnl America International Total

Bl Ecember 3L019:
Amounts charged to expense

‘Balﬂnce at December 31,2013
SATHOUIES CHETE GO to CXPOnse o

(5440)
L2010 0T,

Accounts written off

Balance at Decembe

Amounts charged o expeﬁse 8940.
Accoutswilienoff = gasys = A G
Balance at December 31,2015 3 6,735 $ 3,614 $ 9,896 $ 1,518 $ 21,763

Aging of Receivables

The aging of finance receivables at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Sales-type Lease Receivables Loan Recelvables
North North
America International Amecricn International Total
‘December 31; — iR =
Legs than 30 days 1,147,455 - 348,730

31 =60 day
61 -90days

Sales-type Lease Receivables Loan Receivables
North North

Amcrica International America International Tatal

1,970,209

$

2,077,945
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Credit Quality

The extension of credit and management of credit lines to new and existing clients uses a combination of an automated credit score, where available, and a
detailed manual review of the client’s financial condition and, when applicable, payment history. Once credit is granted, the payment performance of the
cliont is managed through automated collections processes and is supplemented with direet follow up should an account become delinquent. We have robust
automated collections and extensive portfolio management processes. The portfolio management processes ensure that our global strategy is executed,
collection resources are allocated appropriately and enhanced tools and processes are implemented as needed.

We use a third party to score the majerity of the North America portfolio on a quarterly basis using a commercial credit score. We do not use a third party to
score our International portfolio becanse the cost to do se is prohibitive, given that it is a localized process and there is no single credit scere model that
covers all countries.

The table below shows the North America portfolio at December31, 2015 and 2014 by relative risk class {low, medium, high) based on the relative scores of
the accounts within cach class, The relative scores are determined based ou a number of factors, including the company type, ownership structure, payment
history and financial information. A fourth class is shown for accounts that are not scored. Absence of a score is not indicative of the credit quality of ihe
account. The degree of risk, as defined by the third party, refers to the relative risk that an account in the next 12 month period may become delinquent.

+  Lowrisk accounts are companies with very good credit scores and are considered to approximate the top 30% of all commercial borrowers.

= Medium risk accounts are companies with average to geed credit scores and are considered to approximate the middle 40% of all commercial berrowers.

*  High risk accounts are companies with poor credit scores, are dslinquent or are at risk of becoming delinquent and are considered to approximate the
bottom 30% of all commercial borrowers,

December 31,
2015 2014

926,387 936,979

260,204
85,671

Total - ' $ 363,672 % 176,087
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8. Fixed Assets
Fixed assets at December 31,2015 and 2014 consisted ofthe following:

December 31,

2014

&
£
E,
E:

apitalized Software
Bitldings: s

S2eto
897,532

879,222
146478
(861,387)

574

3 iipy
(226,833)

Accumulated depreciation
. o

(261,864

Depreciation expense was $136 million, $165 million and $158 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
9. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets

Intangible assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Graoss Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount Amount
5 65,106
— 29,000

Amortization Amount

Cust ationship

.'SL'lp'pli‘er rel_f_ttianéh 1ps
Sofiwaie & tochnolop; 303 T s
_T radernarks & other 7,879 33,079

187,37 i

ntapgibleassets net s

Amortization expense for intangible asscts was $37 million, $34 million and $37 million for the years cnded December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The future amaortization expense for intangible assets at December 31, 2015 was as follows:

21,741
035

Actual amortization expense may differ fiom the amounts above due to, among other things, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, acquisitions,
divestitures and impairment charges.
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Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, by reporting segment, for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014 are shown in the tables below. Prior
year amounts have been recast for the change in reportable segments.

Gross value

before
accumulated Accumulated December 31, December 31,
impairment impnirment 2014 Acquisition Other O 2015
SEanyre e e e e

162,146 — (13,795) 148351
71,594 ”"ll‘h190 mezﬁi&; M

110,837 — 110,837 — (5,080) _
305,977 —_ 305,977 1,750 (5,080) 302,647

23,910 —_

300,020
30581 (782 998!
- {194,232) —

194,232

Gross value before
accumulated Accumulated December 31, Deccmiber 31,

t 2013

G716
(20,115) _
st 17.331) 471,59
118,060 — 118,060 (7,223) 110,837
e e

313,200 — 313,200 (7,223)

48325 , (8243
23910 — 23,910
e e e e
194,232 194,232

182,261

(9,353)
(02:150)::

1ed operations

Tolal goodwill:

(1) Primarily represents foreign currency translation adjusiments. For 2015, Other represents the write-off of remaining goodwill upen the sale of Imagitas. For 2014, the adjustment
in discontinued operations primarily represents the write-off of remaining goodwill upon sale.

62




PITNELY BOWES INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular dolflars in thousands, except per share amounts)

10, Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments

We measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a
market participant rather than an entity-specific measure. An entity is required to classify certain asgsets and liabilities measured at fair value based on the
following fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2~ Quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3~ Unobservable inputs that are supperted by little or no market activity and may be derived from internally developed methodologies based on
management'’s best estimates.

The following tables show, by level within the fair value hierarchy, our financial assets and liabilities that are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis
at December 31,2015 and 2014. Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is sigunificant to the fair
value measurement. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect their placement
within the fair value hierarchy.

December 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investment secur

es
funds/commerciatpape

Equity securittes
ingled fied: incon

Debt sécuritics - .S, and foreign governments, agencies and
nicipalities B _ 102,235 12,566 — 114,801

bt securitics - corpora e e L6 BRYT: : :
Mortgage-hacked / asset-backed securities — 178,234 — 178,234

(5387) % —

S 3RT
AesalLy]

$ (5.387)
5387

S
ki
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December 31, 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investment securities

i ¢o

Debt securities - 11.S. and foreign governments, agencies and
municipalities

Debt secufifies scorporaie

Foreign exchange contracts

Liabilitie_s: o
Svalives st — e
Foreign exchange contracts 3 — 8 (2,988 % — ¥ (2,938)
: = V ‘ 2088)

Investment Securities

The valuation of investment securities is based on the market approach using inputs that are observable, or can be corroborated by observable data, in an
active marketplace. The following information relates to our classification inte the fair value hierarchy:

»  Money Mavket Funds / Commercial Paper: Money market funds typically invest in government securities, certificates of deposit, commercial paper and
other highty liquid, low risk securities. Money martket funds are principally used for overnight deposits and are classified as Level 1 when unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets are available and as Level 2 when they are not actively traded on an exchange. Direct investments in commercial paper
are not listed on an exchange in an active market and are classified as Level 2.

v Equity Securities: Equity securities are comprised of mutual fundg investing in U.8. and foreign common stock. These mutual funds are classified as
Level 2 as they are not separately listed on an exchange.

v Commingled Fixed Income Securities: Mutual funds that invest in a variety of fixed income securities including securities of the U.8. government and its
agencies, corporate debt, mortgage-backed securities and asset-backed securities, The value of the funds is based on the market value of the underlying
investments owned by each fund, minus its liabilities, divided by the number of shares outstanding, as reported by the fund manager. These commingled
funds are not listed on an exchange in an active market and are classified as Level 2.

«  Debt Securities — U.S. and Foreign Governments, Agencies and Municipalities: Debt securities are classified as Level 1 where active, high velume trades
for identical securities exist. Valuation adjustiments are not applied to these securitics. Debt securities valued using quoted market prices for similar
sccurities or benehmarking model derived prices to queted market prices and trade data for identical or comparable securities are classified as Level 2.

¢ Debt Securities — Corporate Corporate debt securitics are valued using recently executed transactions, market price quotations where observable, or
bond spreads. The spread data used are {or the same maturity as the security. These securities are classified as Level 2,

+  Mortgage-Backed Securities / Asset-Backed Securities: These securities are valued based on external pricing indices. When external index pricing is not
observable, these securities are valued based on external price/spread data. These securities ave classified as Level 2.

Investment securities include tnvestments held by The Pitney Bowes Bank (the Bank), whose primary business is to provide financing solutions to clients
that rent postage meters and purchase supplies. The Bank's assets and liabilities consist primarily of cash, finance receivables, short and long-term
investments and deposit accounts,
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The Bank's investment securities are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments and ofher assets depending on the type of investment and maturity. Unrealized holding gains and lesses are recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income (AQCI), net of tax.

Available-For-Sale Securities

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, available-for-sale securities consisted of the following:

December 31, 2015
Gross unrealized Gross unrealized Estimated fair
Amortized cost gains losses

;
(1,079)

S0 M1 1:458
$ 355226 % 4,528 $ 3,835y % 355919
Deceraber 31,2014
Gross unrealized Gross unrealized Bstimated fair

Amortized cost gains losgses value

1,569
Seibaskedseene e : : = SEpEE e
Total $ 357330 § 6836 $ 2.133) § 362042

Investment securities that were in a loss position for 12 or more continmous months at December 31, 2015 had aggregate unrealized holding losses of §2
million and an estimated fair value of $36 million. Investment securities that were in a loss position for less than 12 continuous months at December 31, 2015
had aggregate unrealized holding losses 0f $2 million and an estimated fair value of $146 million.

Investment securities that were in a loss position for 12 or more continuous months at December 31, 2014 had aggregate unrealized holding losses of §1
million and an estimated fair value of $42 million. Investment sceurities that were in a loss position forless than 12 continuous months at December 31, 2014
had aggregate unrealized holding losses of §1 million and an estimated fair value of $88 million.

We have not recognized an other-than-temporary impairment on any of the investment securities in an unrealized loss position because we do not intend to
sell these securities, it is more likely than not that we will not be required to sell these securities before recovery of the unrealized losses and we expect to
receive the contractual principal and interest on these investment securities,

At December 31, 2015, the amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale securities have scheduled maturities as follows;

Estimated fair
Amortized cost valne

After | ye{;r ihrough 5yems
e o 10y
After 10 years

The expected payments on mortgage-backed and asset-backed sccuritics may not coincide with their contractnal maturities as borrowers have the right to
prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties,

At December 31, 2015, we had approximately $70 million of time deposits that are classified as held-to-maturity and are included in shortterm investments
because they mature in the next six months. The cost of these investments approximates fair value. We had no held-to-maturity invesiments at December 31,
2014.
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We have not experienced any write-offs in our investment portfolio. The majority of our mortgage-backed securities are either puaranteed or supported by the
U.S. government. We have no investments in inactive markets that would warrant a possible change in our pricing methods or classification within the fair
value hierarchy.

Derivative Instruments

The valuation of foreign exchange derivatives is based on a market approach using obsetrvable market data inputs, such as foreign currency spot and forward
rates and yield curves. We also incorporate counterparty credit risk and our credit risk into the fair value measurement of our derivative assets and liabilities,
respectively. We derive credit risk from observable data in the credit default swap market.

The fair value of our derivative instruments at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

December 31,

Designation of Derivatives Balance Sheet Location 2015 2014

designated ashedging inst
tract 3 -

assets and prepayments
sAceolints payable

d;t sﬁedgl])glnstf@lnfent‘h ey et

esig

Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets and prepayments
i e ed:labilit

“Accounts payableand ace

3
2,988)

Total-derivative asset : 1,710
Total derivative liabilities (5,387

Foreign Exchange Contracts

We enter into foreign exchange contracts to mitigate the currency risk associated with the anticipated purchase of inventory between affiliates and from third
parties. These contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. The effective portion of the gain or loss on cash flow hedges is included in AOCI in the period
that the change in fair value occurs and is reclassified to eamings in the period that the hedged item is recorded in earnings. At December 31, 2015 and 2014,
we had outstanding contracts associated with these anticipated transactions with a notional amount of $13 million and $18 million, respectively.

The amounts included in AOCT at December 31, 2015 will be recognized in earnings within the next 12 months. No amount of ineffectiveness was recorded
in earnings for these designated cash flow hedges.

The following represents the results af cash flow hedging relationships for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended December 31,
Derivative Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Reclassified
Recognized in AOCI from AOQCI to Earnings
Effective PPorti Effective Porti
(Effective Partion) Location of Gain (Loss) (Effective Portion)

2015 2014

Derivalive Instrumont 2015 2014 (Effeetive Portion)

Cost of sales

We also enter into foreign exchange contracts to minimize the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on short-term intercompany loans and related interest that
are denominated in a forcign eurrency. The revaluation of the intercompany leans and interest and the mark-to-market adjustment on the derivatives are both
recorded in eamings. All outstanding contracts at December 31, 2015 mature over the next three months.
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The following represents the results of our non-designated derivative instruments for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Year Ended Dacember 31,

Derivative Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Earnings

Derivatives Instrument Location of Derivative Gain (Loss) 2015 2014

“andadminisiativeexpe

Credit-Risk-Relnted Contingent Features

Certain derivative instruments contain credit-risk-related contingent features that would require us to post collateral based on a combination of our long-term
senior unsecured debt ratings and the net fair value of our derivatives. At December 31, 2015, the maximum amount of collateral that we would have been
required to post had the credit-risk-related contingent features been triggered was $5 million.

Fair Yalue of Financial Instruments

Qur financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, investment securities, accounts receivable, loan receivables, derivative instruments, accounts
payable and debt. The carrying value for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, loans receivable, and accounts payable approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these instruments,

The fair value of our debt is estimated based on recently executed transactions and market price quotations. The inputs used to determine the fair value of our
debt were classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The cartying value and estimated fair value of our debt at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was as
follows;

December 31,
2015 2014
e = 968997 § 9937006
Fair value $ 3,102,890 § 3,440,383

Caryingvalue

11, Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

The following table shows selected balance sheet information at Decernber 31,2015 and 2014:

December 31,
2015 2014

§ 327282
Sdpmitiaed 123,19
91,749

332452

Other

302,113
5565,339
255,893

Aceounts payable
{Customer deposit
Empl

268,527

Total $ 1448321 § 1,572,971
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12, Restructuring Charges and Asset Impairmen(s

The table below shows the activity in our restructuring reserves for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014

Severance and Other exit
henefits costs costs Total

erat December 3152013

Expenses, net

Balance at December31,2014

Cash payments “ {62,086)

Balance at Dece

The majority of the remaining restructuring reserves are expected to be paid over the next 12-24 months. Due to certain international labor laws and long-
term lease agreements, some payments will extend beyond 24 months. We expect to fund these payments from cash flows from operations,

Asset impairment

During 2015, we sold our world headquarters building for $39 million and recorded a loss on the sale of 5 million. The loss was recognized in restructuring
charges and asset impairments, net in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

13, Debt

December 31,
Interest rate 2015 20

A ;ﬁneiﬁi&li'pﬁpﬁ'? SR
Notes due March 2015

‘Notes due Jantary 2016
Notes due September 2017

274,879

Notes dus March 2018

Notes due May 2018

2 g due-\/[ar(; 124
Notes due Janvary 2037
i;(l'ii:‘(}'tés:dug:;M;archezUglj

500,
115,041
435000

SLisT58
2,951,822 3,226,943

Principal amount
Lesszymamortized disconnt

31,716
068,09 550067
461,085 324,879

portion long-term debt

68




PITNEY BOWLS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Tabulax dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

In November 2015 we redeemed the $1 10 million 5.250% notes due November 2022 at a par plus accrued and unpaid interest,

We also repaid the 3130 million term loans outstanding at December 31, 2014 and borrowed $1530 million under new a term loan, The term loan bears interest
at the applicable Eurodollar Rate plus 0.90%. Interest is payable and resets quartetly and the loans mature in December 2016 but may be extended through
June 2017 at our option. At December 31, 2015, the weighted-average interest rate of the term loans was 1.4%.

During 2015, we also repaid the $275 million, 5% notes that matured in March 2015.

In Qctober 2014, we received a loan from the State of Connecticut Department of Economic and Community Development. The loan consisted of a $13
million development loan and $1 million jobs-training grant that is subject to refund if certain conditions are not met. We satisfied the conditions related te
the $1 million jobs-training grant during 2015.

The 4.625% Notes due March 2024 may be redeemed, at anytime, at our option, in whele or in part, at par plus accrued interest and a make-whole payment.

The 6.7% Notes due March 2043 may be redeemed, at our opticn, in whole or in part, at par plus accrued interest any time on or after March 2018,
respectively.

The 5.25% Notes due 2037 may be redeemed by bondholders, in whole or in part, at par plus accrued interest in January 2017.

We have a commercial paper program and a committed credit facility of $1 billion to suppott commercial paper issuances. There were $90 million of
commercial paper borrowings at December 31, 2015, As of December 31, 2015, we had not drawn upon the credit facility. The credit facility expires in
January 2020,

In January 2016, we borrowed $300 million under a term loan and used the proceeds to repay a portion of the $371 million, 4.75% notes due Janvary 15,
2016, The remaining portion of the loan was repaid using cash from operations, The new term loan bears interest at the applicable Eurodollar Rate plus

1.25% and matures in December 2020.

Annual maturities of outstanding debt at Decomber 31,2015 are as follows:

Thereafler o . . o - 1 1,054,712
b s Rk

14. Retivement Plans and Postretirement Medical Benefits

We provide certain retirement benefits to our U.S. employees hired prior to January 1, 2005 and to eligible employees outside the U.S. under various defined
benefit retirement plans. Benefit accruals under most of our defined benefit plans, including our two largest U.S. pension plans, our UX, pension plans and
Canadian pension plans, have been frozen.

We also provide certain employer subsidized health care and employer provided life insurance benefits in the U.S. and Canada to eligible retirees and their
dependents. Employees hired before January 1, 2005 in the U.8, and April 1, 2005 in Canada become eligible for retirec medieal benefits after reaching age
55 and with the completion of the required service period. The cost of these benefits is recognized over the period the employee provides credited service to
the company.
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Retirement Plans

The benefit obligations and funded status of defined benefit pension plans are as follows:

United Stafes Foreign

2015 2014 2015 2014

715,287 672773

Interest cost

{Plin paticipants’ conteibtition:
Actuarial {gain) 1

Special termin

B = 1 3
Benefit obligation - end of year 3 1,689,885 § 1,868,176 $
] Folan assets av forhienefi

Fair value of plan assets - beginning of year 1,593.463

1,523,679

Actiial rettin on pl 173

g | T8

S 5033 4079637
(25432) 27,811)
SR g e ETg 000

(128,829)

P e

(117471)

svins recuphiized b the Cansolidate

5

Non-current asset

entHability:

(127,535)
1000

Information provided in the table below is only for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets at December 31, 2015 and
2014:

United States Foreign

2014 2015 2014
§ 1,866,525
58217,

529,593
41241
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Pretax amounts recognized in AOCI consist oft

United States Foreign

{144)

Prior service credit

Total $ 879611 § 918497 % 255214 % 252402

The estimated amounts that will be amertized from AOCT into net periodic benefit cost in 2016 are as follows:

United States Foreign
06.824

credit ©h (66)
e @y
26,764 § 5,729
The components of net periodic benefit cost {income) for defined benefit pension plans were as follows:
United States Foreign

27,365
(34:769):

Interest cost
(Expectedet
Amortization ofnet tmnsiti_on asset

of prior seteice (ciedit)cos

Other changes in plan asscis and benefit obligations for defined benefit pension plans recognized in other comprehensive income were as follows:

United States Foreign
2015 2014 2015 2014

fhlet actuanial (gainjloss :
Prior service credit

Amortization of prior service credit (cost)

Scitlement / curtailment
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Weighted-average actuarial assumptions used to determine end of year benefit obligations and net periodic benefit cost for defined benefit pension plans
include:

2015 2014 2013

United States ;
Used to determine benefit obligations
IScaunt |
Rate of compens:

ation increase . N/A N/A 73.5(7)7%

Used to determine net periodic benefit cost

Expécted retumn on plan assets

pensation ingrease.

Foreign =
Used to detgrmine benefit obligationg

Tt 10%-3.80%

' 1.50% - 3.50°

Used to determine net periodic benefit cost

untrate

Expected return on plan assets

B0%:=3.50%

0% 35

ofcompensation:increase:

A discount rate is used to determine the present value of our future benefit obligations. The discount rate for our U.S. pension and postretirement medical
benefit plans is determined by matching the expected cash flows associated with our benefit obligations to a pool of corporate long-term, high-quality fixed
income debt instruments available as of the measurement date. The discount rate for our largest foreign plan, the UK. Qualified Pension Plan (the UK. Plan},
is determined by using a model that discounts each year's estimated benefit payments by an applicable spot rate derived from a yield curve created from a
large number of high quality corporate bonds. For our other smaller foreign pension plans, the discount rate is selected based on high-quality fixed income
indices available in the country in which the plan is domiciled.

The expected retumn on plan assets is based on historical and expected rates of return for current and planned asset ¢lasses in the plans' investment portfolio
after analyzing historical experience and future expectations of the returns and velatility of the various asset classes. The overall expected rate of return for
the portfolio is based on the target asset allocation of our global pension plans, adjusted for historical and expected experience of active portfolio
management results, when compared to the benchmark retumns.

During 2016, we anticipate making total contributions of$9 million to our U.S, pension plans and $46 million to our foreign pension plans. We will reassess
our funding alternatives as the ycar progressos.

Investment Strategy and Asset Allecation - U,S, Pension Plans

The investment strategy of our U.S. pension plans is to maximize retums within reasonable and prudent levels of risk, to achieve and maintain full funding of
the accumulated benefit obligation and the actuarial liabilitics and to earn a nominal rate of retum ofat least 7.0%. The fund has established a strategic asset
allocation policy to achieve these objectives. Investments are diversified across asset classes and within each class to reduce the risk of large losses and are
periodically rebalanced. Derivatives, such as swaps, options, forwards and futures contracts may be used for market exposure, to alter risk/retum
characteristics and to manage foreign cwrency cxposure. Investiments within the private equity and real estate portfolios are comprised of limited partnership
units in primary and secondary fund of funds and units in open-ended commingled real estate funds, respectively. These types of investment vehicles are
used in an effort to gain greater asset diversification. We do not have any significant concentrations of credit risk within the pfan assets. The pension plans'
liabilities, investment objectives and investment managers are reviewed periodically. The target asset allocation for 2016 and the actual assct allocations at
December31, 2015 and 2014, for the U.S. pension plans are as follows:
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Percent of Plan Assets at
Target allocation December 31,

2016 2015 2014

U.S. equities

Private equity

Investment Strategy and Asset Allocation - Foreign Pension Plans

Our foreign pension plan assets are managed by cutside investment managers and monitored regulatly by local trustees and our corporate personnel.
Investiment strategies vary by country and plan, with each strategy tailored to achieve the expected rate of retum within an acceptable or appropriate level of
risk, depending upon the liability profile of plan participants, local funding requirements, investment matlkets and restrictions. The UK. plan represents 75%
ofthe non-U.S. pension assets. The UK. pension plan's investment strategy is to maximize returns within reasonable and prudent fevels ef risk, to achieve and
maintain full funding of the accumulated benefit obligation and the actuarial liabilities and to eam a nominal rate of retumn of at least 6.5%. The fund has
established a strategic asset allocation policy to achieve these objectives. Investments are diversified across asset classes and within each class to minimize
the risk of large losses and are periodically rebalanced. Derivatives, such as swaps, cptions, forwards and futures contracts may be used for market exposure,
to alter risk/return characteristics and to manage currency exposure, We do not have any significant concentrations of credit risk within the plan assets. The
pension plang' liabilities, investment objectives and investment managers are reviewed periodically. The target asset allocation for 2016 and the actual asset
allocations at December 31, 2015 and 2014, for the UK. pension plan are as follows:

Target Percent of Plan Assets at
Alloeation December 31,
2016 1015 2014

qory
UK. equitics

Fixed income

Total 100% 100% 100%

The target assct allocation used to manage the investment portfolios is based on the broad asset categories shown above. The plan asset categories presented
in the fair value hierarchy are subsets of the broad asset categorics.

The fair value of the U plan assets was $399 million and $427 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and the expected long-term weighted
average rate of return on these plan assets was 7.00% in 2015 and 7.50% in 2G14.

Fair Value Measurements of Plan Assets

The following tables show, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the financial assets and liabilities that are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis
at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, for the U.S. and forsign pension plans. Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
meagurement requires judgment and may affect placement within the fair value hierarchy levels. There are no shares of our commeon stock included in the
plan assets of our pension plans.
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United States Pension Plans

December 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2

Money: matket Bands
Equlty securities

174 664‘

143,449

Mortgage-baclced secuntles

“Asset-backed soouritios ' e 5 £
Private equity B - — 63,577
R ' e BB o 8256
— 154,690 . 154,690

oq

Total: pl

Securities lending payablc (U

zﬁf’g&

R

Other

December 31, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 L
Lquity securities 180,069 146,7 1 6
Commingled fixed income seouritis ot eediEY
Debt securities - U.S. and forelgn governments agencies and mummpahtles 184,209 25,131

UGS H GOTpOrte
M rtgage~backed securities
‘Asscibackad séetirities.
anate equlty

S s0R
20,401
i DS
— 81246 81,246

Real—}-th‘-

Securities lending collatelal (1 131,901
Tl s -
Securities lending payable (1)

vOthcr ] . - . . 8G7

(1) Securities lending collateral is offset by a correspending securilies lending puyable amount,
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Foreign Plans

December 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securiti

216,965
I :

=

Real estate
dgrowth funds =

Total plan assets at fair value
Cash

December 31, 2014

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securities 99,570 190,924
. 51047

Cutities : omorte

Total plan assets at fair value

The following information relates to our classification of investments into the fair value hierarchy:

v Money Market Funds: Moncy market funds typically invest in government sceuritics, certificates of deposit, commercial paper of companies and other
highly liquid, low risk securities, Money market funds are principally used for overnight deposits. They are classified as Level 2 since they are not
actively traded on an exchange.

v Equity Securities: Bquity securities include U.S. and foreign common stock, American Depository Receipts, preferred stock and commingled funds.
Equity securities classified as Level 1 are valued using active, high volume trades for identical securities. Equity securities classified as Level 2 represent
those not listed on an exchange in an active market. These securities are valued based on quoted market prices of similar securities.

= Commingled Fixed Income Securitics: Mutual funds that invest in a variety of fixed income securities including secunities of the U.S. government and its
agencies, corporate debt, mortgage-backed securities and asset-backed securities, Value of the funds is based on the net asset value (NAV) per unit as
reported by the fund manager. NAY iz based on the market value of the underlying investments owned by cach fund, minus its liabilities, divided by the
number of shares outstanding. Commingled fixed income securities are not listed on an active exchange and are ¢lassified as Level 2.

v Debt Securities - U.S. and Foreign Governments, dgencies and Municipalities: Governmen! sceuritics include treasury notes and bonds, fereign
government issues, U.S. government sponscred agency debt and commingled funds. Municipal debt securities include general obligation securities and
revenue-backed securities, Debt securities classified as Level 1 are valued using active, high volume
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trades for identical securities. Debt securities classified as Level 2 are valued through benchmarking model derived prices to quoted market prices and
trade data for identical or comparable securities.

*  Debt Securities — Corporate: Investments are comprised of both investment grade debt (=BBB-) and high-yield debt (<BBB-), The fir value of corporate
debt securities is valued using recently executed transactions, market price quotations where observable, or bond spreads. The spread data used are for
the same maturity as the security. These securities are classified as Level 2.

v Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS): Investments are comprised of agency-backed MBS, non-agency MBS, collateralized mortgage obligations,
commercial MBS, and commingled funds. These securities are valued based on external pricing indices. When extemnal index pricing is not observable,
MBS are valued based on external price/spread data. If neither pricing method is available, broker quotes are utilized. When inputs are observable and
supported by an active market, MBS are classified as Level 2 and when inputs are unobservable, MBS are classified ag Level 3.

» Asset-Backed Securities (ABS): Investments are primarily comprised of credit card receivables, auto loan receivables, student loan receivables, and Small
Business Administration loans. These secutities are valued based on external pricing indices or external price/spread data and are classified as Level 2.

v Private Equity: Investments are comprised of units in fund-of-funds investment vehicles. Fund-of-funds consist of various private equity investments and
are used in an effort to gain greater diversification. The investments are valued in accordance with the most appropriate valuation techniques, and are
classified as Level 3 due to the unobservable inputs used to determine a fair value,

*  Real Estate: Investments include units in open-ended commingled real estate funds. Properties that comprise these funds are valued in accordance with
the most appropriate valuation techniques, and are classified as Level 3 due to the unobservable inputs used to determine a fair value,

»  Diversified Growth Funds: Investments are comprised of units in commingled diversified growth funds. These investments are valued based on the net
asset value (NAV) perunit as reported by the fund manager, and are classified as Level 3 due to the unobservable inpuis used to determine a fair value.

+  Securities Lending Fund: Investment represents a commingled fund through our custodian's securities lending program. The U.S, pension plan lends
securities that are held within the plan to other banks and/or brokers, and receives collateral, typically cash. This collateral is invested in a short-term
fixed income securities commingled fund. The commingled fund is not listed or traded on an exchange and is ¢lassified as Level 2. This amount invested
in the fund is offset by a comesponding liability reflected in the U.S. pension plan's net assets available for benefits,

Level 3 Gains and Losses

The following table summarizes the changes in the fair value of Level 3 assets for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

United States Pension Plans

Morigage-backed
scouritics Privaie oquity Real estate Total

(25,909)
49413
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Foreign Pension Plans

Diversified growth
funds Real estate Tatal

(119} ) (1,685)

(1,804)

Balance at December 31, 2015 20,513 39,177 59,690

Nonpension Postretirement Benefits

The benefit obligation and funded status for nonpension postretirement benefit plans are as follows:

2015 2014

231,153

Curtailment = (2 160)'

Benefit obligation - end of year (0 $ 211,878 253,980

g

T plan asseis::

e
Fair value of plan assets - begmmng ofyear

Lcmpanv CDl'ltﬂblltlu

Plan partlc1pants contnbutlons

Benefitspaid

Fair value ufplan assets - end of year

(19406) s (2113

it Liabily adzany B1R6TI
Fundcd status 3 211,878) § (253,980)

(1) The benefit obligation for the U.S, nonpension postretirement plans was $198 million and $231 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Pretax amounts recognized in AOCI consist of:

2015

Prior service cost 2,060 2,356
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The components of net periodic benefit cost for nonpension postretirement benefit plans were as follows:

2015

Serviee cost -

Interest cost

prior Setvice cost:

Amortization of net actuarial loss

g ilment sen : e : :
Net periodic benefit cost $ 190679 3% 18,742 % 23,668

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligation for nonpension postretirement benefit plans recognized in other comprehensive income were as follows:

2015

Curtailment
s
2

Amortization of prior service cost

‘Btheradjustments- =

Total recognized in other comprehensive income {39,078} 3

The estimated amounts that will be amortized from AOCI into net periodic benefit cost in 2016 are as follows:

NeLachuarallos

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for the 1.8, plan was 6.0% for 2015 and 6.5%
for 2014, The assumed health care trend rate is 6.0% for 2016 and will gradually decline to 5.0% by the year2019 and remain at that level thereafter.
Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A 1% change in the assumed health eare cost
trend rates would have the following etfects:

1% Increasc 1% Decrease

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation - 3 7841 % (6,730)-“

78




PITNEY BOWES INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected to be paid.

Pension Benefits Nonpension Benefits

124,090

ved ez

127,960

$ 1271415 § 166,191

Savings Plans

We offer voluntary defined contribution plans to our U.S, employees designed to help them accummlate additional savings for retirement. We provide a core
contribution to all employees, regardless if they participate in the plan, and match a portion of each participating employees' contribution, based on eligible
pay. Total contributions to our defined contiibution plans were $28 millicn in 2615 and $25 million in 2014,
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15, Income Taxes

Income from continuing operations before taxes consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

Intemational

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014

: Current 1.1 5,557

iDeferred -

149,594
e
189,778

Total current
Totaldefared:

¥ih

112,815

Total provision for income taxes

&

Effective tax rate 31.1% 262% 203%

The effective tax rate for 2015 includes tax benefits of §20 million from the disposition of Imagitas and $3 million from the retroactive effect of 2015 tax
legislation,

The effective tax rate for 2014 includes tax benefits of $22 miliion fiom the reselutien of tax examinations and $5 million from the retroactive effect of 2014
U.S. tax legislation.

The effective tax rate for 2013 includces tax benefits of $13 million from an affiliate reorganization, $17 million from tax planning initiatives and $5 million
from the adjustment of non-U.S. tax accounts fiom prior periods and the retroactive effect of 2013 TS, tax legislation.
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The items accounting for the difference between inceme taxes computed at the federal statutory rate and our provision for income taxes consist of the
following:

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

State and local income taxes ] 17,769 (1,379)
: 2.668)
(1,327

(1,171)
10,0505
2,658

ik
Tax exempt income/reimbursement
e :

@7,110) (13214)
Provision for income taxes $ 189,778 § 112,815 % 77,967

Other impacts of foreign operations include income of foreign affiliates taxed at rates other than the 35% U.S, statutory rate, the accrual or release of tax
uncertainty amounts related to foreign operations, the tax impacts of foreign eamings repatriation and the U.S. foreign tax credit impacts of foreign income
taxed in the U.S.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets at December31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

December 31,
2015 2014

$  (©9622) $  (60282)
A0BI6H
(188,231)

(64,900)
(519.532)

Nonpension postretirement benefits

Pension=

Inventory and equipment capitalization

Reéstrienning chaizes

Long-term incentives

125,512

€L

Less: Valuation allowance (132,624) (116,935)

k)

Total defewred taxes, net $ {140,693) $ {34,600)

A valuation allowance is recognized to reduce the total deferred tax assets to an amount that will more-likely<han-not be tealized. The valuation allowance
relates primarily to certain forcign, state and local net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards that are more-likely-than-not to expire unutilized.
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We have net operating loss carryforwards of $3 10 million as of December 31, 2015, of which, $251 million can be carried forward indefinitely and the
remainder expire over the next 15 years, In addition, we have tax credit carryforwards of $54 million, of which $39 million can be carried forward indefinitely
and the remainder expire over the next 10 to 15 years.

As of December 31, 2015 we have not provided for income taxes on $8360 million of cumulative undisttibuted earnings of subsidiaries cutside the U.S, as
these eamings will be either indefinitely reinvested or remitted substantially free of additional tax. However, we estimate that withholding taxes on such
remittances would be $13 million. Determination ofthe liability that would be incurred if these eamnings were remitted to the 11,8, is not practicable as there is
a significant amount of uncertainty with respect to determining the amount of foreign tax credits and other indirect tax consequences that may arise from the
distribution of these eamings.

Uncertain Tax Positions

A reconciliation of the amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Increases from prior period positions

i

a (10,440)

1,074)
5

The amount of the unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013 that would affect the effective tax rate if recognized was $117 million,
$109 million and $148 million, respectively.

On a regular basis, we conclude tax retum examinaticns, statutes of limitations expire, and court decisions interpret tax law. We regularly assess tax
uncertainties in light of these developments. As a result, it is reasonably possible that the amount of our unrecognized tax benefits will decrease in the next
12 months, and we expect this change could be up to 15% of our unrecognized tax benefits. We recognize interest and penalties rclated to uncertain tax
positions in our provision for income taxes. We recognized interest and penalties of $(4) million, $2 million and $27 million related to uncertain tax
positions in our provision for income faxes for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We had $10 million and $11 million
accrued for the payment of interest and penalties at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Other Tax Matters

As is the case with other large cotporations, cur tax retums are examined each year by tax authorities in the 1.8, and other global taxing jurisdictions in
which we have operations. The IRS examinations of our consolidated U.S. income tax returns for tax years prior to 2012 are closed to audit. Additionally, in
the U.S, we are subject to examination on various post-2005 State and Local taxes. In Canada, the examination of our tax filings prior to 2009 are closed to
audit, cxcept for the pending application of legal principles to specific {ssues arising in earlier years. Other significant jurisdictions in which we have, or have
recently completed, tax examinations inelude France, closed through the end of 2012, Germany closed through the end 0f2011 and except for an item under
appeal the UK. closed through the end of 2011, We have other less significant tax filings currently subject to examination.

We regularly assess the likelihood of tax adjustments in each of the tax jurisdictions in which we have operations and account for the related financial
statement implications. We believe we have established tax reserves that are appropriate given the possibility of tax adjustments. However, determining the
appropriate level of tax reserves requires judgment regarding the uncertain application of tax law and the possibility of tax adjustments. Future changes in
tax reserve requirements could have a material impact, positive or negative, on our results of operations, financial position and cash flows,
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16. Noncontrolling Interests (Preferred Stockholders’ Equity in Subsidiaries)

Pitney Bowes International Holdings, Inc. (PBIH), a subsidiary of the company, has 300,000 shares of outstanding perpetual voting preferred stock valued at
$300 million held by certain institutional investors (PBIH Preferred Stock). The holders of PBIH Preferred Stock are entitled as a group to 25% of the
combined voting power of all classes of capital stock of PBIH. All outstanding common stock of PBIH, representing the remaining 75% of the combined
voting power of all classes of capital stock, is cwned directly or indirectly by the company. The PBIH Preferred Stock is entitled to cumulative dividends ata
rate of 6.125% through April 30, 2016. Commencing Qctober 30, 2016, the PBIH Preferred Stock is redeemable, in whole or in part, at the optien of PBIHL If
the PBIH Preferred Stock is not redeemed in whole prior te October 30, 2016, the dividend rate increases 50% and will increase 50% every six months
thereafier. No dividends were in arrears at December 31,2015 or December 31,2014,

17. Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course ofbusiness, we are routinely defendants in, or party to, a number of pending and threatened legal actions. These may involve litigation
by or against us relating to, among other things, contractual rights under vendor, insurance or other contracts; intellectual property or patent rights;
equipment, service, payment or other disputes with clients; cr disputes with employees. Some of these actions may be brought as a purperted class action on
behalf of a purported class of employees, clients or others. In management’s opinion, the potential liability, if any, that may result from these actions, either
individually or collectively, is not reasonably expected to have a material effect on our financial pesition, results of operations or cash flows. However, as
litigation is inherently unpredictable, there can be no assurances in this regard.

In 2015, we finalized the settlement with the Department of Justice relating to an investigation it had conducted regarding compliance with certain postal
regulatory requirements in our Presort Services business without any admission of liability by the Company. As a result of the settlement, we recorded a
charge of $7 million, net of estimated recoveries In 2013, This charge Is recorded in ether (income) expense, net in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

18. Leases

We lease office facilities, sales and service offices, equipment and other properties under operating lease agreements with varying terms. Certain leases
require us to pay property taxes, insurance and routine maintenance and include renewal options and escalation clauses. Rent expense was $47 million, $55
million and §67 million in 2015,2014 and 2013, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2015
were as follows:

Years ending December 31,
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19. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred and Preference Stock

We have two classes of preferred stock issued and outstanding: the 4% Preferred Stock (the Preferred Stock) and the $2.12 Preference Stock (the Preference
Stock). The Preferred Stock is entitled to cumulative dividends of $2 per year and can be converted into 24,24 shares of common stock, subject to adjustment,
in certain events. The Preferred Stocl is redeemable al our option at a price of $50 per share, plus dividends acciued through the redemption date. We are
authorized to issue 600,000 shares of Preferred Stock. At December 31,2015 and 2014, there were §2 shares and 24 shares outstanding, respectively. There
are no unpaid dividends in arrears.

The Preference Stock is entitled to cumulative dividends of $2.12 per year and can be converted into 16.53 shares of common stock, subject to adjustment, in
certain events, The Preference Stock is redeemable at our option at a price of $28 per share. We are authorized to issue 5,000,000 shares of Preference Stock.
At December 31,2015 and 2014, there were 18,660 shares and 20,237 shares outstanding, respectively. There are no unpaid dividends in arrears.

Conmmon and Tregsury Stock
The following table summarizes the changes in shares of Common Stock outstanding and Treasury Stock:

Common Stock
Outstanding Treasury Stock

Issuance of common stock

Vversions to-common stock
Balance at December 31,2013

202,082,522

Rep of goti St S (1863.262) 186326,
Issuance of common stock 781,032 (781,032)
' = ' s . SR

201,027,964 122,309,948
(647696 e AT167065
943,686 (943,686)

1§{ons to comn : 6354 (26:354).
December 31,2015 195,521,208 127,810,704

At December 31,2015, 35,377,289 shares were reserved for issnance under our stock plans, dividend reinvestment program and the conversion of Preferred
Stock and Preference Stock.
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20. Aceumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Amounts Reclassified from AOCI (a)
Years Ended December 31,

5 1,276 3 (835)
S5 {140) 1355
(2,028) (2,028)

Tax benefit
Net of fa;

Interest income ]
1.a_g§ip;;@fi§i6ﬁf (benefit);
Net oftax

{43,803)
penell S : : 3,643y I
Net of tax $ (28,165) % (28,160) (35,755)

i

(54,983

)

(a) Awmounis in parentheses indicate redietions to income and increases to other comprehensive income {loss).
(b} Reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss into selling, general and administrative expenses. These amounts are included in the computation of net periodic costs of
defined benefit pension plans and nonpension postretivement benefit plans (see Note 14 for additional details).
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Changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31,2015,2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Pension and
Available-for-saje postretirement benefit  Forelgn currency
it adjustments

£

122,023

157,778
oA
(212,818}

(46,236) 106,657
=35.01
(89,584)

(297,246)

e (1055 4, b),(c,‘

25
(271,600

Net other comprehensive income {loss)
i Decemberd [, 2004

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (a)

Net other comprehensive incoms (loss)

{Balanic

13,459)

fsreolassifi

{42,479)

(88,137)
PR

(a) Amounts are net of tax, Ameounts in parentheses indicate debits to AOCI,
(b}  See table above for additional details of these reclassifications.
(c) Foreign currency item amount represents the recognition of deferred translation upon the sale of certain businesses.

21. Stock-Based Compensation Plans
The following table shows stock-based compensation expense included in the Consolidated Statements of lncome:

Years Ended Decomber 31,
2014 2013

Cost of business services 845 694 527
d adniinista = i

Research and development
5 e

it 0p

npensation exp

54)

1!

Stock-baged compensation expense, net of tax $ 12,966 §$ 10,747 % 9,162

(1} Amaount represents the expense related to the immedinte vesting of resiricted stock units and steck options held by employees of PBMS upon the sale of the business.
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PITNEY BOWES INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Stoek Plans

We have a long-term incentive program whereby cligible employees may be granted restricted stock units, non-qualified stock options, other stock-based
awards, cash or any combination thereof. The Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors administers these plans. We settle employee
stock compensation awards with treasury shares. At December 31, 2015, there were 20,092,604 shares available for future grants under our long-term
incentive program.

Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock units (RSUs) entitle the holder to shares of common stock as the units vest, typically over a three or four year service period. The following
table summarizes information about restricted stock units during 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Weighted average Weighted average
grant date fair grant date fair
Shares value Shares value

{Outstandimg :Ef.:b;egmmng ofthe year::

809,436

©94,181)
mpglgﬁgg’

The fair value of RSUs is determined based on the stock price on the grant date less the present value of expected dividends, At December 31, 20135, there was
$13 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to RSUs that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.6 years. The intrinsic
value of RSUs outstanding at December 31, 2015 was $36 millien. The intrinsic value of RSUs vested during 2013, 2014 and 2013 was $18 million, $18
million and $15 million, respectively. The fair value of RSUs vested during 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $14 million, $10 million and $18 miilion,
respectively. During 2013, we granted 1,365,798 RSUs at a weighted average fair value of $10.37.

Non-employee directors receive restricted stock units which are convertible into shares of common stock one year from date of grant, Tn 2015 and 2014,
12,824 and 34,344 restricted stock units were awarded to non-employee directors, respectively.

Performance Stock Units

The following table summarizes share information about Performance stock units (PSUs) during 2015:

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014
06,715+
725,330 493,255
(188,77 : 46
{35,756) —_
T10751 ]

PSUs are stock awards where the number of shaves ultimately received by the employee is conditional upon the attainment of certain performance targets as
well as total shareholder return relative to peer companies. PSUs vest at the end of a three-ycar service period and the actual number of shares awarded may
range from 0% to 200% of the target award. However, the final determination of the number of shares to be issned is made by our Board of Direclors, who may
reduce, but not increase, the vitimate number of shares to be awarded (negative discretion). PSUs are accounted for as variable awards until the end of the
service period when the grant date is established.

Total share-based compensation expense for PSUs is determined by the product ofthe number of shares eligible to be awarded and expected to vest and the
fair value of the award, determined using a Monte Carlo simulation model, commencing at the inception of the requisite service period. During the
performance period, the compensation expense for PSUs is re-computed using the fair value of the award, determined using a Monte Carle simulation model
each balance shect date. Pue to the variability of these awards, significant fluctuations in share-based compensation expense recognized from onc period to
the next are possible. At December 31,2015, there was $14 million of unrecegnized compensation cost related to PSUs that will be recognized over 1.7 years,
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PITNEY BOWES INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)}

Stock Options

Stock options may be granted to certain officers and employees at an exercise price equal to or greater than the stock price of vur commen stock on the grant
date. Options vest ratably over three or four years and expire ten years from the date of grant. At December 31, 2015, there was less than 31 million of
unrecognized compensation cost related te stock options that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.8 years. The intrinsic valus of
options outstanding and options exercisable at December 31, 2015 was $3 million and $2 million, respectively. No stock options were exercised in 2015,
The infrinsic value of options exercised during 2014 was net material.

The following table summarizes information about stock option activity during 20135 and 2014:

2015 2014
Per share Per share weighted
weighted avernge average exercise
Shares exercise prices Shares prices
Options outstanding - beginnin

of the year 10,708,654 5 3427 12396894 § 14,90
nied : i = : Y s . ‘4M‘L T e g 3
Exercised I — — (137,072)

- Canceled = {100,200 14,92,
Expired ) (2,036.,894) (1,436,203)
ding <end ofthe year S = 07708694
Options exercisable - end of the year 8,054,932 § 32.14 0,808,694 § 35.60

The following table provides additional information about steck options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2015:

Optiens Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Per share weighted- Weighted-average Per share weighted- ‘Weighted-average
average exercise remaining average exercise remaining
Range of per share exercise prices

Shares price coniractual life

rice

contractual life

o0
38,566

2,5 2,231,899

$23.00-$30.99

631,266
B054937

We estimate the fair valuc of'stock options using a Black-Scholes valuation model. Key assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options include
the volatility of our stock price, a risk-fiec inlerest rate, the expected dividend yield and expected life of the award. The risk-fiee interest rate is based on ULS.
treasurics with a term equal to the expected option term, The expected stock price volatility, life of the award and expected dividend yield are based on
historical experience. In 2014 there were no steck options granted and in 2013, we granted 800,000 oplions at a weighted average exercise price of $21.93.

The fair value of stock options granted during 2015 was determined using the following assumptions:

2o Y
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Emplayee Stock Purchase Plan

We maintain a non-compensatory Employee Stock Puichase Plan that enables substantially all U.S. and Canadian employees to purchase shares of our
common stock at an offering price of 95% of the average market price on the offering date. At no time will the exercise price be less than the lowest price
permitted under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, Employees purchased 131,769 shares and 87,606 shares in 2015 and 2014, respectively, We have
reserved 3,068,737 common shares for future purchase under the ESPP.

22. Quarterly Financial Datua (unandited)

First
Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter Total

890,681

880,801 $ 869,541 § 936947 S 3,573,060
] 237620
356

286,256 784 401,044 1,408,644
A0, 52 610,825
42,676 189,778

SATE0aT
5,271

53RI6.

P38

Less: Preferred stock dividends of subsidiaries aitributable to noncontrolling
ntere:

4,594 4,593 4,594 4,594 18,373

402,672

5

Net income - Pitney Bowes Inc. $ 80,612 % 151,770 § 89,282 7 $ 86,279 3 407,543

shire altributable to commot

Continuing operations

Net income - Pitney Bowes [ne.

IINgs per sh

Conlinuing operations

Net income - Piney Bowes Inc. $ 040 § 075 8 044 § 044 2,03

(1) The sum of the earnings per share amounts may net equal the totals due to rounding.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fivst
Quarter Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter Total

Revenue ¥ 937,497 § 958450 3 941,644 § 983,913 § 3,821,504
e _ 00786 42315070 e :
Operating expenses 473,129 396,814 378,563 461,011 1,709,517

AT
46,335 25,310 33,134 112,815

Less: Preferred stock dividends of subsidiaies athibutable to noncontrolling
inferesis 4,594 4,594 4,593

s adtributablc o common sioekiold:

Inceme from continuing operations

onydiscontinied operations

Net income - Pitney Bowes Inc.

Net income - Pitncy Bowes Inc.

(1) The sum of the earnings per share amounts may not equal the totals due to rounding.
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PITNEY BOWES INC.
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

{Dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning Additions charged to Balance at end of

Descriplion of year expense Deductions year

Allowa doubtful acn:vgrguntg

132,624
=il 0 : 1t6035:
8 (35.317) $ 122,730

116,935
R
142,176
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Exhibit 10{o0)

PITNEY BOWLS INC.
Pitney Bowes Director Equity Deferral Plan

. Establishment and Purpose

The purpose of the Pitney Bowes Director Equity Deferral Plan ("Plan”}is to allow Directors of Pithey Bowes Inc.
(“Company”) who receive equity awards, such as stock units (*Units”), as part of their Directer compensation under the
Pitney Bowes Inc. Director Stock Plan as amended and restated as of May 12, 2014 or any subsequent approved stock
plan{s), to defer seflement of those equity awards until termination of service or retirement from the Company’s Board of
Directors. The plan was approved by the Board of Directors November 8, 2013 effective May 12, 2014. The Plan is
intended to comply with the rules under the Internal Revenue Code and specifically Section 409A (“IRC 409A").

L. Eligibility to Participate
A Director becomes eligible to participate in this Plan upon election or appointment to the Company's Board of Directors.
1. Deferral Election

A Director shall submit a deferral election on an approved form furnished by the Company regarding an equity award.
The slection generally must be made in the year ptior to the year that the award is approved by the Board or upon
commencement of Board service. The Board may set up procedures to accept deferral elections at such other fimes as
are consistent with IRC 409A such as: (1) elections for newly eligible Directors, where the election is to be made within
30 days ofinitial eligibility, and (2) performance based compensation deferral elections, where the election can be made
up to six months before the end of the performance period if (a) the Director performs services continuously from the later
of the beginning of the performance period or the date the performance criteria are established and (b) the satisfaction of
the performance criteria is not readily ascertainable as of the time the election is made. A deferral election will not be
allowed for awards or portions thereof that otherwise would vest and be setifed within 12 months of the election, unless
specifically allowed under the Plan and under IRC 409A,

An election to defer the setflement of an award must include the entire award type made on that award date. That is, a
Director cannof defer only part of an award type, but can elect to defer all of an award type in one year and none the next
year,




The Company may allow Directors to elect a modification of a prior election but only if the moedification is made more
than 12 months prior to when the settlement would otherwise occur and does not take effect for at least 12 months from
the date of the modification election, Where the modification is deemed a subsequent election under IRC 409A, the
deferral period or award setflement date is postponed by five years from the original Default Settlement Date or elected
distribution date, as applicable.

Once a deferral election is made, the slection may not be revoked and the deferral period may not be accelerated except
as provided under this Plan decument.

A Director's deferral election will be cancelled (1) for the balance of the Plan Year in which an unforeseeable emergency
payment is made and {2) during the period in which the Director is unable to perform duties of his or her position or
substantially similar position due to a menfal or physical impairment that can be expected to result in death or lastfora
continuous period of at least six months.

. Deferral Term

A Director may elect to defer setttement of an equity award to termination of service or retirement from the Company’s
Board of Directors

V. Settlement

Settlement of deferred equity Units means the conversion of an equity Unitinto a full unrestricted share of Company
common stock and the distribution of such shares to the Director, to the extent allowable under law. Fractional shares at
seilement will either be payable in cash or used for additional withholding taxes.

The Plan’s Default Date of Settlement is the month immadiately following the third month after the Director's termination
or retirement from Board service. I the Director elects settlement over a ten-year period following termination or
relirement from Board service the setilement shall be made in equal share installments with the first seflement being
made during the fourth month following the Director's termination or retirement from Board service and each successive
installment being in the sarme month in successive calendar years. installment payments shall be treated as a single
form of payment under the Plan.

V. Vesting

Equity Awards shall vest in accordance with the underlying squity award terms. Directors who submit a deferral election
are deferring the setflement, not the vesting, of such awards 1o the deferral date elected or allowed under this Plan.




Vil Dividend Equivalents

The undetlying equity award shall specify when and if dividends or dividend equivalents are payable under the equity
award. Dividend equlivalents on deferred awards will be paid ouft to the Directors quarterly within 30 days of the dividend
payment date oh outstanding Company stock.

VIIL Voting Rights

Deferred equity awards are considered notional or phantem shares and do not carry voting rights until they are settled
into common shares at the end of the deferral period.

1X. Death

In the event of a Director's death, vested deferred Units will be settled and converted in Company commeon stock within
90 days of the Director's death and will be payable to the Director's estate unless the Director has designated in writing a
specific beneficiary(ies}.

X. Change of Control

If a Change of Control of Pitney Bowes Inc. meets the requirements of IRC Section 409A, deferred equity Units will be
converted into Company common stock upon the Change of Control. Change of Control shall be defined as in the Pitney
Bowes Inc. Directors’ Stock Plan.

Xl Tax Withholding

Withholding from the award settlement into common stock will occur only if and to the extent required by federal, state,
local or foreign law.

X, Amendment

Except for non-material administrative changes which can be made by the Executive Committee of the Board of
Directors, all other amendments to this Plan requires the approval of the full Board. The Board may delegate ministerial
actions to administer the Plan to Company's Chief Executive Officer or other senior exacutive officers as the case
maybe. The Board may terminate this Plan and settle all outstanding deferred awards. Amendments and termination
may occur without prior notification.




XIIL General Assets

To the extent any person acquires a right to receive payments hereunder, such rights are no greater than the right of an
unsecured general creditor of the Company. Nothing contained in this Plan and no action taken pursuant to its provisions
shall create or be construed to create a trust of any kind. No Director shall have any right, title or interest whatever in the
assets of the Company.

XIV. Anti-assignment Rule

A Director may not assign any interest or benefit under this Plan for any purposes. Purporied assignments shall be null
and void and of no effect. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein the Board may, at is sole discretion, make
distributions to an alternate payee in accordance with the terms of domestic relations order (See IRC Section 414(p){1)

(B)).

XV. No Acquired Right
The benefits provided by this Plan shall not rise to the level of an acquired right.

XVI Director Stock Ownership Policy

Fully vested but deferred Units shall count toward the ownership requirements under the Director Stock Ownership
Policy.

XVII. Director Duties

Directors must keep the Company advised at all times of his or her current mailing address and other contact information.

XVIIL. Designation of Beneficiary

A Director may designate a beneficiary(ies) by submitting to the Company the beneficiary information in writing
according to the format approved by the Company. If a distribution is to be made to a minor, or to a person who is
incompetent, the Company may make the distribution to (1} a legal guardian, or if none, to a parent at the mincr's
residence, or (2) to a conservator, or {3) to a person having custody of an incompetent payee. Such distribution shall fully
discharge the liability under this Plan.

XIX. IRC Section 409A

This Plan is intended to comply with the Internal Revenue Code and specifically IRC 409A and shall in all respects be
administered in accordance with its rules, Distributions may only be made under the Plan upon an event and in a
manner permitted under IRC




Section 409A. All payments made upon termination of service or retirement under this Plan may only be made upon a
“separation of servica” under IRC Section 409A. All deferral slections shall be consistent with permissible elections
under IRC Section 409A.

XX. Plan Administrator and Administration

This Plan shall be administered by the Executive Committee of the Board (*Committee™}. The Committee shall have
discretionary authority to make, amend, interpret and enforce all appropriate rules and regulations for administration of
this Plan and to utilize its discretion o decide or resolve any and all questions as may arise in connection with the Plan.
The Committee may delegate certain ministerial actions to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer or other senior
executive officers as the case maybe,

XXI. Governing Law

The laws of the State of Connecticut shall govern the construction and administration of the Plan.
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PITNEY BOWESINC.
Piiney Bowes Executive Equity Deferral Plan

I Establishment and Purpose

The purpose of the Pitney Bowes Executive Equity Defetral Plan (*Plan™) is o allow key executives ("Participants”} at
Pitney Bowes Inc. and its designated subsidiaries and affiliates ("Company”) who receive equity awards as part of the
Participant’s long-term incentive compensation, such as restricted stock units (‘fRSU”) and performance stock units
{*PSU", under the Pithey Bowes 2013 Stock Plan or any subsequent approved stock plan(s), to defer setflement of those
equity awards until termination of employment or Retirement {termination of employment after age 55). The plan was
approved by the Executive Compensation Committee and the beard of directors on November 7, 2014 to facilitate
Company executives in accumulating sizable holdings in Common stock as required under the Executive Stock
Ownership Policy and to further align executive compensation with the interests of Company stockholders. This Plan
may be offered to Participants in countries outside the United States on a country by country basis at the sole discretion
of the Company. The Plan is intended to comply with the rules under the Internal Revenue Code and specifically Section
409A ("IRC 409A".

Il Eligibility to Participate

An executive becomes eligible to participate in this Plan upon receipt of specific written notification of eligibility to
participate from the Company, Generally only the Company's senlor executives are eligible to participate in the Plan.

. Deferral Election

A Participant shall submit a deferral election on a form furnished or approved by the Company regarding an equity
award. The election generally must be made in the year prior to the year that the award is approved by the board or the
Company. However, the Company may set up procedures to accept deferral elections at such other times as are
consistent with IRC 409A such as: (1) elections for newly eligible executives, where the election is to be made within 30
days of initial eligibility, and (2) performance based compensation defetral elections, where the election can be made up
to six months before the end of the petrformance period if {(a) the Participani performs services continuously from the later
of the beginning of the performance pericd or the date the performance criteria are established and (b) the satisfaction of
the performance criteria is not readily ascertainable as of the time the election is made. A deferral election will not be
allowed for awards or portions thereof that otherwise would vest and be settled




within 12 months of the election, unless specifically allowed under the Plan and under [RC 409A,

An election to defer the settlement of an award must include the entire award type made on that award date. For
example, if the Participant is awarded both an RSU and PSU award, the Participant may elect to defer the entirety of
either or both types of awards. Partial deferrals of equity awards will not be allowed under the Plan.

The Company may allow Participants to elect a medification of a prior election but only if the modification is made more
than 12 months prior to when the seftlement would otherwise accur and does not take effect for at least 12 months from
the date of the modification election. Where the modification is deemed a subsequent election under IRC 409A, the
deferral perlod or award settlement date is postponed by five years from the original Default Settlement Date or elected
distribution date, as applicable.

Once a deferral election is mads, the slaction may not be revoked and the deferral period may not be accelerated except
as provided under this Plan document.

A Participant’s deferral election will be cancelled (1) for the balancs of the Plan Year in which an unforeseeable
emargency payment is made, (2) through the end of the Plan Year in which the six-month anniversary of a 401(k) Plan
hardship distribufion falls, and during the period in which the Participant is unable to perform duties of his or her position
or substantially similar position due to a mental or physical impairment that can be expsact to result in death or last fer a
continuous period of at least six months.

V. Deferral Term

A Participant may elect to defer setlement of an equity award in the following ways: (1) to a date certain while the
Participant is still employed, (2) to termination of employment or Retirement or (3} over a period of ten years commencing
at termination of employment, provided that if the Participant is not eligible to Retire, settlement shall instead be made at
termination of employment, if a participant defers settlement to a date certain while still employed but terminates
employment prior to the date certain, settlement of the equity award will occur upon termination of employment under
Article V below.

V. ' ' Settlement

Settlement of deferred equity units means the conversion of an equlty unitinto a full unrestricted share of Company
common stock and the distribution of such shares to the Participant, fo the extent allowable under law. Fractional shares
at setlement will either be payable in cash or used for additional withholding taxes.




The Plan's Default Date of Settlement is {1) if the deferral was to a date certain and the Participantis still employed at
such date certain, then settlement will occur within 30 days of the date certain; and (2) if the Participant terminates
employment then settlement will be during the 7 month fellowing the Participant's termination of employment. If the
parlicipant elects settlement over a ten-year period following termination from employment and is eligible to Relire at the
time of termination from employment, the settlement shall be made in equal share installments with the first settlement
being made during the seventh month following the Participant's termination from employment and sach successive
installment being in the same month in successive calendar years. Installment payments shall be freated as a single
form of payment under the Plan. If the Participant has elected to defer an award 1o bs settled in installments but
terminates prior to Retirement, the award will be settled during the seventh month following the Participant's termination
from employment notwithstanding the Participant's election.

Vi, Vesting

Equity Awards shall vest in accordance with the underlying equity award terms. Participants who submit a deferral
election are deferring the settlement, not the vesting, of such awards to the deferral date elected or allowed under this
Plan.

VII. Deferral of Dividend/Dividend Equivalents

The underlying equity award shall specify when and if dividends are payable under the equity award. Dividend
equivalents on deferred awards will be deferred into additional deferred restricted stock units under the same terms as
the underlying deferred equity award generating those dividend equivalents. If dividends are payable under the equity
award (e.g. after vesting of the award), dividend equivalents under deferred equity awards will be converted into
additional vested restricted stock units with settlement deferred until the base deferral is settled pursuantte the
Participant’s election or the Plan terms. Dividend equivalents will be deferred into additional vested restricted stock units
based on the New York Stock Exchange closing stock price for the Company’s stock on the date the dividend cn
Company stock is otherwise paid to stockholders. Deferred dividend converted into additicnal restricted stock units will
be converted into Company common shares at the same time as the equity award which gave rise fo the dividend
equivalent. Regular stock dividends will be payable once the units are converted into commen shares at the end of the
deferral period.

Vil Voting Rights

Deferred equity awards are considered notional or phantom shares and do not carry voting rights until they are settled
into common shares atthe end of the deferral period.

IX. Death and Disability




In the event of a Participant's death, vested deferred units will be settled and converted in Company commeon stock in the
second month immediately following the Participant's death and will be payable to the Participant's estate unless the
Participant has designated in wtiting a specific beneficiary(ies).

In the event of a Participant’s total disability, which shall be defined as the Participant's termination from employment
after two years on long term disability benefits, any outstanding deferred units shall be settled and converted in Company
common stock in the seventh month immediately following the Participant’s termination of employment on account of
disability. Settlement shall be treated as a termination of employment or Retirement as the case may be.

X. Change of Control

If a Change of Control of Pitney Bowes Inc. meets the requirements of IRC Section 409A, deferred equity units will be
converted into Company common stock upon the Participant's termination of employment on account of a Change of
Control and within 24 months of the Change of Control. Change of Control shall be defined as in the Company Senior
Executive Severance Policy.

XL Tax Withholding

To the extent required by federal, state, local or foreign law, the Company may withhold applicable taxes upon
settlement of a deferred equity award, including settlement of reinvested units derved from dividend equivalents, by
withholding units or stock Issued on the settlement.

XI. Amendment

Except for non-material administrative changes, all other amendments to this Plan requires the approval of the Executive
Compensation Committee. This Plan may be terminated by the Executive Compensation Committee of the board.
Amendments and termination may occur without priot notification.

XIH. General Assets

To the extent any person acquires a right to receive payments hereunder, such rights are no greater than the right of an
unsecured general creditor of the Company. Nething contained in this Plan and ne action taken pursuant to its provisions
shall create or be construed to create a trust of any kind or a fiduciary relationship between the Company and the
Participant or beneficiaries. No Participant shall have any right, title or interest whatever in the assets of the Company (or
participating company).




XV, Anti-assignment Rule

A Participant may not assign any interest or benefit under this Plan for any purposes. Purported assignments shall be
nufl and void and of no effect. Notwithstanding anything fo the contrary here in the Company may, at is sole discretion,
make distributions to an alternate payee in accordance with the terms of domestic relations order {(See IRC Secfion

414(pX1)(B)).

XV, No Employment Contract or No Acquired Right

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to constitute an employment contract between the Company and the
Participant. The benefits provided by this Plan shall not rise to the level of an acquired right.

XVL Executive Stock Ownership Policy

Fully vested but deferred units shall count toward the ownership requirements under the Executive Stock Ownership
Policy.

XVl Participani Duties

Participants must keep the Company advised at all times of his or her current mailing address and other contact
information.

XVIIL. Designation of Beneficiary

A participant may designate a beneficiary{ies} by submifting to the Company the beneficiary information in writing
according to the format approved by the Company. If a distribution is to be made to a minor, or to a person who is
incompetent, the Company may make the distribution to (1) a legal guardian, or if none, to a parent at the minor's
residence, or (2) to a conservator, or {3) to a person having custody of an incompetent payee. Such distribution shall fully
tdischarge the Company’s liability.

XIX. IRC Section 409A

This Plan is intended to comply with the Internal Revenue Code and specifically IRC 409A and shall in all respects be
administered in accordance with its rules. Distributions may onfy be made under the Plan upon an eventand in a
manner permitted under IRC Section 409A. All payments made upon termination of employment under this Plan may
only be made upon a "separation of service” under IRC Section 409A. All deferral elections shall be consistent with
permissible elections under IRC Section 409A.

XX. Plan Administrator and Administration




This Plan shall be administered by the Executive Compensation Committee ("Committee™) of the board. The Committee
shall have discretionary authority to make, amend, interpret and enforce all appropriate rules and regulations for
administration of this Plan and to utilize its discretion to decide or resolve any and all questions as may arise in
connection with the Plan. The Committee may delegate certain ministerial actions to the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Operating Officer or other Senicr Executive Officers as the case maybe. The Committee and the board
as the case may be have the right to terminate this Plan without notice and to settle all ouistanding deferred awards.

XX Governing Law

The laws of the State of Connecticut shall govern the construction and administration of the Plan.
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PITNEY BOWES INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(Dollars in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Portion of rents representative of the interest

factor o . 18,367

789541 S 624224

VPortion of rents representative of the interest
factor - 15,807 18,367 22,259 22,564

e -

e
Fnae

Total fixed charges 208,546 % 222906 § 245936 § 246,773 § 256,461
Ratio of earnings to fixed chargés @ 3.79 2.80 245 2.96 2.1

{1} Interost expense includes both financing interest expense and olhor intercst expense.

{2) The computation of the ratio of eamnings to fixed charges has been computed by dividing income from continuing operations before income taxes as
adjusted by fixed charges. Included in fixed charges is one-thizd of rent expense as the representative portion of interest.
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PITNEY BOWES INC,
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT
The Registrant, Pitney Bowes Inc., a Delaware Corporation, has no parent
The following are subsidiaries of the Registrant
(as of December31,2015)

Country or state of incomoration

BoxHop LLC - _,, Delaware
Mexico

Drelawrar @

-"ﬂelaw ITE

Delaware

;E?B‘N-(;va-- Goha; Hﬂldlngs [ :
PB Nova Scotia Holdings ULC Canada

" Canada

- Canady
Canada

Delaware
ok : ;_)9{
PBDorm Ireland Timited Irgland




Biin &4 Paciic) Pie.
Pltney Bowes (Dormant) PleLid

itney Bowes Brasil Equipamentos e Servicos Ltda

Pitney Bowes Canada Lp

Pltney Bowes Dzmmﬂrk A/S
(o Deu!schland GmbH : . : JEITARY.
Pitney Bowes Finance Ireland Llrmted ) Ireland

Pimey Bowes Hong Kong Limited
?ﬁ&eyBowe Tndia:Ps

Pitmey Bowes International Finance Limited

- Tricland

Pitmey Bowes International Holdings, Inc.

Delaware

i

Pitney Bowes Italia 811

ey, Bowes Japan’ Kt

Pitney Bowes Limited

Pnncy Bowes Shelton Realty Ine.

ey‘Bowes Soﬂware > (Beijing) Lt

Pitney Bowes Soltware Canada Ine. Canada




VQuracrlstrone ParamicsﬂLtd 3
RealTime Content Lid 222
Schooner Acq, Corp,

ATF

The Piney Bowes Bank, Inc.
Wheeler Insurance, Ltd,

Vermont
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form 8-8 (Registration Nos. 333-05731, 333-132589, 333-132590,
333-132591, 333-132592, 333-145527, 333-190308) and on Forms $-3 (Registration Nos. 333-183070,333-198759) of Pitney Bowes Inc. of our report

dated February 22, 2016 relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial teporting,
which appears in this Form 10-K.

{s/ PricewntethouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Stamford, Connecticut

February 22,2016



Exhibit31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Marc B, Lautenbach, certify that;

1.

2.

Thave reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pitney Bowes Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report dees net contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations nnd cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are respensible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{e}) and intemal coniro! over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, te
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed vnder our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extermal
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure confrols and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's intemal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably fikely to materially affect,
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and T have disclosed, based on cur most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registiant's boatd of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Datg: February 22,2016

/8/ Marc 3. Lautenbach

Mare B. Lautenbach
President and Chief Exccutive Qfficer



Exhihit31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Michael Monahan, cettify that:

1. TIhavereviewed this Annnal Report en Form 19-K of Pitney Bowes Inc,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary fo make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. DBased on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information ineluded in this report, faitly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying cificer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15¢e} and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the
registrant and have:

a.

Designed such disclosurs centrols and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

Designed such internal control over financial reporling, or caused such intemal control over finaneial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and proceduses and presented in this report out conclusions about the effectiveness
ofthe disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the peried covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal
quarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant's internal control ever financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent finctions):

a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, precess, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fiaud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: February 22,2016

/s Michael Monahan

Michael Monahan
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial

Officer



Exhibit32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C, SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Pitney Bowes Inc. (the "Company™) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Marc B. Lautenbach, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, to the
best of my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

4} The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

3] The information contained in the Repert fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

s/ Mare B. Lautenbach
Marc B. Lautenbach

President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: February 22,2016

The foregoing certification is being fumished solely to accompany this report pursuant to 18 U.8.C. §1350, and is not being filed for purpeses of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not te be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company.



Exhibit32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Pitney Bowes Inc. {the "Company"} on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Michael Monahan, Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, to the best of my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all matetial respects, the financial condition and results of operaticns of the
Company.

/s/ Michael Monahan
Michael Monahan

Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Financial Officer
Date: February 22,2016

The foregoing certification is being fornished sclely to accompany this report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, and is not being filed for purposes of Section 18
afthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and i3 not to be incorperated by reference into any filing of the Company.
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TO CONTRACTOR:
460495050
PITNEY BOWES, THNC.
%20 MILLER PLACE,

HICRIVILLE MY 118011826
SHIP TO:
A8 SPECITIED ON INDIVEDUAY, OHDERY PLEASE REFER ALL QUESTIONS

CONCERWNING THIS ORDER TO:
MILLE, LINDA, AT 16103
{516) B871-4200
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BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER

BP0 ID: BPNOIGOONZRL PRINT DATE: 01/03/2017 PAGE; {42
The County of Haspau (herainafter calledl the Counby) rapresented by
the Director, 0££ive of Purchaging (hereinafter valled the
Director), and the individusl, pertunership, Joint venture or
vorporation named above (herslnaftex salled the contractor) mutually
ngree to perform this canbraet in strist agcordance with the general
provisions attaghed hereto mnd the specifications, terms and
conditions nontalned herein.
AUTHORTTY: OPINTON NYS COMPTROLLER 79-1530) VENDOR QUOTE OF 11/03/16)
AND ACGENCY BE~MAIL OF NOVEMBER 3, 2016, APPROVED BY JAMES DAVIL.
THIS RLAMEET ORDER REPLAGES BPHCL1000422.,
TIILET PITHEY BOWES MATLING SYSTEMS RENPAL.
BUVER: LINDA A, WILLZ
WHE R AKX AN TN AR T TN R A TR d bRk R SN S A G e R AR R drhdech ek ek ool o et
PERIOD COVERED:t SHALL BE PROM THE BFFECYIVE DATE OF THE BLANEET
PURCHASE ORDER TO AND INCLUDING FERRUARY 28, 2032, HO CANCELLATION I#
FERMITTED .,
BEFECTIVE DATS - DATE THAT EQUIPMENT L8 ACCEPLED BY NASSAU COUNTY AND
THE DATE LEASE PRREM HEGING: AUENCY RHUST HNOTIFY BUYER IN WRITING OF THE
ACCERTANRCE DATH HO THAT BUYER MAY MMEND THIS CONTRACT TL REFLECT TERM.
HERAA KT A E TN ARR AR R R E NI RS AT F R AR AR ARNARAAA SN F AN NI AR MR RN R AN R Rk R
PAYMENT: A CBRTIFLED INVOICE, OR A COURYTY CLALIM FORM TO WHICH THE
INVGICR I8 ATTACHED, SHALL BE SUBMILTED QUARTERLY IN ADVANCE, DIRECTLY
TO OCPHE GEING ACBHCY, SUBPORTED BY VOUCHERS SBIGNED BY AGENCY PERBONNEL
ATTESTING TO THE ZATISFACTORY CONPLETION OF THE REQUIRED SERVICES A8
SPRCIFIED.
w**!k**k*!*ﬁmﬂmaanEMcEnTxFIeA’ryoﬂ*t*ﬁ*****'ﬂri
IF A CLAIM VOUCHER I8 MNOT BEING SUBMITTED, THE FOLLOWING CERTIFICATEON
HUST APPHAR ON THE IRVOIOR:
1 HERSRY SHFPIEY THAY ALL ITEMS OR SERVICES WERE DELIVERED OR RENDERRED
AS SEP FORME IN THLIS CLAIM) THAT THE PRICES CHARGEYD ARE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE REFERENCED PURCHASE ONIDER, DELIVERY ORDER OR CONTRACT, THAT
PHE CLATM TH JUST, TRUE AND CORRECT; THAT THE BALANCUE STATED HEREIN IS
ACTUALLY DUE AND OWING AND HAZ NOT BESN PREVIOUSLY CLAJIMED; CHAT NG
TAXES PROM WHICH THE COUNTY I EXEMPT ARE INCLUDED) AND THAT ANY
AMQUNTS CLAIMEDR FOR DIZBURSEMENTS HAVE ACTUALLY AND NECBASARILY BERY

MADE -
CLATHIANT WNAME DATE
BY (STGHATURE) TIVLE

<< CONTINUED, NEXT PRGE »>



BLANKET PURCHASR ORDER

EPO IDr HPNCL60G00321 BRINT DATED 0170372017 PAGE a3

*EE CLATY VOUCHERE OR CERTIFIED INVQIORA NOT FROPERLY COMPLETED WILLW*
"W BB Rﬁmn lro YO’U’ U‘N’EAID‘k**i&i**irﬁ*#’h***ﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬁi***k*k**wti‘l********
INSURANCE COVERAGE: BEvidenca of Ldabiilty and Workman's Compensabion
voverage ip an ilubegral part of this contract, and suoh evidence is to
be sent within Ten {10} businsan Gays after the regeipt of this
Blanket Purchase Oxder/Purchase Order to this Dffive to Lhe atbention
oft

ATTN: LINDA A, MILLS

Magnau Coanty 0ffice of Purchaping

1 WEST BUREET, MINEOLA, NEW YORK 11301
Foxms such as Lthe ACCORD 35%-8 or bhe U~26.3 must list the Blanket or
Furchase Order Number and bths buysrs name>
THES BLANKETDT PURCHASE CRDER BSTABLISHES TERMI ANE CONDITIONS PURSUANT
PO WHICH CERPAIN MATERIALE AND/OR SERVICES ARE T0 BE SUPPLIED OR
PEREORMED, PRON TIME TO TIME, FOR A SPECIFIED FERIOD UPQN ISSUAHNCE
BY THE COUNTY OF DELIVERY ORDERS.
THIS BLANKET PURCHASH ORDER SHALL
NOT APPLY IN ANY WAY TO ITEMS OF MATERIAL OR SERVICE DEEMBD BY THER
COUREY IN ITS BOLE DISCRETLON TO BE EXTRADRDINARY OR INVOLVE ANY
SPECTAL CONDITIONS, QUANTITIRSE, CIROUMSTANCHE OR COMPLEXITIES.
e T T R T T L R R R T I L E e L IR S A L R RS R Y
GENERAYL CONDLELONE (REDATHRE)
AL HEPRIRS PO HE HAUE N ACCORDANCE WITH "OSHA" SAFETY REQUIREMENTS.
CONTRACTOR WILL FURNISH ALL LABOR, MHATERIALE, TRANSPORTATION, TOOLS,
IRSTRUMBNTATION, PARTS AND ACCHEGSGRIES NRCEESARY TO REPAIR AND RESTORE
THE EQUIPHENT MO OPTIMUM OPHAAIING CONDITION.
ALL CONTRACTOR DPERSONNEL ASSIGNED TO ANY RREQUIREMENT OF A CONTRACT
BETPABLISHED MUST BE FULLY QUALTFIED AND COGNIZANT OF THE REQUIRED AND
ARPLICARLE ELECTRICAL CODES AND BAFETY REQUIREMENTE, AND MUST ADHERE
TO THEM,
ALY PARTE SUPPLIRD MUST MATCH AND INTERMEMBER WITH THE DESTONATED
EQUIPMENT, AND MUS? BE IN ACCOHDAMCE WITH THE SPECIFICQATIONS OF THR
MANUFACTURER OF THE PART TO BE REPLACED.
BXCEP? AS OTHERWISE SPECIPIED, ALL CONTHACT REQUIREMEMTE WILL BRE
PEEVORMED AT THE BITE AR REQUIRED.
AR HEOUIREMENT TO REMOVE AMY RART OF THE EQUIPMEBNT OR SYSTEM(S) TO
CONTRACHTOR 'S SHOP, MUST BB ARPFROVED BY AN AUTHORIRED AGENCY
REPRESENTATIVE., NASSAU COUNTY SHALL SUPPLY ALL UTILITIES WHICH ARKE
<< QONTINUED, HEXT PAGE >>



BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER

BREO ED: HENCALE0OGOZAL FRINT DATEs 01/03/2017 PAGEL 04
AVATLABLE ON LOGCKITON INSCOFAR AS COMPATIBILIEY REQUIREMENTS PERMIT.
ALL REQUIREMENTE PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE SUBJECT T0Q
IHMEPECTION AND APPROVAL BY AN AUTHORTLED DERIGHATED REPREJENTATIVE OF
THE USING AGENCY.
EMPLOYERS OF THE CORTRACTOR WHILE ON SHRVICE CALL BHALL CARRY
TDENTIFICATION BADUH OK CARD AND SHALL BE INSTRUCTED TO SUBMIT SAME TO
BURUTINY UFON BRQUEBSE OF SRCURTTY OR SUPERVISCRY DERJCHNNEL OF NAJAAUY
QOUNTY,

PERLE SHALYL REMAIN WITH LESSOR AND NOT FASS TO NASSAU COUNTY.
EQUIPHMENT MAINTENANCE 18 INCOLUDED AND T8 COVERED EITHER BY THE
WARRANTY OR THE WAINTEANCE AGREEMENT. INCLUDES SOFFGUARD RATE
REPLACEMENT AND SOFTWARE WMAINTBNANCE,

60 WONTH LEASE, PATD QUARTERLY FN ADVANCE,

e R RN KR E N AR RN R AR AR bRt Rk bR h R AR R A b h kR R ke AR ARk Ry
FREAERFR AR R IR AR AR R R AR TR H AR AR E I A AT ARERT AR AR AT RN R AF AR AR A AN RN A A by
BQUTSMENT COVERED: RELAY 8000 IMNSERTYNG SYSTEM. BREARDOWS:

DITY HIGH CAPACITY SHERT PEEDER, INSPALLATEON & TRAINING

DTV INSTALLATION AND TRAINING GTACKERS

FTOO3IZT SPECTAL TOWER FPREEDRR KIT

780183 SHZET/FLAT ENVELOPE TRAY

FT80164 INBERY TRAY

F780018 18" CONSOLE EXTENSION

AR R RAR AN AT T AT A RN AR AR AT R AR KA AR AN ARNN NN RN AR ARk R R ARy
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BOUIPMENT COVERED: RBLAY §000 INSBRTING SYRTEM CONTINUFEGDI

POWER CORD,

¥IS0700-01 U HELAY LOCALIZATION KIT

#?791700~01 UB HICAR SEEET FEEDER KIT

DI BOTTCH ADDRESE TNSERTER KIT

STANDARD SLA BQUIRMENT SERVICE AGREEMENT (FOR RELAY BOOO SYSTEM)

TIOR INSERTER INSTALLATION & TRAINING

TEIS0 RELAY 8000 INSERTING SYSTEM
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BOWIPMENT COVERED: RELAY S000 INSERTING SYEres (CORFINUED)
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TINS HORIZONIAL BELT ETACKER

PIEG HIGH CALPACTITY SHEET FEREEDOR

LR 80" TABLE WITH SHELR
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Conkractor shall retaln complabe and accurate rocords and documsnts
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BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER
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BRO ID: BPNCLEODO2ZL FRINT DATR: 01/03/2017 FAGE 05
related Lo this Agreement for mix (6) vears following the later of
tormination or finel payment. Such records shall at all timee he
avatlable for audit and inspection by ths County.

AR RE RN SRR A AR T AR KRB AR AR E IR A S AR R AR A AR RN AT T AR A Rk R AR AW
toverning law - Consent to Jurisdicbion and Venus; Governing Law.
Unless otherwise specifiled in this Agresswent or regquired by Law,
swciusive original Jjurisdiotion for alil oleime or scstions with respaot
to this Agreement shall he in tha fuprems Court in Nassauw County in
Naew tork Stabte and the parties ewpressly walve any objeckions to the
gams on any grounds, incluyding venud and forum non conveniens., This
Agroensnt is intended as a contrect under, and shall be poverned and
construad in accordange with, the Lawe of New York Stabte, wilthout
vagard Lo the confliot of lawa provialons thereaof.

R R R A R A R A E R R R R R R R R L R T A R R RS E Y Y]
Crdinance ¥ 72-2014

Tha bidder declaras that bthey ara a registerad vendor in accordanae
with Ordinange #72-2014 {the "Qrdinance*). All regiastered vendors
migt pay the One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollar ($125.00) annual fee
required under the Ordinence, addiciovally, reglptered vendors wmupt
pay & Two Bundred Seventy-FPive Dollar ($275.00) per sontract fee bo
regigter Blanket contractes on ths Countwy's procuremsnt website, as
required under the Ordinance.

Further detaile about the roglstration process may be found at
httpei //eprod.gasagueountyny ., gov/SupplierRagister



